
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
 
 
 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 18-19, 2021 
  



*All listed times are in PDT and are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the
time schedule. The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session.

A G E N D A 

District 2 Tour and Regular Meeting 
of the Idaho Transportation Board 

May 18-19, 2021 

The meeting is open to the public except for the executive session. 

May 18, 2021 

Time* 
DISTRICT 2 TOUR 

Depart District 2 Office, 2600 Frontage Road, Lewiston:  
US-95 north and SH-8 west 9:45 

Arrive Pullman/Moscow Airport, presentation 10:40 
Depart Airport: SH-8 east, US-95 north                                                            11:40 
Arrive Potlatch maintenance shed; lunch and presentations 12:20 
Depart Potlatch: SH-6 east, SH-9 south, and SH-3 south 1:30  
Arrive Arrow Bridge, SH-3 and US-12; presentation 2:40 
Depart Arrow Bridge, US-12 west 3:00              
Arrive Spalding Bridge, US-12 and US-95; presentation 3:10 
Depart Spalding Bridge, US-12 west 3:25              
Arrive Nez Perce Road, Clearwater Casino; presentation 3:35 
Depart Clearwater Casino, US-12 west 3:50              
Arrive District 2 Office, tour remodel 4:05 
Tour ends 4:35 

1



 
 

*All listed times are in PDT and are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the 
time schedule. The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session. 
 

May 19, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 

 
May 19, 2021 

District 2 Office 
2600 Frontage Road 

Lewiston, Idaho 
 
 
To listen:  

Dial 1-415-655-0003 US Toll  
a. access code: 177 515 2427  
b. meeting password: #1234 

 
KEY: 
ADM = Administration                                                                                                    HR = Human Resources 
CD = Chief Deputy                                                                                                          OP = Operations 
DIR = Director 
 
                                                                                                             Page      Time* 
                                                                                                      # 
 
Action Item 1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER                                                                       8:30 
 
Information Item 
    2. SAFETY/SECURITY SHARE: Engineer-In-Training Feist, District 2 
 
Action Item  3. BOARD MINUTES – April 21-22, 2021 ......................................................6 8:35 
 
Action Item 4. 2021 BOARD MEETING DATES ...............................................................21  

June 23-24 – District 3 
July 21-22 – District 5 
August 18-19 – District 1 

 
Action Item 5. CONSENT CALENDAR ..............................................................................22 
OP   ___ State institution road improvement project .....................................................23 
OP   ___ Add Local SMA-7674, Mountain View Road, Moscow.................................26 
OP   ___ Add Bridge Local, 97th South, Idaho Canal Bridge, Bonneville County ........28 
OP   ___ McMillen Jacobs individual task agreement extension ...................................30 
OP   ___ Consultant agreements ....................................................................................32 
OP   ___ Contract for rejection .......................................................................................36 
 
 
 
 

2



 
 

*All listed times are in PDT and are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the 
time schedule. The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session. 
 

May 19, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
 
                                    May 19, 2021                                                  Page      Time* 
                                                                                                      # 
Information Items 
    6. INFORMATIONAL CALENDAR 
OP   ___ Contract award information and current advertisements ................................41 
OP   ___ Professional services agreements and term agreement work tasks report .......46 
ADM   ___ State FY21 financial statements ......................................................................52 
ADM  ___ Monthly report of federal formula program funding through April ................71 
CD   ___ FY22-25 Strategic Plan for Division of Financial Management .....................73 
 
    7. DIRECTOR’S MONTHLY REPORT ON ACTIVITIES                            8:40 
 
    8. LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY: Governmental Affairs Manager McCarty     9:00 
 
   9. AGENDA ITEMS 
DIR  ___ Proposed legislative ideas – 2022 legislative session .....................................84 9:10 
McCarty 
 
Action Item 
HR   ___ Consolidation and update to Administrative Policy 5505 Operating and  
Danner      Usage Practices of State Vehicles   (Resolution on page 101)  .................87 9:25 
 
   10. AGENDA ITEMS, continued 
Information Items 
OP   ___ Idaho Battle of the Belts ..................................................................................102 9:35 
Tomlinson/Smith 
 
OP   ___ Idaho law enforcement phlebotomy program .................................................103 9:50 
Tomlinson/Adamson 
 
OP   ___ Highway Safety Plan .......................................................................................104 10:00 
Tomlinson  
 
   11. BREAK                                                                                                                    10:05 
 
    12. DISTRICT 2 REPORT: District Engineer Hoff                                              10:20 
 
   13. AGENDA ITEMS, continued 
Action Items 
OP   ___ Spending Plan for available one-time funds ....................................................105 10:40 
Gill                  (Resolution on page 107) 
 

3



 
 

*All listed times are in PDT and are estimates only. The Board reserves the right to move agenda items and adjust the 
time schedule. The meeting is open to the public, except for the executive session. 
 

May 19, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
 
                                    May 19, 2021                                                  Page      Time* 
                                                                                                      # 
 
   14. AGENDA ITEMS, continued 
Action Item 
OP   ___ 129,000 pound truck routes, District 2 ............................................................108 10:55 
Luekenga      (Resolution on page 205) 
 
Information Items 
OP   ___ 2020 census results ..........................................................................................206 11:10 
Kanownik/Havey 
 
   15. EXECUTIVE SESSION**                                                                                      11:25 
   PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)] 
     LEGAL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(c), (d), (f)] 
 
   16. AGENDA ITEMS, continued 
Action Items 
OP   ___ Initiation of utility accommodation rulemaking ..............................................207 12:45    
Beachler /Hobdey-Sánchez  (Resolution on page 223) 
 
CD   ___ I-84 cost savings  .............................................................................................224 1:00 
Schroeder      (Resolution on page 225) 
 
CD   ___ Transportation Expansion Congestion Mitigation funded projects .................226 1:10 
Schroeder      (Resolution on page 228) 
 
 
   17. ADJOURNMENT (estimated time)                                                                         1:40 
 
 
 
 
**ITD will provide lunch for those in travel status, and it will not be claimed for reimbursement by any 
employee participating in the working lunch. Attendance is mandatory. 
 

4



5



PREVIEW 

April 21, 2021 
Page 1 of 15 

REGULAR MEETING AND DISTRICT FOUR WORKSHOP 
OF THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

April 21-22, 2021 

The Idaho Transportation Board met at 1:00 PM on Wednesday, April 21, 2021 in 
Jerome, Idaho. The following principals were present: 

Bill Moad, Chairman 
Janice B. Vassar, Vice Chair– District 2 
James R. Thompson, Member – District 1 
Julie DeLorenzo, Member – District 3 
Jim Kempton, Member – District 4 
Dwight Horsch, Member – District 5 
Bob Hoff, Member – District 6 
Scott Stokes, Chief Deputy 
Sue S. Higgins, Executive Assistant and Secretary to the Board 

District 4 Workshop. The Board traveled US-93 and I-84 to the potential location of a 
new District 4 Office near that interchange. It continued on US-93 south and local roads to view 
a potential site for an additional river crossing west of Twin Falls and then returned to Jerome. 

Aeronautics Administrator Jeff Marker introduced Chris Pomeroy, who was confirmed as 
an Aeronautics Advisory Board (AAB) member earlier this year. AAB Member Pomeroy 
provided background on himself.  

Chairman Moad welcomed AAB Member Pomeroy and thanked him for serving on this 
important board. 

Consultants presented the findings of an origin-destination study for another river 
crossing in the greater Twin Falls area. The intent of the study was to understand regional travel 
patterns and evaluate new crossing locations. Potential options include four new sites and 
widening the SH-50 Hanson Bridge. The costs for a new crossing range from $235 to $405 
million, and widening the SH-50 Hanson Bridge is estimated at $75 million. The next step would 
be to conduct a Planning and Environmental Linkage Study. 

Discussion followed on this proposal. Because of the time-consuming process and 
expense to construct a major project like this, there was some support to provide short-term 
congestion relief, especially south of the US-93 Perrine Bridge. There was also a concern that 
commercial vehicles may take local roads, which were not designed for that traffic, to avoid the 
congestion in Twin Falls.  

Twin Falls County Commissioner Brent Reinke and Greater Twin Falls Area 
Transportation Committee Chairman Gerald Martens expressed appreciation for the 
Department’s effort to explore another river crossing. The local highway jurisdictions support 
this project and are developing a joint powers agreement to coordinate those efforts. It was also 
noted that the growth in the area is expected to continue to the west of Twin Falls. 

6



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 2 of 15 

Chairman Moad thanked the delegation for the informative presentation and the 
partnership to address transportation in the region. 

WHEREUPON, the Idaho Transportation Board’s regular monthly meeting recessed at 
4:30 PM. 

April 22, 2021 

The Idaho Transportation Board convened at 8:30 AM on Thursday, April 22, 2021 in 
Jerome, Idaho. All members were present. Director Brian W. Ness and Acting Lead Deputy 
Attorney General Tim Thomas were also in attendance. 

Safety Share. District Records Inspector Jamie Vaden emphasized the importance of 
towing safety and proper towing techniques, such as proper weight distribution and ensuring 
lights are attached and working properly. She also stressed the importance of safe, defensive 
driving. 

Chairman Moad thanked District Records Inspector Vaden for the important message. 

Board Minutes. Member DeLorenzo made a motion to approve the minutes of the regular 
Board meeting held on March 18, 2021 as submitted. Vice Chair Vassar seconded the motion 
and it passed unanimously.  

Board Meeting Dates. The following meeting dates and locations were scheduled: 
May 18-19, 2021 – District 2 
June 23-24, 2021 – District 3 
July 21-22, 2021 – District 5 

Consent Items. Vice Chair Vassar made a motion, seconded by Member Horsch, and 
passed unopposed to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO.  WHEREAS, consent calendar items are to be routine, non-controversial, self- 
ITB21-22 explanatory items that can be approved in one motion; and 

WHEREAS, Idaho Transportation Board members have the prerogative to 
remove items from the consent calendar for questions or discussion. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the addition of 
two Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho transit projects to the 
approved Idaho Transportation Investment Program; Highway Infrastructure 
Federal General Funds distribution plan; Forsgren Associates individual task 
agreement extension; consultant agreements; and a contract for award.  

1) Addition of Two Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS)
Transit Projects. On behalf of COMPASS and Valley Regional Transit, staff requests the 
addition of two FY22 transit projects to the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). 
The $1,250,000 Transit-State Street Premium Corridor, Part 1 project will improve infrastructure 

7



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 3 of 15 

and pedestrian connections to public transportation on SH-44 between the City of Eagle and 
downtown Boise. The Federal Transit Administration will provide $1,000,000 and the City of 
Boise will provide the match of $250,000. The Transit-State Street Premium Corridor, Part 2 
project includes the deployment of real-time information, off-board fare payment, raised 
platforms, and pullouts to accommodate all bus stops along this SH-44 corridor. The City of 
Boise will fund this $5,882,000 project. 
 
 2) Highway Infrastructure Federal General Funds Distribution Plan. ITD received 
additional Highway Infrastructure Federal General Funds in the amount of $4,624,030. Staff 
proposes taking the Transportation Management Area’s share of $567,321 off the top, splitting 
12.6% of the remaining amount equally between Urban and Rural Local Public Agencies, and 
directing the rest to ITD. Staff also recommends requiring a 7.34% match for these funds.   
 
 3) Forsgren Associates Individual Task Agreement Extension. Staff requests approval for 
Forsgren Associates to exceed the consultant individual task agreement limit of $500,000 for 
consultants selected from the term agreement list, up to $540,000. The consultant was selected in 
2018 for project alternatives analysis and materials investigation services for $119,000 for key 
#19622, Bannock Street in the City of Malad. In 2019 it was selected to prepare preliminary 
design through Plans, Specifications, and Estimate services for $371,000. The additional $50,000 
in services would be to provide the final Plans, Specifications, and Estimates package, record of 
survey and engineer of record services.   
 
 4) Request to Approve Consultant Agreements. In accordance with Board Policy 4001, 
staff requests approval to exceed the $1 million agreement limit for key #19916 – US-95, 
Labrosse Hill Street to Alderson Lane, Bonners Ferry, District 1 for additional services of about 
$l.07 million; key #20574 – SH-44, Star Road to SH-16, Ada County, District 3 for design 
services of approximately $1.3 million; key #20788 – SH-16, I-84 to US-20/26 and SH-44, Ada 
and Canyon Counties, District 3 for design services around $16.5 million; key #12315 – STC 
5743, Kidd Island Road, Worley Highway District for construction, engineering and inspection 
services of approximately $1.1 million; and key #13476 – SH-44, SH-55 Intersection 
Improvement, Eagle, District 3 for design services of approximately $1.78 million. 
 
 5) Contract for Award. The low bid on key #13445 – STC-4715, Clear Creek Bridge was 
more than ten percent over the engineer’s estimate, requiring justification. The Pre-stress Deck 
Bulb Tee Girder and Mobilization Items accounted for the majority of difference between the 
low bid and engineer’s estimate. The Local Highway Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC) 
considered the rural setting, cost inflation, and hauling costs for bridge items for the project; 
however, it did not fully anticipate the high level of inflation and current market conditions. This 
bridge project addresses a significant structural deficiency and safety issue. The project sponsor, 
Idaho County, is prepared to provide the additional funding. LHTAC does not believe that re-
advertising the project would result in lower bids, and recommends awarding the project. Low 
bidder: Cannon Builders Inc. - $1,875,566. 
 

Information Items. Chief Operations Officer Dan McElhinney explained the displaced 
left turn intersection design, which was originally planned for the SH-55 (Eagle Road) and SH-
44 (State Street) intersection near Olde Town Eagle. Due to public comments expressing concern 

8



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 4 of 15 

with that rarely used left turns centerline crossover design, a detailed owner operator assessment 
of traffic safety, geometrics, driver confusion, all weather mobility and overall risks comparison 
was completed early in construction. Upon completion, in coordination with local partners and 
the project team, consultant staff updated the intersection design timely to a more traditional 
widening lane configuration within the same project footprint to address displaced left turn 
wrong way safety findings, challenging truck movements, community impacts, and to provide 
similar congestion relief with the updated lanes layout at opening and beyond 2040. The bid had 
been let on the initial construction project, so it will be modified with the lane reconfiguration 
and reduced contract items through change orders efficiently, keeping ahead of on-site work in 
teamwork with the contractor for completion this year. 

 
1) Contract Awards and Advertisements. Key #20034 – SH-1, US-95 to Canada Border 

Sealcoat, District 1. Low bidder: Knife River Corporation - Mountain West - $685,000. 
 
 Key #20218 – I-90, FY21 Bridge Repairs, District 1. Low bidder: Razz Construction Inc. 
- $3,209,834. 
 
 Key #20508 – SH-55, Donnelly to Deinhard, District 3. Low bidder: Sunroc Corporation 
- $3,245,347. 
 
 Key #21999 – STP-8463, Greenhurst Road; Sunnybrook to Canyon Street, Nampa. Low 
bidder: Hawkeye Builders Inc. - $818,567. 
 
 Key #22243 SIA – SH-71, Snake River Bridge to Junction US-95 Guardrail, District 3. 
Low bidder: Railco LLC - $632,424. 
 
 Key #22424 SIA – US-20, FY21 District 6 Road Closure Gates. Low bidder: Mountain 
West Electric - $137,000. 
 
 Key #22422 SIA – I-15, US-20, SH-28, SH-33, US-20/26, and US-20/26/93, FY21 
District 6 Mill and Overlay. Low bidder: Knife River Corporation - Mountain West - 258,300 
square feet. 
 
 Key #22619 - I-84, Ustick Road Overpass, District 3. Low bidder: Cannon Builders - 
$13,499,645. 
 
 Key #20689 – SH-11, Grangemont Road to Headquarters, District 2. Low bidder: Knife 
River Corporation – Mountain West - $3,035,000. 
 

Key #22223 – SH-33, Milepost 100 to Beginning Realignment, District 6. Low bidder: 
H-K Contractors Inc. - $12,969,888. 
 

The list of projects currently being advertised was provided. 
 

 2) Professional Services Agreements and Term Agreement Work Tasks Report. From 
February 25 through March 31, 30 new professional services agreements and work tasks were 

9



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 5 of 15 

processed, totaling $9,993,677. Seven supplemental agreements to existing professional services 
agreements were processed during this period in the amount of $240,162. 
 

3) State FY21 Financial Statements. Revenues to the State Highway Account from all 
state sources were ahead of projections by 12.2% as of February 28. Receipts from the Highway 
Distribution Account were $19.1 million more than forecast; although the forecast was lowered 
due to COVID. State revenues to the State Aeronautics Fund were below projections by 11.4%, 
or $224,000. Expenditures were within planned budgets. Personnel costs had savings of $3.7 
million or 4.4% due to vacancies and timing between a position becoming vacant and being 
filled. Contract construction cash expenditures were $22.3 million during the month. 
 

The balance of the long term investments was $111.6 million at the end of February. 
These funds are obligated against construction projects and encumbrances. The long term 
investments plus the cash balance of $107.3 million includes reserves to mitigate the impact of 
COVID on FY21 revenue. Expenditures in the Strategic Initiatives Program Fund through 
February were $16.4 million. Sales tax deposits into the Transportation Expansion and 
Congestion Mitigation Fund of $13.6 million were ahead of the same time a year ago by 
approximately $1.5 million. Expenditures in this fund were $27.7 million year-to-date. The 
federal CARES Act provided $27.3 million for public transportation. Expenditures totaled $4 
million year-to-date.  
 

4) Monthly Reporting of Federal Formula Program Funding through March. Idaho 
received obligation authority of $367.3 million through September 30 via an Appropriations Act 
signed in December. This corresponds to $364.2 million with match after a reduction for 
prorated indirect costs. It includes $425,527 of Highway Infrastructure General Funds carried 
over from last year in the Transportation Management Area, $71 million COVID Relief, and 
$17.1 million of FY21 Highway Infrastructure General Funds for bridges. An extension to the 
federal Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act was signed in October 2020. Idaho 
received apportionments of $403.4 million. Obligation authority is currently 91.1% of 
apportionments. Of the $364.2 million allotted, $174.1 million remains. 
 
 Adopt-A-Highway Presentation. Member Kempton thanked Kippes and Bergin Attorneys 
at Law for participating in the Adopt-A-Highway Program. The group has been picking up litter 
along a two-mile section of US-30 since 2016. 
 
 Monthly Report on Department Activities. Director Ness reported on several federal 
activities. The administration’s infrastructure plan is an eight-year, $2.3 trillion package with 
$621 billion directed to transportation. The FAST Act was extended to September 30, 2021. 
Idaho’s priorities for reauthorization are to maintain the highway program formula, increase 
funding for transportation, reduce rules and increase state flexibility, include a rural set aside 
with new non-formula programs, and exempt rural states from requirements for large 
metropolitan areas. President Biden is recommending a $25.6 billion budget for the U.S. 
Department of Transportation in FY22, which is about a 14% increase or $300 million more than 
the FY21 budget. 
 

10



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 6 of 15 

 At the state level, Director Ness said the legislature is still considering a transportation 
revenue package that would allow bonding of approximately $1.3 to $1.6 billion. The annual 
Program Delivery Conference is being conducted in a hybrid method. Each District will host a 
session so employees from that District can attend in person and others can participate virtually. 
He commended the team that developed the conference and believes the first three sessions have 
been successful. 
 
 Regarding the GARVEE Program, Chief Deputy Stokes said the I-84, Middleton Bridge 
replacement project in Nampa is nearing completion. Bids were opened on the next widening 
project, Franklin Road Interchange to Karcher Interchange, with the low bid coming in 
approximately 20% below the engineer’s estimate. He recognized LHTAC Administrator Jeff 
Miles, who will be retiring later this month. Administrator Miles has been an excellent partner; 
although Chief Deputy Stokes is confident that Deputy Administrator Laila Kral, who was 
promoted to the Administrator position, will continue the excellent working relationship between 
the two agencies. 
 

Chairman Moad thanked Director Ness and Chief Deputy Stokes for the reports. 
 
 Legislative Report. Governmental Affairs Manager (GAM) Mollie McCarty summarized 
staff’s commendable efforts to monitor legislation and respond to inquiries. The majority of 
topics relate to the Division of Motor Vehicles. The main transportation revenue proposal is 
awaiting action in the Senate. Some of the other legislation being monitored is the third party 
electronic vehicle credential program and increasing fees for sheriffs’ offices to perform driver’s 
license transactions.  
 
 Proposed Legislative Ideas – 2022 Legislative Session. GAM McCarty presented three 
legislative proposals for 2022, related to the driver license surrender requirement, Interagency 
Working Group membership changes, and the one-year commercial learner’s permit. Ideas must 
be submitted to the Governor’s Office in June. 
 
 Member Horsch questioned extending the commercial learners permit from 180 days to 
one year. Chairman Moad suggested having the Trucking Advisory Council review the proposal. 
 
 Chairman Moad thanked GAM McCarty for the presentations. 
 
 GARVEE Bond Series 2021 Sale Update. Controller Dave Tolman said the Department 
refinanced the callable portion of the Series 2011A balance of $60.9 million. This action should 
result in savings of approximately $15 million. There was a lot of interest in the new bonds for 
$158.5 million. The weighted average is 3.2%. In response to a question by Chairman Moad, 
Controller Tolman said he believes the bonding market should be favorable through the year. 
 
 Chairman Moad thanked Controller Tolman for the update. 
 
 Public Transportation Relief Funding Update. Ron Duran, Public Transportation 
Manager (PTM), summarized the Federal Relief funds awarded to ITD for public transportation. 
The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act provided funding for 

11



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 7 of 15 

the 5310 Enhanced Mobility of the Elderly and Disabled Program, with $141,967 dedicated to 
Small Urban and $81,468 to Rural. The American Rescue Plan provided $558,985 to the 5311 
Formula Grant for Rural Areas; $91,091 for 5311(b)(3) Rural Transit Assistance Program; 
$1,286,271 for 5311(f) Intercity; $141,970 for 5310 Enhanced Mobility of the Elderly and 
Disabled (Small Urban); and $81,470 for 5310 Enhanced Mobility of the Elderly and Disabled 
(Rural) programs.  
 
 Chairman Moad thanked PTM Duran for the presentation. 
 
 Hoodoo Meadows Management. Jeff Marker, Aeronautics Administrator (AA), 
summarized last month’s presentation on the Department’s authority to open, close, or accept 
management of a state operated airfield. He has been working with partners on the potential 
acquisition of the Hoodoo Meadows airstrip, which is in the wilderness area west of Salmon. The 
Forest Service facility has not been operational since the 1980s and is in need of maintenance.  
 

During the public comment period last month, 184 comments were submitted in support 
of the proposal and five opposed, according to AA Marker. Additionally, the Wilderness Watch 
non-profit organization generated over 1,000 email form letters opposing reestablishing this 
airfield. At its meeting on April 1, the Aeronautics Advisory Board (AAB) unanimously voted to 
recommend approval for ITD management of the Hoodoo Meadows airstrip. The written 
recommendation from the AAB in support of the Division of Aeronautics managing and 
maintaining the airstrip is required in Board Policy 4065 Acquisition and Closure of State 
Airports. The criteria to be considered is the cost, safety, emergency preparedness, public 
opinion, benefit/detriment, alternative plans, and proximity. 
 
 Member Hoff spoke in support of this proposal, noting Idaho’s unique system of 
backcountry airstrips. He believes Hoodoo Meadows airstrip will provide a safe option in an 
emergency and additional access to the wilderness and backcountry. Member Hoff 
acknowledged the concerns, especially noise, but believes the benefits outweigh the detriments. 
 
 Member Kempton concurred with Member Hoff. He also believes it is a viable 
emergency strip for qualified pilots, but added that the elevation of 8,200 feet may be a challenge 
for some pilots. 
 
 Member Horsch expressed support for the state’s management of the airstrip because it 
provides access to the wilderness. In response to Member Horsch’s question, AA Marker said he 
believes the Hoodoo Meadows airstrip would be used by federal agencies to fight fires.  
 
 Member Hoff made a motion, seconded by Member Kempton, and passed unopposed to 
approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, the Idaho Department of Fish and Game, in coordination with the  
ITB21-23 United States Forest Service, recommended the Idaho Division of Aeronautics 

accept management of Hoodoo Meadows Airstrip in Lemhi County; and 
 

12



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 8 of 15 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2020 the United States Forest Service issued an 
environmental categorical exclusion and authorized restoration of Hoodoo 
Meadows Airstrip into its original dimensions; and 

 
WHEREAS, Title 21-106 of Idaho Code authorizes the Idaho Transportation 
Department to establish, operate, and maintain state-owned airports; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Aeronautics Advisory Board at its April 1, 2021 meeting 
evaluated cost, safety, emergency preparedness, public opinion, benefit versus 
detriment, alternative plan and proximity to other airstrips of managing Hoodoo 
Meadows Airstrip; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department Office of Communication 
collected public input between March 15 and March 29, 2021 regarding the 
Department accepting management of and reestablishing functional conditions in 
coordination with the United States Forest Service at Hoodoo Meadows Airstrip; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Aeronautics Advisory Board, having completed its 
evaluation, unanimously voted to recommend approval to the Idaho 
Transportation Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Idaho Transportation Board Policy 4065 
Acquisition and Closure of State Airports, the Aeronautics Advisory Board and 
Division of Aeronautics Administrator provided a written letter with their 
evaluation and associated approval recommendation to the Transportation Board, 
as shown as Exhibit #534, which is made a part hereof with like effect.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the Division of 
Aeronautics to manage and maintain Hoodoo Meadows Airstrip and to perform 
the necessary maintenance to reestablish an airfield safe for aircraft operations. 

 
 Chairman Moad thanked AA Marker for his work on the Hoodoo Meadows airstrip. 
 
 Administrative Policy 5560 Personal Protective Equipment and ITD Issued Clothing. 
Employee Safety Manager (ESM) Randy Danner presented a new administrative policy, 5560 
Personal Protective Equipment and ITD Issued Clothing. It addresses authorizing expenditures 
and requirements for employees to use personal protective equipment and ITD issued clothing. 
The Employee Safety Manual, which is referenced in the policy, provides specific details on the 
equipment and clothing. 
 
 Vice Chair Vassar made a motion, seconded by Member DeLorenzo, and passed 
unopposed to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO.  WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board is charged with setting policies for 
ITB21-24  the Idaho Transportation Department; and 
 

13



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 9 of 15 

WHEREAS, the Department has no policy outlining authorization for expenditure 
and requirements for employees to use personal protective clothing and ITD 
issued clothing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board concurs with new  
Administrative Policy 5560 Personal Protective Equipment and ITD Issued 
Clothing. 

 
 Chairman Moad thanked ESM Danner for his work on this policy. 
 

Zero Fatalities Award. Highway Safety Manager (HSM) John Tomlinson reported that 
there have been 38 highway fatalities to date this year, compared to 34 at this time in 2020. 
Because traffic counts were significantly reduced last year due to COVID-19, he provided a 
comparison to the fatalities to date in 2019, which was 52. He also summarized a new tool on the 
website that provides extensive crash data. There are a number of filters, such as location, 
weather, speed limits, and contributing factors. 

 
In response to Chairman Moad’s question on whether this tool can provide information 

on commercial vehicles by weight classification, HSM Tomlinson responded in the negative. 
Member DeLorenzo asked if it may be feasible to include the weight classification in the future. 
HSM Tomlinson believes that may be possible. Member Horsch suggested reviewing the tool’s 
speed limit data to help establish proper speed limits. 

 
HSM Tomlinson recognized Camas County for recording zero highway fatalities in 2020, 

adding that this was the fourth year in a row that the County had zero fatalities. He congratulated 
the County sheriff and commissioners, Idaho State Police, and the Fairfield maintenance crew 
for their efforts and dedication to highway safety. 

 
District 4 Engineer (DE) Jesse Barrus added his appreciation to the maintenance 

employees for their commendable service. 
 
 Engaged Driving Awareness Month. April is national Distracted Driving Awareness 
Month; however, Idaho observes Engaged Driving Awareness Month, according to HSM 
Tomlinson. He reported on activities to promote engaged driving, including two new personas 
for the Shift Campaign and providing information, tools, and posters to law enforcement 
agencies to help educate motorists on the hands-free law. 
 
 The Board commended HSM Tomlinson for his efforts and believes the Shift Campaign 
videos are impactful. Member DeLorenzo expressed support for additional education in schools, 
particularly on bicycling. 
 
 Chairman Moad thanked HSM Tomlinson for the presentations and congratulated Camas 
County and the maintenance crew for zero fatalities last year. 
 
 Board Policy 4048 Freight Advisory Committee Update. Freight Program Manager 
(FPM) Scott Luekenga presented revisions to Board Policy 4048 Freight Advisory Committee 

14



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 10 of 15 

(FAC) and the corresponding Administrative Policy 5048. Major changes include updating the 
purpose of the FAC, revising the Committee’s membership and ex-officio members, and 
designating the FPM as the liaison to the FAC. 
 
 Vice Chair Vassar made a motion, seconded by Member DeLorenzo, and passed 
unopposed to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, Idaho Code 40-307 authorizes the Idaho Transportation Board to  
ITB21-25 establish internal structures deemed necessary for the administration of its duties.  

Under this authority, the Board has created the Freight Advisory Committee 
(FAC) to advise and assist the Idaho Transportation Department on issues related 
to the movement of freight in, out, and through the state of Idaho; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board established a FAC to serve as a forum for freight 
stakeholders, the private sector, and government agencies to advise the 
Department on freight transportation needs, transportation policy, transportation 
projects, and project funding in developing a safe, efficient, and connected freight 
transportation system supporting the economic vitality of Idaho; and 

 
WHEREAS, Department staff began the process of updating Board Policy 4048 
Freight Advisory Committee in October of 2020. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board has reviewed 
Administrative Policy 5048 Freight Advisory Committee and adopts the updated 
Board Policy 4048 Freight Advisory Committee. 

 
 Galloway Road Underpass Repair, District 3. DE 3 Caleb Lakey requested $500,000 of 
FY21 Board Unallocated Funds to repair the I-84, Galloway Road underpass. A commercial 
vehicle hauling a piece of equipment struck the girders over the westbound lane in February. 
Four girders were damaged, but only one needs to be replaced.  
 
 Member DeLorenzo believes this is an emergency and an appropriate use of the Board 
Unallocated Account. 
 
 Member DeLorenzo moved to approve the following resolution, seconded by Member 
Horsch, and passed unanimously: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, it is in the public’s interest for the Idaho Transportation Department  
ITB21-26 to publish and accomplish a current, realistic, and fiscally constrained five year 

Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board is charged with considering the 
safety and convenience of the highway users; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the intent of the Board to effectively utilize all available 
federal, state, local, and private capital investment funding; and 

 

15



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 11 of 15 

WHEREAS, Department staff has inspected the I-84, Galloway Road bridge and 
it is in need of significant girder repair; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department is prepared to incorporate this project into the 
approved ITIP. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that project I-84, Galloway Underpass 
Repair be added to the ITIP at a cost of approximately $500,000 using FY21 
Board Unallocated Funds; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board approves the staff request to adjust 
the program and amend the approved FY21-27 Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program accordingly. 
 

 Chairman Moad thanked DE 3 Lakey for the presentation. 
 

US-20, Ashton to Targhee Pass, District 6. District 6 Engineering Manager (EM) Karen 
Hiatt said the US-20 corridor in District 6 is the primary route for access to Yellowstone 
National Park. It has a high seasonal traffic volume consisting of a mix of recreational traffic, 
trucks, and tourism. This has resulted in major safety concerns. To address the safety and 
mobility concerns and to modernize and update the roadway structure, EM Hiatt requested 
approval to add a Planning and Environmental Linkage Study to the Program. This study will 
determine alternatives and alignments, identify impacts, identify potential construction phasing 
of improvements, and include community outreach activities. The project, estimated to cost 
between $3 and $5 million, would be funded in three phases, starting in FY21. 
 
 Member Hoff expressed support for this project, noting the significant increase in traffic 
in the corridor. 
 
 Member Hoff made a motion, seconded by Member Horsch, and passed unanimously to 
approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board supports the Idaho Transportation 
ITB21- 27 Department mission of safety, mobility, and economic opportunity; and 
 

WHEREAS, Board Policy 4031 Early Development Program allows, upon 
request, the addition of projects into the Early Development Program of the Idaho 
Transportation Investment Program (ITIP); and 

 
WHEREAS, US-20 serves as a primary corridor for access to Yellowstone 
National Park, one of the nation’s most visited parks; and 

 
WHEREAS, US-20 has a very high seasonal traffic volume with people visiting 
the park and surrounding area from other countries and nearby states; and 

 
WHEREAS, this corridor has seen an increase in crashes due to an increase in 
volume and mix of recreation traffic, trucks, and tourism; and 

16



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 12 of 15 

WHEREAS, there is a need to address the safety and mobility concerns and to 
modernize and update the roadway structure; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department has recognized a need for extensive data collection, 
agency coordination, alternatives screening, environmental analysis, and public 
outreach effort through a Planning and Environmental Linkage (PEL) Study to 
narrow possible alternatives for this complex project; and 

 
WHEREAS, having a completed PEL Study provides flexibility and reduces the 
schedule and timing risks associated with complex projects. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the FY21–27 ITIP be amended to 
include the US-20, Ashton to Targhee Pass PEL Study in the Early Development 
Program at a cost of up to $5 million, with funds being offset from $1 million ST-
COVID Mitigation Set-aside funds, FY22 $3 million District 6 ITIP balance, and 
FY23 $1 million District 6 ITIP balance. 
 

 Chairman Moad thanked EM Hiatt for the presentation. 
 
 SH-75 Spur Relinquishment, District 4. District 4 Design/Construction Engineer (D/CE) 
Walter Burnside requested approval to transfer the 3.6 mile SH-75 Spur to Blaine County. The 
route begins at the intersection with SH-75 in Ketchum and ends in Sun Valley; although the 
route continues as a Forest Service road. The secondary route is not a high priority for the 
District, and discussions have been underway for some time to relinquish it. Because the state 
cannot relinquish a route to a municipality with less than 5,000 population, staff has been 
negotiating with Blaine County, which is receptive to assuming jurisdiction. A public hearing 
was conducted with general support for the proposal. D/CE Burnside added that the Board 
Subcommittee on State Highway System Adjustments has reviewed the proposal and 
recommends relinquishing the route. 
 
 Member Kempton made a motion and seconded by Member Vassar to approve the 
following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, State Highway 75 Spur exists entirely within Blaine County,  
ITB21-28 beginning from mile point 0.00 at SH-75 main route to mile point 3.60, the end of 

the Spur; and 
 

WHEREAS, Blaine County has agreed to assume control, jurisdiction of, and 
responsibility for, in full and every respect the former SH-75 Spur within county 
boundaries; and 

 
WHEREAS, Blaine County has accepted a Road Relinquishment and Transfer of 
Ownership Agreement for SH-75 Spur in a public meeting and recorded the 
approved resolution to accept ownership on March 3, 2021. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the SH-75 Spur in its entirety, be 
and herby is removed from the State Highway System and relinquished to Blaine 

17



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 13 of 15 

County effective this date, as shown in Exhibit #535, which is made a part hereof 
with like effect. 

 
 Member Horsch asked why the state wants to relinquish this route, as the Sun Valley area 
is nationally renowned. Because the Spur is a secondary route, D/CE Burnside believes the local 
highway jurisdictions will provide better maintenance than the state provides. He also believes 
the locals want to control the route, including access. Member Kempton added that Blaine 
County supports the transaction and will be able to address development better. 
 
 The motion passed unopposed. 
 
 SH-75 Spur Relinquishment Funding, District 4. D/CE Burnside requested the addition of 
the SH-75 Spur Relinquishment and Transfer project to the ITIP. As part of the agreement to 
transfer the SH-75 Spur to Blaine County, ITD agreed to provide $4,180,000 for rehabilitating 
the road and maintenance. In anticipation of this, the local public agencies have been working to 
design, bid, and hopefully build a project this year. Using funds from COVID-19 mitigation set-
asides would allow the expeditious transfer of the route and funds. 
 
 Member Kempton made a motion, seconded by Vice Chair Vassar, and passed 
unanimously to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, the relinquishment and transfer of the SH-75 Spur from mile point  
ITB21-29 0.00 to mile point 3.60 has been approved by the Idaho Transportation Board; 

and   
 

WHEREAS, Blaine County has accepted a Road Relinquishment and Transfer of 
Ownership Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department is prepared to incorporate this 
project into the approved Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP).  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the SH-75 Spur Relinquishment and 
Transfer be added to the ITIP at a cost of $4,180,000 using ST COVID Mitigation 
Set-aside Funds; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Idaho Transportation Board approves the 
staff to adjust the program and amend the approved FY21-27 Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program accordingly.   
 

 Chairman Moad thanked D/CE Burnside for the presentations. 
 
 District 4 Annual Report. DE 4 Barrus reported on safety, including activities related to 
last year’s COVID-19 pandemic and a five-state work zone workshop. Efforts are underway to 
acquire additional automated external defibrillators and to ensure employees are trained on the 
devices and have them readily available if needed, especially when working in remote areas. 
 

18



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 14 of 15 

 DE 4 Barrus highlighted 2020 construction projects. Staff delivered 100% of its FY22 
projects on time and kept the roads clear of ice and snow 83% of the time this past winter, which 
exceeded the goal of 73%. Regarding partnerships, the District and Idaho Association of General 
Contractors received awards for several projects, and the District is providing a park and ride lot 
for Mountain Rides as it establishes medical services between the Wood River Valley and Twin 
Falls. 
 
 Facility improvements and Americans with Disabilities Act upgrades are underway at the 
office in Shoshone; although a new facility is still being explored. The Division of Military 
signed a lease to construct a facility on ITD-owned land southwest of the I-84 and US-93 
interchange. It is preparing the ground and will be running utilities to the site. In closing, DE 4 
Barrus praised his staff for their efforts and accomplishments.  
 

The Board commended DE 4 Barrus for the excellent report and for his leadership. 
 
Executive Session on Legal and Personnel Issues. Vice Chair Vassar made a motion to 

meet in executive session at 12:37 PM to discuss personnel issues as authorized in Idaho Code 
Section 74-206 (b) and legal issues as authorized in Idaho Code Section 74-206 (c) and (f). 
Member DeLorenzo seconded the motion and it passed 6-0 by individual roll call vote.  
 

The discussions on legal matters related to the acquisition of property and operations. The 
discussion on personnel matters related to the performance of an employee. 
 
 The Board came out of executive session at 1:35 PM. 
 
 Administrative Settlement over $200,000. Right of Way Manager Justin Pond said Board 
Policy 4005 Management of Department-owned Property requires Board approval for 
administrative settlements exceeding $200,000. He requested an administrative settlement, which 
is an offer in excess of the approved just compensation used under certain circumstances to 
motivate amicable settlement with an owner and avoid recourse to legal proceedings, for the US-
20/26, Chinden, I-84 to Middleton Road, key #22165 project in District 3.  
 
 Vice Chair Vassar made a motion, seconded by Member DeLorenzo, and passed 
unanimously to approve the following resolution: 
RES. NO. WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department is acquiring right-of-way 
ITB21- 30 along US-20/26 for Project No. A022(165), key #22165; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Department and the property owner have engaged in good faith 
negotiations; and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties agree that additional payment is justified in order for the 
Department to fairly compensate the property owner.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Idaho Transportation Board 
approves an administrative settlement in the amount of $254,422.00. 

 

19



PREVIEW 

April 22, 2021 
Page 15 of 15 

 Chairman Moad thanked Right of Way Manager Pond for the presentation. 
 
 
 WHEREUPON, the Idaho Transportation Board’s regular monthly meeting adjourned at 
1:40 PM. 
 

   _________________________________ 
BILL MOAD, Chairman 

Idaho Transportation Board 
 
Read and Approved 
___________, 2021 
____________, Idaho 

20



21



 
 

   
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

 
RESOLUTION FOR CONSENT ITEMS 

 
Pages 23 - 40 

 
 
 
 

RES. NO.   WHEREAS, consent calendar items are to be routine, non-controversial, self- 
ITB21-31 explanatory items that can be approved in one motion; and 
 

WHEREAS, Idaho Transportation Board members have the prerogative to 
remove items from the consent calendar for questions or discussion. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the state 
institution road improvement project; the addition of Local SMA-7674, Mountain 
View Road, Moscow; the addition of Bridge Local, 97th South, Idaho Canal 
Bridge, Bonneville County; McMillen Jacobs individual task agreement 
extension; consultant agreements; and a contract for rejection.  
 
 

 
 

22



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 18 & 19, 2021  

Consent Item   Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed  N/A 
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
LSS 

      
      

Nestor Fernandez, P.E. Mobility Services Engineer NF  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Steve Spoor Maintenance Services Manager SS  

 
Subject 
State Institution Road Improvement 
Key Number District Route Number 

            Statewide 

Background Information 

Board Policy 4045 “State Institution Road Improvement” allocates $30,000 annually for the construction, 
alteration, repair and maintenance of roadways in, through, and around the grounds of state institutions.  
The Department of Administration, Division of Public Works (DPW), will solicit projects and acquires the 
Governor’s endorsement of projects prior to submitting the projects to the Idaho Transportation Board for 
consideration. 
  
  
For FY-21, the DPW recommended project for funding is a North Idaho College (NIC) project.  The 
project is for ongoing maintenance and repair on parking lots serving campus buildings.  The total project 
cost is expected to be $1,500,000.  FY-21 Supplemental and FY-22 funding for this project totals 
$957,326.  The additional $30,000 ITD funding will bring the total funding to $987,326. 
  
  
In accordance with Idaho Code 40-310(14) this request is being made.  If approved, DPW will receive the 
funds and administer or cause to be administered these improvement projects.  The Governor has 
submitted the attached letter in support of this project. 

 

Recommendations 
Approval to transfer additional funding in the amount of $30,000 to the DPW for the proposed project. 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

23



24



25



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed        
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
LSS 

      
      

Blake Rindlisbacher Chief Engineer        
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Laila Kral LHTAC Administrator        

 
Subject 

Add LOCAL SMA-7674, Mountain View RD, Moscow 

Key Number District Route Number 

13014 2 LOCAL SMA-7674 

Background Information 
 

The purpose of this consent item is to request the addition of the LOCAL, SMA-7674, MOUNTAIN VIEW 
RD, MOSCOW to FY 2021 of the program, at the request of the Local Highway Technical Assistance 
Council (LHTAC), per policy 5011 Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). 
 
This project is included in the Approved ITIP for construction in FY2024. The Board passed a resolution 
in the March Board meeting to authorize the use of the COVID Relief and Bridge Federal General funding 
package. 
 
 The Urban Committee approved Mountain View Road project in Moscow to be advanced and 
constructed in FY2021 using these funds on April 8, 2021. The City of Moscow is in support of this 
advancement, see attached letter.   
  
Staff requests that the project be advanced to FY 2021 of the approved FY 2021-2027 ITIP.  

 

Recommendations 
Approve the advancement of the LOCAL, SMA-7674, MOUNTAIN VIEW RD MOSCOW, Key No. 13014, 
at a cost of $3,287,000 from FY 2024 to FY 2021 of the approved FY 2021 – 2027 ITIP.  

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

26



AH
t+eavt of the Arts

Bill Lambert
Mayor

Art Bettge
Council President

Sandra Kelly
Council Vice-President

Maureen Laflin
Council Member

Brandy Sullivan
Council President

Gina Taruscio
Council Member

Anne Zabala
Council Member

Apnl20,202l

Mr. JeffMiles, P.E.
Local Highway Technical Assistance Council
3330 West Grace Street
Boise ID 83703

Dear Mr. Miles:

I want to thank you and the Local Highway Technical Assistance Council
(LHTAC) for your work on the City of Moscow's Mountain View project.

It is my understanding that LHTAC and the Idaho Transportation Board have
identified funding that would allow construction of the project to be advanced from
the cunent program year of 2024 to the 2021 construction season. The City of
Moscow is appreciative of this opportunity and supports the proposed
advancement. City staff have completed the right-of-way acquisitions, coordinated
the necessary utility relocations, and has transmitted our required local match to
ITD to ensure that the project can advance in an expeditious manner.

Thank you again for all of your assistance on this important project and we are
looking forward to working with LHTAC on another great project.

Y,

(]t'1--
Bill Lambert
Mayor

Gary J. Riedner
City Supervisor

Gary J. Riedner, City Supervisor
Bill Belknap, Deputy City Supervisor, Community Planning and Design

City of Moscow, City Hall
ofo Gary J. Riedner, City Supervisor

206 East 3rd Street
P.O. Box 9203

Moscow lD 83843
Phone (208) 883-7000

Fax (208) 883-7018

Website: www.ci,moscow.id.us
Hearing lmpaired (208) 883-7019

@
\1C

27



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS Blake Rindlisbacher Chief Engineer 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Laila Kral LHTAC Administrator 

Subject 

Add BRIDGE LOCAL, 97th SOUTH, IDAHO CANAL BRIDGE, BONNEVILLE CO. 

Key Number District Route Number 

19530 6 BR-LOCAL, STC-6707 

Background Information 

The purpose of this consent item is to request the addition of the LOCAL BRIDGE, 97TH SOUTH, IDAHO 
CANAL BRIDGE, BONNEVILLE CO. to FY 2021 of the program, at the request of the Local Highway 
Technical Assistance Council (LHTAC), per policy 5011 Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). 

This project is included in the Approved ITIP for construction in Preliminary Development. The Board 
passed a resolution in the March Board meeting to authorize the use of the COVID Relief and Bridge 
Federal General funding package.  

This project is ready to bid and can be companioned with LHTAC Bridge Bundling projects to be bid this 
fall. LHTAC is requesting the 97th South, Idaho Canal Bridge project in Bonneville County to be advanced 
and constructed in FY2021 using these Bridge Federal General funds. Bonneville County is in support of 
this advancement and is willing to submit the required local match for the project, see attached letter. 

Bonneville Metropolitan Planning Organization, BMPO, is in agreement and processing a Transportation 
Improvement Plan amendment advancing this project in their TIP.  

Staff requests that the project be advanced to FY 2021 of the approved FY 2021-2027 ITIP. 

Recommendations 
Approve the advancement of the LOCAL BRIDGE, 97TH SOUTH, IDAHO CANAL BRIDGE, 
BONNEVILLE CO., Key No. 19530, at a cost of $1,389,000 from Preliminary Development to FY 2021 
of the approved FY 2021 – 2027 ITIP.  

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

28



BONNEVILLE COUNTY 
Public Works Department 

 
LANCE BATES, P.E. 605 NORTH CAPITAL AVE., 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR  IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 83402 
E-MAIL: lbates@co.bonneville.id.us 
  
SHANE REMER, P.L.S.  PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
ASSISTANT PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR PHONE: (208) 529-1290 
E-MAIL: sremer@co.bonneville.id.us FAX:  (208) 529-1295 
 
GREER SWEARINGEN WEB SITE:  www.co.bonneville.id.us/  
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY  
E-MAIL:  gswearingen@co.bonneville.id.us  
 
 
 
 
 
Wayne Herbel, P.E. 
Federal-aid Engineer 
Local Highway Technical Assistance Council 
3330 Grace Street 
Boise, ID  83703 
 
Mr. Herbel; 
 
Bonneville County has been told of an opportunity to move the 97th South Bridge Project, KN19530, 
from its currently programmed construction date to FY2021.  This advancement should allow significant 
cost savings if both the 97th South and 121st South Bridges can be bid and constructed at the same time.  
These cost savings will benefit both LHTAC and the County in the long term.  Bonneville County 
understands the financial understanding of providing the match money for this project, and have the 
financial reserves to do so.  The commissioners agreed to this process on April 21st at their regular Road 
& Bridge meeting and asked that I inform LHTAC. 
 
Please consider this our request to advance KN19530, 97th South Bridge to FY2021. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
Lance Bates, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
Bonneville County Public Works 

29



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date May  27, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS Monica Crider, PE Contracting Services Engineer MC 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Caleb Lakey, PE District 3 Engineer CL 

Subject 
McMillen Jacobs Individual Task Agreement Extension 
Key Number District Route Number 

01004 3 SH-55, Smith's Ferry to Round Valley 

Background Information 

The purpose of this Board Agenda Item is to request approval to exceed the consultant individual task 
agreement limit of $500,000 for consultants selected from the term agreement list set by Board Policy 
4001 for McMillen Jacobs on the SH-55, Smith’s Ferry to Round Valley Project, Key No. 01004. 

In May of 2020, McMillen Jacobs was initially selected from the term agreement list with a Request for 
Information (RFI) to provide general blasting consultation, review of blasting-related contract submittals, 
augmented on-site inspection of blasting operations and coordination with ITD staff for the SH-55, Smiths 
Ferry to Round Valley Project for $295,968.00 

In the Fall of 2020 cut 9 was blasted and excavated according to the lines and grades called out on the 
contract plans.  Post blast inspection by Construction Engineering and Inspection (CE&I) crews reported 
a stable face in accordance to Subsection 205.03.H.  No additional specialized inspection was required 
per contract specifications.  The contract calls for Rock Anchors to be installed in these slopes.  The 
contract does not list any construction sequencing requirements for the installation of these anchors.  
The location of these anchors are not directly tied to any specific geologic conditions, and rather seem to 
be based on an arbitrary uniform grid spacing.  The contractor determined based on their Critical Path 
Method (CPM) schedule that these anchors would be best installed in the spring of 2021. 

On March 15, 2021, a portion of the slope at Cut 9 failed, blocking the roadway and damaging a large 
excavator.  The failure also resulted in a large undercut rock spire immediately above and adjacent to 
SH-55.  Due to the concern of the hazard presented to public safety, ITD temporarily closed SH-55.  On 
March 18, 2021, McMillen Jacobs was mobilized by the Department to assist in an emergency repair to 
remove the overhanging rock.  On March 28, the combined effort of ITD, McMillen Jacobs, and the 
Contractor successfully removed the hazard.  The highway was re-opened on April 2, 2021, and work 
returned to the normal construction schedule.  Since that time, McMillen Jacobs and their team have 
been engaged in providing routine inspection and recommendations for slope construction and 
stabilization.  On April 7, 2021, McMillen Jacobs and Associates provided ITD with a scope for 
engineering services for the tasks of “Review of Cuts 1 through 9b and permanent stabilization” and “On-
Site Engineering Overview During Construction.”  

The Department believes that the CE&I project team did not have the construction geotechnical 
engineering support it needed to be successful in utilizing the contract documents delivered by Forsgren 
to ITD.  The subsurface conditions encountered onsite, specifically in regards to the in situ rock structure 
(e.g. persistent adverse bedding planes and wedges) requires careful design considerations for failure 
modes not immediately recognized by even a skilled, ordinary construction inspector.  The Department 
has determined that the required approach, to account for these conditions, is to evaluate the structural 

30



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 2 

stability based on geologic field observations and kinematic analysis.  Through this analysis, the cuts 
slopes need to be reanalyzed for possible revision from the contract documents.  Additionally 
geotechnical field engineering of the rock anchor pattern is needed to provide a stamped rock anchor 
design on a cut-by-cut basis during construction.  The contract documents (plans or specs) as provided 
by Forsgren do not require the level of professional geotechnical services that is needed to address the 
rock structure.  Furthermore, the scope as drafted by the Engineer of Record (EOR) in the EOR 
agreement under “Task 6 Geotechnical Support (AGEO)” (American Geotechnics) does not sufficiently 
address this need.   

The Department will significantly expand the role of McMillen Jacobs to include new tasks that will largely 
take the place of Task 6 of the EOR agreement.  Additional services by McMillen Jacobs are estimated 
at $490,000.00. Bringing the total agreement to $785,968.00.  

Recommendations 
Approve request for McMillen Jacobs to exceed the consultant individual task agreement limit of 
$500,000 for consultants selected from the term agreement list, up to $785,968.00 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

31



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed        
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
LSS 

      
      

Monica Crider, P.E. Contracting Services Engineer MC  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Chaz Fredrickson Consultant Services Proj Manager CF  

 
Subject 
REQUEST TO APPROVE CONSULTANT AGREEMENTS 
Key Number District Route Number 

Various Various OFFSYS 

Background Information 
 

Board Policy 4001 delegates authority to approve routine engineering agreements of up to $1M to the 
Director or another designee. Any agreements larger than this amount must be approved by the Board. 
The purpose of this Board item is to request approval for agreements larger than $1M on the same 
project. 

 
The size of the agreements listed was anticipated because of the complexity and magnitude of the 
associated construction projects. In many instances, the original intent is to solicit the consultant 
service in phases allowing for greater flexibility of the Department, limited liability, and better design 
after additional information is obtained. In other cases, such as for Construction Engineering and 
Inspection services one single agreement over $1M may be issued allowing for continuity of the 
inspector. In all cases, any agreement over $500,000 is awarded through the Request for Proposal 
(RFP) process which is open to all interested firms. 

 
 

Recommendations 
Approve: (see attached sheets for additional detail) 

 
• KN 19338 – I 84, South Jerome Interchange, Jerome Interchange (District 4) – for additional 

Design Services of approximately $2.753M 
 

• KN 20383 – 6th Street; South Fork Coeur d’Alene River Bridge, City of Wallace (District 1) – for 
Design Services of approximately $1.08M 

 
• KN 20442 – I 90, SH 41 Interchange, Kootenai County (District 1) – for Design Services of 

approximately $8.7M 
 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

32



 

Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: April 28, 2021  Program Number(s)A019(338) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

 Key Number(s)19338 

FROM: Jesse Barrus, PE 
District 4 Engineer 

 Program ID, County, Etc.I 84, South Jerome 
Interchange, Jerome County 

RE: Request to Increase Professional Services Agreement Amount to Over $1,000,000 for 
Design Services by J-U-B Engineers 

The purpose of this project is to improve safety and mobility on I-84 and through the South Jerome 
Interchange (Exit 168) by replace the existing bridge and modifying the interchange to address operations, 
geometrics and capacity limitations. The project has an approved Categorical Exclusion Environmental 
Document and an FHWA-approved Interchange Modification Report. 
 
The new interchange will replace the obsolete four-lane bridge with a divided diamond couplet with two 
bridges and signals to accommodate on/off-ramp traffic as well as frontage road movements. The 
interchange will allow for future widening of I-84 and incorporate longer ramps to meet current design 
standards.  
 
In May 2016, through Request for Proposal (RFP), J-U-B Engineers was selected to provide design services. 
The project was split into three phases. Phases I was for Design Services needed to assist the District to 
select a project alternative for $483,200. Phase II was for Bridge Roadway Design from Preliminary Design 
to Intermediate Design for $1,275,750. In October 2017, the Board approve Phase I and II design funding for 
$2.25M.  
 
For Phase III, the consultant will complete final roadway design, final traffic design (signs and signals), 
retaining walls, drainage, utility coordination, PS&E package, and coordinate with ITD Bridge on final bridge 
design. This is the third and final phase of development for $993,715 bringing the total to $2.753M. 
 
The project currently has $2.753M in obligated funds.  
 
The purpose of this board item is to request approval to exceed the existing consultant services agreement 
amount of this project to $2.753M to complete design services. 
 

33



 

Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: April 22, 2021  Program Number(s)A020(383) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

 Key Number(s)20383 

FROM: Laila Kral, P.E. 
LHTAC Administrator 

 Program ID, County, Etc. 6th Street; South Fork 
Coeur d'Alene River Bridge; City of Wallace 

RE: Request to Increase Professional Services Agreement Amount to Over $1,000,000 for 
Design Services by HMH Engineers 

The purpose of this project is to improve the safety, mobility, and economic opportunity by replacing a 101 
year old bridge in the City of Wallace, Idaho. The bridge is currently closed to large loads and a temporary 
single-lane replacement bridge is spanning over the existing bridge to support the large volume of trucks that 
have to use this bridge. 
 
In September 2018, through the Request for Proposal (RFP), HMH Engineers was selected to provide 
design services for this project. The bridge replacement project is located within the historic town of Wallace 
over the South Fork of the Coeur d’Alene River. The South Fork of the Coeur d’Alene river is prone to 
flooding and two adjacent creeks flow into the river through the existing bridge abutment backwalls. In 
addition, the environmental evaluation will be very complicated due to the environmental issues in the 
surrounding Wallace mining area. Due to these constraints of replacing the bridge, the design project was 
spilt into two phases in order to fully investigate the complex replacement project. The first phase of design 
was for the preliminary design which included field work, layout alternatives, constructability, and stakeholder 
involvement. The Phase 1 preliminary design total was $451,100. 
 
Once the most effective alternative was determined, a detailed scope of work was established for the final 
design services, Phase 2.  The final design services include an extensive environmental evaluation and all 
design up to PS&E for $567,036.   
 
The estimated engineer of record services during construction is $50,000 for a total estimated agreement 
amount of $1,068,136. This project currently has $1,072,000 obligated for consultant funds, and is part of the 
Local Bridge program. 
 
The purpose of this board item is to request approval to exceed the existing consultant services agreement 
amount of this project to $1.08M to complete design and the engineer of record services. 
 
 

34



 

Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE: April 27, 2021  Program Number(s) A020(442) 

TO: Monica Crider, PE 
Contracting Services Engineer 

 Key Number(s) 20442 

FROM: Damon Allen, PE 
D1 Engineer 

 Program ID, County, Etc. I 90, SH 41 
Interchange, Kootenai County 

RE: Request to Increase Professional Services Agreement Amount to Over $1,000,000 for 
Design Services by David Evans & Associates  

The purpose of this project is to upgrade and replace the existing substandard freeway interchange and 
ramps at the I 90, SH 41 Interchange to increase safety, capacity and promote economic opportunity.  The 
scope of this project is to develop, evaluate, and select a solution for this increasingly congested freeway 
interchange that is complicated by an intersection between Seltice Way and SH 41 immediately to the south.  
Design tasks include a complete analysis of alternatives, public involvement, selection of a preferred 
alternative, Interchange Modification Report, Preliminary, Intermediate and Final designs, ROW plans and 
acquisition, and PS&E. 
 
In October 2017, through Request for Proposals (RFP), David Evans and Associates was selected to 
perform Design services.  The project was split in to three phases. Phase 1 was for concept design and 
alternatives analysis. The major tasks in the Phase 1 agreement included alternatives development, 
stakeholder outreach, traffic analysis, TS&L reports, a Value Planning study, Interchange Modification 
Report, Project Charter, and environmental documentation. Phase 2 is in progress and includes Preliminary 
Design through PS&E.  The major tasks in the Phase 2 agreement included survey, preliminary design, 
ROW plans, agency coordination, continued stakeholder outreach, design study report, 
geotechnical/materials engineering, final design, and PS&E. Phase 3 will be an Engineer of Record 
agreement during construction. In May 2019, the Board approved design funding for $6.6M. 
 
Since the scoping and execution of the Phase 2 agreement, the project has increased in complexity and 
cost.  This change is due to shifting the I 90 horizontal alignment south 30’ to facilitate construction staging, 
extending the I 90 limits and ramp limits to accommodate staging, traffic demands, and PDR comments, 
moving the pedestrian path along SH 41 to eliminate a long tunnel (including replacing the tunnel with two 
smaller tunnels and a pedestrian bridge), adding temporary bridges on I 90 to facilitate construction staging, 
and increasing the amount of construction phases and sub-phases. 
 
Due to the increase in complexity and cost, the District determined that an intermediate design review should 
be added as well as an independent constructability, schedule, and cost review.  This work will be negotiated 
as a supplemental to the Phase 2 agreement for $1.5M bringing the total to $8.1M. In addition to the 
supplemental, approximately $600K is earmarked for EOR services bringing the total to $8.7M. The District 
is committed to securing the needed funds for this project and are in the process of securing the funds.  An 
agreement will not be written until the funds are secured.  
 
The purpose of this board item is to request approval to exceed the existing consultant services agreement 
amount of this project to $8.7M to complete Design and Engineer of Record Services. 
  

35



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed        
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
      
      
      

Dave Kuisti, P.E. Transportation Engineering Division Administrator DK  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Dana Dietz, P.E. Contracts Engineer DD  

 
Subject 
Board Approval of Contracts for Rejection 
Key Number District Route Number 

                  

Background Information 
 

INFORMATION 
The following table summarizes the projects bid since the start of the fiscal year by jurisdiction, along with 
those requiring Board approval to award and Board approval to reject. 
 
 
 

                        Year to Date Bid Summary 10/1/20 to 05/03/21   

Contracts Bid 

Contracts Requiring 
Board Approval to 

Award 

Contracts Requiring  
Board Approval to 

Reject 
ITD Local ITD Local ITD Local 
43 13 2 2 1 0 

 
ACTION 
In accordance with board policy 4001, the construction contract on the attached report exceeded the engineer’s 
estimate by more than ten percent (10%) but are recommended for rejection with board approval. 
 
The following table summarizes the contract requiring Board approval to reject since the last Board Agenda 
Report. 

Contracts requiring Board Approval to Rejection -Justification received  
04/06/21 to 05/03/21 

ITD Local 
1 0 

 

 

Recommendations 
In accordance with board policy 4001, the construction contract on the attached report are 
recommended for rejection with board approval. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

36



!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

_̂
Nampa Boise

Moscow

Caldwell

Lewiston

Pocatello

Twin Falls

Idaho Falls

Coeur d'Alene

Idaho

Owyhee

Custer

Lemhi

Valley

Elmore Blaine

Butte

Cassia

Boise

Clark

Shoshone

Bonner

Ada
Bingham

Clearwater

Fremont

Caribou
Power

Twin Falls

Adams

Bonneville

Latah

Oneida

Lincoln

Camas

Kootenai

Boundary

Washington

Jefferson
Gem

Benewah

Gooding

Franklin

Jerome

TetonMadison

Bannock

Bear Lake

Nez Perce

Minidoka

Lewis

Canyon

Payette

ITD

1

2

3

6

4 5

37

khanna
Typewritten Text
SH-33, Canyon Creek Bridge Repair

khanna
Polygonal Line



CONTRACT(S) FOR BOARD REJECTION

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

6 23117 SH-33 4/27/2021 1 $442,431.77 $1,555,777.00 $1,113,345.23

SH-33, Canyon Creek Bridge Repair State 352%

Contractor: H-K Contractors Inc

Monthly Status Report to the Board

38



DATE OF BID OPENING - APRIL 27, 2021 

IDAHO FINANCED PROJECT  
SH-33 Canyon Creek Bridge Repair 

Madison County 
Key No. 23117 

DESCRIPTION:  The work on this project consists of addressing drainage and erosion issues on 
SH 33 Canyon Creek Bridge at MP 115.51 to MP 151.61. 

BIDDERS: 

H-K CONTRACTORS, INC.
IDAHO FALLS, ID

$1,555,777.00 

1 BIDS ACCEPTED 

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - $442,431.77 

LOW BID - 352% Percent of the Engineer's Estimate 

NET +/- OF EE $1,113,345.23 

(AWARD)   (REJECT) (REQUIRES BOARD APPROVAL) 

Approval to award or reject this project is based on Bid Review and Evaluation. 

Attached is the justification for Award or Rejection of the Bid.  Contracting Services concurs 
with the recommendation.  

                                      
DANA DIETZ P.E. 
Contracts Engineer 

Date 

Dana 
Dietz

Digitally signed by 
Dana Dietz 
Date: 2021.04.30 
08:15:12 -06'00'

39



Department Memorandum 
Idaho Transportation Department 

ITD 0500   (Rev. 07-17) 
itd.idaho.gov 

DATE:  April 29,2021 Program Number(s)  E216600 

TO: Monica Crider, P.E. 
Contracting Services Manager 

Key Number(s)   23117 

FROM: Jason Minzghor, P.E. 
District Six Engineer 

 Program ID, County, Etc.SH 33, Canyon Creek 
Bridge Repairs, Madison County 

RE: Bid Rejection 

The Bids that were opened on April 27, 2021, there was 1 bidder. The low bid was $1,555,777.00, which is 
$1,113,345.23 above the Engineers estimate (EE) or 352% of the EE. The difference between the low bid 
and the EE was primarily in the following 4 items.  

Item 212-070A Gabion Sack was 1100% of EE, an additional $144,000 
Item 624-005A Loose RipRap was 423% of EE, an additional $114,000  
Item S911-05B SP Grouted Hallow Injection Anchor was 238% of EE, an Additional $124,000 
Item Z629-05A Mobilization was 1100% of EE, an additional $373,000 

These 4 additional amounts account for $755,000.00 or 48.5% of the bid amount. 

The Engineers estimate was based on the Average unit prices for similar projects and reviewed by the 
estimating team. However, the District believes the increase in prices are in large part due to the timing of 
the bid, amount of labor hours required, and difficulty of the project location due to the steep terrain. The 
Mobilization was based on the standard 10% of the entire project and should have been increased to 
account for the rural location. 

Therefore, the district would like to reject the bid and either rebid later in the year for a 2021 construction 
period (September-October). Or perform the repairs in house using maintenance personal.  

If the rebid is approved, the District is planning to update the information regarding the man hours required, 
location difficulty due to the steep terrain, haul distance for material and mobilization. Also we believe 
readvertising this fall, when contractors are less busy with construction, would increase the number of 
bidders, which is recommended. Any needed funds will be obtained from other project savings and statewide 
balancing.  

40

mailto:dana.dietz@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:karen.hanna@itd.idaho.gov


Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
     Dave Kuisti, P.E. Transportation Engineering Division Administrator  DK 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Dana Dietz, P.E. Contracts Engineer DD 

Subject 
Contract Awards and Advertisements 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

INFORMATION 
The following table summarizes the contracts bid since the start of the fiscal year by jurisdiction, along with 
those requiring Board approval to award and Board approval to reject. 
The attached chart only shows the ITD State Infrastructure Projects listed by Summary of Cost and Summary 
of Contract Count. 
NOTE: 
The table below shows year to date summaries for both ITD and Local contracts bid. These ITD Contracts and the 
ITD project numbers do not match as there are times that multiple projects are companioned and bid and awarded 
as one contract. 

 Year to Date Bid Summary 10/01/20 to 05/03/21 

Contracts Bid 

Contracts Requiring 
Board Approval to 

Award 

Contracts Requiring  
Board Approval to 

Reject 
ITD Local ITD Local ITD Local 
43 13 2 2 1 0 

RECENT ACTIONS 
In accordance with board policy 4001, Staff has initiated or completed action to award the contracts listed on 
the attached report. 
The following table summarizes the Contracts awarded (requiring no Board action) since the last Board 
Agenda Report. 

Contracts Requiring no action from the Board 04/06/20 to 05/03/21 

ITD Local 

4 2 
FUTURE ACTIONS 
The Current Advertisement Report is attached. 

Recommendations 
For Information Only. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

LSS

41



8

3

6

5

3

6

3

8

3

7

5

3

6

3

92%

82%

90%

78% 79%

94%

83%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

2020‐10 2020‐11 2020‐12 2021‐01 2021‐02 2021‐03 2021‐04 Av
er

ag
e 

Bi
d 

Pr
ic

e 
as
 %
 o

f E
ng

in
ee

r's
 E

st
im

at
e

fo
r P

ro
je

ct
s B

id
 T

hi
s M

on
th

Number of Contracts Number of Projects Average Bid Price as % of EE

FFY21 State Infrastructure Project Bid Results:  YTD Summary By Cost
35 Projects YTD through May 3, 2021

YTD Total for all 35 projects:           
Ratio of Bid Costs / Engineer's Estimates = $186.5 / $213.4 M = 87.4%

Notes: 1) Local and SIA Projects are not included 2) Contracts may have multiple Projects

7 7

8

9

1

2

1
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

    < 75%   75 ‐ 84%   85 ‐ 94%   95 ‐ 105%  106 ‐ 110%  111 ‐ 120% > 150 %

Nu
m

be
r O

f P
ro

je
ct

s B
id

Bid Price as a % of Engineer's Estimate

FFY21 State Infrastructure Project Bid Results:  YTD Summary By Project Count
35 Projects YTD through May 3, 2021

80% of Bids below EE
(28 of 35)

89% of Bids below 105% of EE
(31 of 35)

9% of Bids 
above 110% of EE 
(3 of 35)

Note: Local and SIA Projects are not included

42



!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

_̂
Nampa Boise

Moscow

Caldwell

Lewiston

Pocatello

Twin Falls

Idaho Falls

Coeur d'Alene

Idaho

Owyhee

Custer

Lemhi

Valley

Elmore Blaine

Butte

Cassia

Boise

Clark

Shoshone

Bonner

Ada
Bingham

Clearwater

Fremont

Caribou
Power

Twin Falls

Adams

Bonneville

Latah

Oneida

Lincoln

Camas

Kootenai

Boundary

Washington

Jefferson
Gem

Benewah

Gooding

Franklin

Jerome

TetonMadison

Bannock

Bear Lake

Nez Perce

Minidoka

Lewis

Canyon

Payette

ITD

1

2

3

6

4 5

43

khanna
Typewritten Text
STC-7169 S. Johns Avenue; E. 12th to E. 4th, Emmett

khanna
Polygonal Line

khanna
Typewritten Text
SH-62, Zenner Road to Nez Perce

khanna
Polygonal Line

khanna
Typewritten Text
US-95, Labrosse Hill Street to Alderson Lane, Bonners Ferry

khanna
Polygonal Line

khanna
Typewritten Text
I-84, Franklin Road Interchange to Karcher Interchange

khanna
Polygonal Line

khanna
Typewritten Text
Eastriver MP 10, 11 & 11.2 

khanna
Polygonal Line

khanna
Typewritten Text
US-20, Island Park Center LineRumble Strips

khanna
Polygonal Line



CONTRACT(S) ACCEPTED BY STAFF SINCE LAST BOARD MEETING 

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

% of EE

LHTAC(3) 13493/22948 OFF SYS 4/6/2021 3 $2,645,630.00 $2,687,419.00 (-$41,789.00)

STC-7169, S. Johns Avenue; E.12th to E. 4th, Emmett 102%

Contractor: Diamond Contractors LLC Federal

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

% of EE

2 22221 SH-62 4/6/2021 2 $1,647,334.10 $1,383,000.00 (-$264,334.10)

84%SH-62, Zenner Road to Nez Perce, Lewis County

Contractor: Knife River Corporation-Mountain West State

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

% of EE

1 19916-A SIA US-95 4/13/2021 2 $90,000.00 $48,025.00 (-$41,975.28)

US-95, Labrosse Hill Street to Alderson Lane, Bonners Ferry 53%

Contractor: Razz Construction Inc State

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

% of EE

3 23081 I-84 4/20/2021 5 $46,693,892.70 $37,354,826.07 (-$9,339,066.63)

I-84, Franklin Road Interchange to Karcher Interchange - East 80%

Contractor: Concrete Placing Company Inc Federal

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

% of EE

OFF SYS 4/27/2021 9 $1,862,860.00 $1,174,712.50 (-$688,147.50)

63%

LHTAC(1) 20346

Eastriver MP 10, 11 & 11.2

Contractor: LaRiviere Inc Federal

District Key No. Route Opening Date No. of Bids Eng. Est. Low Bid Net +/-

% of EE

6 23107 SIA US-20 4/28/2021 3 $500,000.00 $476,682.13 (-$23,317.887)

US-20, Island Park Center Line Rumble Strips 95%

Contractor: Idaho Lines & Signs LLC State

Monthly Status Report to the Board

44



District Key No. Route Bid Opening Date

3 23080 I-84 5/4/2021

I-84, Franklin Road Interchange to Karcher Interchange - West Federal

                Greater than  $20,000,000.00

District Key No. Route Bid Opening Date

ACHD 18701 OFF SYS 5/11/2021

FY21 Capital Maintenance Phase 1, ACHD Federal

                $2,500,000.00 to $5,000,000.00

District Key No. Route Bid Opening Date

5 21892 SIA Various 5/11/2021

D5 Wetland Mitigation State

                $250,000.00 to $500,000.00

District Key No. Route Bid Opening Date

4 21840 SIA I-84 & I-86 5/11/2021

FY21 D4 Interstate Striping State

                $250,000.00 to $500,000.00

District Key No. Route Bid Opening Date

4 21823 SIA SH-75 5/18/2021

SH-75, Stanley RWIS State

                $0 to $250,000.00

District Key No. Route Bid Opening Date

6 23072 SIA US-26/US-20 5/25/2021

RRX Underpass, Idaho Falls State

                $0 to $250,000.00

Monthly Contract Advertisement As of 05-03-2021

45



Board Agenda Item   ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 6 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item   Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed        
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
LSS 

      
      

 
 

Monica Crider, P.E. Contracting Services Engineer MC  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Chaz Fredrickson Consultant Services Proj Manager CF  

 
Subject 
REPORT ON PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS AND TERM AGREEMENT WORK TASKS 
Key Number District Route Number 

N/A N/A N/A 

Background Information 

For all of ITD: 
 
Consultant Services processed twenty-five (25) new professional services agreements and work tasks 
totaling $5,191,013 and five (5) supplemental agreements to existing professional services agreements 
totaling $439,833 from April 1, 2021 through April 30, 2021.  
 

New Professional Services Agreements and Work Tasks 
 

Reason Consultant Needed  District Total 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 HQ    
Resources not Available           
  Environmental 1   1  1    3 
  Construction 2 1 3       6 
  Public Involvement   3 1      4 
  Design 1         1 
  Bridge       2   2 
  Materials 1  2   1    4 
             
Special Expertise           
           
Local Public Agency Projects 2 1 1 0 0 1 0   5 
           
Total 7 2 9 2 0 3 2   25 

           
           

 

 

46



Board Agenda Item  ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

 

Page 2 of 6 

For ITD Projects: 
 
Twenty (20) new professional services agreements and work tasks were processed during this 
period totaling $4,479,150. Four (4) supplemental agreements totaling $383,324 were 
processed. 
 
 

District 1 
 

Project Reason 
Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

FY21 D1 Bridge 
Repairs 

Resources not 
available:  
Construction 

Engineer of 
Record Services  

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

David 
Evans and 
Associates 

$508,903 

SH 41, Mullan Ave 
to Prairie Ave, 
City of Post Falls 

Resources not 
available:  
Construction 

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Services 

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

HMH, LLC $375,097 

US 95, McArthur 
Lake, Boundary 
County 

Resources not 
available: 
Environmental   

Provide 
Archaeological
/ Cultural 
Resources 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Jyl M. 
Wheaton-
Abraham 

$18,208 

I 90, Osburn to 
West Wallace, 
Shoshone County 

Resources not 
available: 
Design   

Roadway 
Design & 
Hydraulics 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

J-U-B 
Engineers $99,240 

US 95, Granite 
North & Frontage 
Roads, Bonner 
County; SH 41, 
East Prairie Ave to 
Boekel Road, 
Kootenai County; 
SH 41, Mullan Ave 
to Prairie Ave, 
City of Post Falls 

Resources not 
available: 
Materials  

Materials 
Testing & 
Close-out 
Services 

RFI from 
Term 
Agreement 

Strata $277,439 

 
 

District 2 
 

Project Reason 
Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

SH 13, Mount 
Idaho Road to 
Top of Harster 
Grade, Idaho 
County 

Resources not 
available:  
Construction  

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Services 

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

Jacobs 
Engineering 
Group 

$432,202 

47



Board Agenda Item  ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

 

Page 3 of 6 

District 3 
 

Project Reason 
Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

I 84, Ustick Road 
Overpass, 
Canyon County 

Resources not 
available: 
Construction 

Engineer of 
Record Services 

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

David Evans 
and 
Associates 

$378,128 

I 84, Cold 
Springs 
Interchange to 
Glenns Ferry 
Interchange, 
Elmore County 

Resources not 
available: 
Construction 

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Services 

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

Atlas 
Technical 
Consultants 
LLC 

Prev: $481,803 
This: $402,725 
Total: $884,528 

SH 44, SH 55 
Intersection 
Improvement, 
City of Eagle 

Resources not 
available: 
Public 
Involvement 

Public 
Involvement 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

HDR 
Engineering 

Prev: $14,803 
This: $54,639 
Total: $69,442 

I 84, Broadway 
to Eisenman, 
City of Boise 

Resources not 
available: 
Public 
Involvement 

Public 
Involvement 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Warm 
Springs 
Consulting 

$19,824 

SH 55, Round 
Valley to Clear 
Creek, Valley 
County 

Resources not 
available: 
Materials 

Materials & 
Geotechnical 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

GeoEngineers $22,325 

US 95, Pine 
Creek 
(Cambridge) 
Bridge, 
Washington 
County 

Resources not 
available: 
Materials 

Materials 
Sampling & 
Testing Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Strata $86,735 

SH 55, Donnelly 
to Deinhard, 
Valley County 

Resources not 
available: 
Public 
Involvement 

Public 
Involvement 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Rosemary 
Brennan 
Curtin 

$63,585 

SH 55, Donnelly 
to Deinhard, 
Valley County 

Resources not 
available: 
Construction 

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Services 

RFI from 
Term 
Agreement 

Stanley 
Consultants $252,675 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48



Board Agenda Item  ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

 

Page 4 of 6 

District 4 
 

Project Reason 
Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

SH 25, Kasota to 
Paul, Minidoka 
County 

Resources not 
available: Public 
Involvement 

Public 
Involvement 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

J-U-B 
Engineers $9,105 

I 84, FY25 Bliss 
Rest Area 
Parking 
Expansion 

Resources not 
available:  
Environmental 

Sewage Lagoon 
Seepage Testing 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Cascade Earth 
Sciences $25,500 

 
 

District 5 
 

None for this month. 
 

 
District 6 
 

Project Reason 
Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

US 93, Pashimeroi 
River Bridge, 
Custer County 

Resources not 
available:  
Environmental  

Environmental 
Services 

RFI from 
Term 
Agreement 

J-U-B 
Engineers $371,576 

SH 33, Mile Post 
100 to Begin 
Realignment, 
Fremont County 

Resources not 
available:  
Materials 

Materials 
Acceptance 
Testing 

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

Strata $924,135 

 
 

Headquarters 
 

Project Reason 
Consultant 

Needed 

Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

FY21 Local/Off 
System Bridge 
Inspection 

Resources not 
available: 
Bridge 

Bridge 
Inspection 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Wiss, Janney, 
Elstner 
Associates 

$98,668 

FY 21 Bridge 
State Highway 
System Bridge 
Inspection 

Resources not 
available: 
Bridge 

Bridge 
Inspection 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

Wiss, Janney, 
Elstner 
Associates 

$98,277 

 
 
 
 

49



Board Agenda Item  ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

 

Page 5 of 6 

Supplemental Agreements to Existing ITD Professional Service Agreements 
 

District Project Consultant Original Agreement 
Date/Description 

Supplemental 
Agreement 
Description 

Total Agreement 
Amount 

1 

US 95, North 
Corridor Access 
Improvements, 
City of Coeur 
d’Alene 

Ruen-Yeager 
& Associates 

5/2020, 
Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection Services: 
Year 2 

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Services; 
Material 
Sampling & 
Testing; 
Documentation 

Prev: $1,198,536 
This: $109,669 

Total: $1,308,205 
 

Board Approved 
$1.325M on 

February 2021 
Meeting 

1 

SH 53, 
Intersection 
North Ramsey 
Road, Kootenai 
County 

Meckel 
Engineering 
& Surveying 

12/2018, Surveying 
Services 

Continued 
Survey Services 

Prev: $165,400 
This: $40,158 

Total: $205,558 

2 

SH 11, 
Grangemont 
Road to 
Headquarters, 
Clearwater 
County; FY21b 
D2 Bridge 
Repair; US 95, 
Riverside 
Northbound 
Passing Lane, 
Latah County; 
SH 3, Middle 
Fork Potlatch 
Creek Bridge, 
Latah County 

HMH, LLC 

3/2021, 
Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Augmentation 
Services 

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Augmentation 
Services 

Prev: $358,312 
This: $228,497 
Total: $586,809 

 

3 
US 20, Linder to 
Locust Grove, 
City of Eagle 

Axiom-
Points, LLC 

1/2021, Sound 
Study 

Continuation 
of Sound Study 

Prev: $7,040 
This: $5,000 

Total: $12,040 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



Board Agenda Item  ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

 

Page 6 of 6 

For Local Public Agency Projects: 
 
Five (5) new professional services agreements totaling $711,863 were processed during this 
period. One (1) supplemental agreements totaling $56,509 were processed. 
 

Project Sponsor Description Selection 
Method 

Consultant Amount 

Canyon Road Bridge 
Feasibility Study 

Eastside 
Highway 
District 

Project 
Development 
Services 

Individual 
Project 
Solicitation 

HDR 
Engineering $223,191 

Silver Valley Road 
Safety 
Improvements, 
Shoshone County 

Shoshone 
County 

Project 
Development 
Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

HMH, LLC $60,993 

Clear Creek Bridge, 
Idaho County 

Idaho 
County 

Construction, 
Engineering & 
Inspection 
Services 

RFI from 
Term 
Agreement 

J-U-B 
Engineers $291,208 

Montana Ave; 
Pedestrian  
Improvements & 
Widening, City of 
Caldwell 

City of 
Caldwell 

Roadway 
Design Services 

Direct from 
Term 
Agreement 

J-U-B 
Engineers $69,995 

West 5200 South 
Safety 
Improvements, 
Madison County 

Madison 
County 

Roadway 
Design Services 

RFI from 
Term 
Agreement 

Horrocks $66,476 

 
Supplemental Agreements to Existing Local Professional Services Agreements 

 
District Project Consultant Original 

Agreement 
Date/Description 

Supplemental 
Agreement 
Description 

Total Agreement 
Amount 

1 

Beck Road; 
Seltice Way to 
Prairie Ave, Post 
Falls Highway 
District 

Ruen-Yeager 
& Associates 

11/2017, 
Roadway Design 
though PS&E 
Services 

Continued 
Pavement 
Analysis 

Prev:  $243,400 
This:  $56,509 

Total:  $299,909 

 
Recommendations 
For Information Only 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

51



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date May 18-19, 2021 

Consent Item  Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS David Tolman Controller DT 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

David Tolman Controller DT 

Subject 
State Fiscal Year 2021 Financial Statements 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

July 01, 2020 thru March 31, 2021,  Fiscal Year 2021 Financial Statements 

The financial operations of the Department as of March 31, 2021 continues this fiscal year with revenue coming in 
ahead of forecast year-to-date for the State Highway Account with expenditures following projected budgets.   

• Revenues to the State Highway Account from all state sources are ahead of forecast by 11.2%. Of that
total, receipts from the Highway Distribution Account are ahead of forecast by $18.6M.  ITD forecasted
lower revenue due to Covid and intentionally lowered expectations for the months of July and August which
has receipts from fuel sales in May and June.  State revenues to the State Aeronautics Fund are below
forecast by -9.3% or -$200,100.  During March, the transfer of $4M resulting from the passage of HB308
which is the Governor’s initiative of “Building Idaho’s Future” is shown in the financial statements for the
State Aeronautics fund.  These moneys are to be expended as grants to local airports. Staff continues to
monitor revenue, make adjustments where necessary and will continue to provide updates.

• Expenditures are within planned budgets YTD.  The differences YTD are timing between planned and
actual expenditures plus encumbrances.  Personnel costs have savings of $3.9M or 4.1% which is due to
vacancies and timing between a position becoming vacant and filled.  Management continues to work
diligently to keep vacancy counts low.

• Contract construction cash expenditures in the State Highway Account for March is $17.2M.

The balance of the long term investments as of the end of March is $111.7 Million.  These funds are obligated 
against both construction projects and encumbrances.   The long term investments plus the cash balance 
($113.1M) totals $224.8M and includes the reserve to mitigate the impact of Covid on FY21 revenue.  

Expenditures in the Strategic Initiatives Program Fund (GF Surplus), through the month of March, were $16.5M.  
Additional receipts of interest earned of $219k based on the cash balance.  In addition, there was a transfer in of 
$72.8M as part of the Governor’s initiative for “Building Idaho’s Future” and is to be spent on eligible projects and 
rail crossing safety improvements. 

Sales Tax deposits into the Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation Fund of $15M is ahead of the 
forecast by 24.9%.  The receipts into this fund for FY21 are committed to construction projects identified in the ITIP.  
Expenditures for selected projects YTD were $32.7M. 

As part of the CARES Act, ITD received a federal grant from the Federal Transit Administration of $27.3M.  The 
activity for this grant are shown in a fund created specifically for CARES funding and had expenses of $4M YTD. 

Recommendations 

52



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 2 of 2 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

53



Expenditures by Type
FY20 Actual

YTD
FY21 Actual

YTD
FY21 Budget

YTD
FY21 to

FY20 Actual
FY 21 to
Budget

Personnel 89,502 92,341 96,322 3.2% -4.1%
Operating 68,529 66,533 76,166 -2.9% -12.6%
Capital Outlay 19,519 24,508 27,942 25.6% -12.3%
Sub-Grantee 12,262 12,495 16,944 1.9% -26.3%

Totals Operations Expenses: 189,812 195,876 217,374 3.2% -9.9%

Funds Received

FY20 Actual
YTD

FY21 Actual
YTD

FY21
Forecast

YTD
FY21 to

FY20 Actual
FY 21 to
Forecast

State Highway Account
  Federal Reimbursements 278,192 273,754 235,734 -1.6% 16.1%
  State (Inc. H.D.A.) 264,584 272,992 245,443 3.2% 11.2%
  Local 20,463 6,830 14,300 -66.6% -52.2%

Total State Highway Account: 563,239 553,576 495,477 -1.7% 11.7%

State Aeronautics Fund
  Federal Reimbursements 420 543 305 29.4% 78.1%
  State 2,673 5,952 2,152 122.6% 176.6%

Total State Aeronautics Fund: 3,093 6,495 2,457 110.0% 164.3%

Total Fund Received: 566,332 560,071 497,934 -1.1% 12.5%

User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-010 
Run Date: 6 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25

Fiscal Year: 2021

Disbursements (includes Encumbrances)
FY20 Actual

YTD
FY21 Actual

YTD
FY21 Budget

YTD
FY21 to

FY20 Actual
FY 21 to
Budget

  Construction Payouts 378,553 323,945 361,446 -14.4% -10.4%
0 0 0 -14.4% 0

Operations Expenses
  Highways 138,892 145,951 162,254 5.1% -10.0%
  DMV 24,689 23,163 26,841 -6.2% -13.7%
  Administration 20,357 19,737 20,869 -3.0% -5.4%
  Facilities 3,400 4,698 4,673 38.2% 0.5%
  Aeronautics 2,474 2,326 2,737 -6.0% -15.0%
Total Operations Expenses: 189,812 195,876 217,374 3.2% -9.9%

Transfers
  Debt Service 12,809 12,173 12,013 -5.0% 1.3%
Total Transfers: 12,809 12,173 12,013 -5.0% 1.3%

Total Disbursements: 581,174 531,994 590,834 -8.5% -10.0%

Idaho Transportation Department
SUMMARY OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

STATE HIGHWAY ACCOUNT AND STATE AERONAUTICS FUND
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 3/31/2021
(all amounts in '000)

Contract Construction 378,553 323,945 361,446 -14.4% -10.4%
Totals (excluding Transfers): 568,365 519,821 578,821 -8.5% -10.2%

54



Date Prepared:  4/6/2021

Includes Equipment Buy Back Program Misc. Revenue (RTA $1,765,504) and Transfers - In

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY19 Actual Revenue 29.298 57.454 84.752 114.108 142.878 173.775 206.239 233.249 258.362 284.523 319.267 344.728
FY20 Actual Revenue 32.334 60.074 89.748 123.908 150.217 180.320 214.342 240.972 264.584 293.293 320.052 342.120
FY21 Current 35.679 64.171 94.151 123.596 149.350 184.635 211.939 244.099 272.992
FY21 Forecast 22.639 46.708 73.139 100.685 129.569 157.723 187.974 217.623 245.443 284.556 313.872 343.226

0.000

50.000

100.000

150.000

200.000

250.000

300.000

350.000
M

ill
io

ns

State Highway Fund 0260
Fiscal Year 2021

State Revenue Source Forecast vs Actual
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013March - For Period Ending 03/31/2021

55



Date Prepared:  4/6/2021

Current =  Actual Payments and Encumbrances

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY19 Actual Expenditures 95.849 163.446 238.100 316.163 372.747 422.734 459.444 493.898 533.081 574.555 626.054 703.065
FY20 Actual Expenditures 100.532 174.652 255.180 324.290 390.416 448.247 484.733 523.466 565.891 600.575 645.173 702.364
FY21 Current 78.041 169.582 229.279 290.676 351.690 420.679 440.459 480.646 517.509
FY21 Forecast 97.929 176.988 257.412 326.039 394.937 451.178 489.866 528.731 576.098 623.457 669.539 951.062

0.000

100.000

200.000

300.000

400.000

500.000

600.000

700.000

800.000

900.000

1000.000

M
ill

io
ns

State Highway Fund 0260
Fiscal Year 2021

Expenditures 
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013March - For Period Ending 03/31/2021

56



Date Prepared:  4/6/2021

Includes Misc. Revenue and Transfers - In Misc. Revenue (RTA $0) and Transfers - In

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY19 Actual Revenue 0.234 0.538 0.943 1.265 1.563 1.782 2.242 2.421 2.631 2.840 3.064 3.261
FY20 Actual Revenue 0.306 0.679 1.033 1.301 1.531 1.733 2.211 2.486 2.673 2.853 2.947 3.087
FY21 Current 0.149 0.382 0.596 0.888 1.121 1.438 1.602 1.732 5.952
FY21 Forecast 0.186 0.456 0.726 1.026 1.241 1.501 1.786 1.956 2.152 2.316 2.503 2.700

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

4.500

5.000

5.500

6.000
M

ill
io

ns

Aeronautics Fund 0221
Fiscal Year 2021

State and Interagency Revenue Sources Forecast vs Actual
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013March - For Period Ending 03/31/2021

57



Date Prepared:  4/6/2021

Current = Actual Payments and Encumbrances

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY19 Actual Expenditures 0.193 0.512 0.652 0.816 1.498 1.943 2.124 2.351 2.441 2.604 2.826 3.398
FY20 Actual Expenditures 0.206 0.426 1.047 1.310 1.591 1.736 2.014 2.177 2.474 2.641 2.965 3.191
FY21 Current 0.546 0.729 0.906 1.253 1.455 1.609 1.888 2.187 2.312
FY21 Forecast 0.319 0.899 1.369 1.565 1.756 2.021 2.294 2.473 2.722 2.952 3.181 6.551

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

4.500

5.000

5.500

6.000

6.500

7.000

M
ill

io
ns

Aeronautics Fund 0221
Fiscal Year 2021

Expenditures
September - For Period Ending  9/30/2013March - For Period Ending 03/31/2021

58



State Aeronautics Fund State Highway Fund Transportation Expansion and
Congestion Mitigation Fund

0221 0260 0269
Feb-21 Mar-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

ASSETS
Total Cash on Hand (Change Fund) 0 0 5,845 5,845 0 0

Cash in Bank (Daily Operations) 2,481,364 6,584,627 107,285,082 113,083,844 25,412,116 24,766,360
Investments (Long Term: STO - Diversified Bond Fund) 870,191 871,297 111,589,920 111,733,475 0 0
            Total Cash & Investments 3,351,555 7,455,925 218,880,847 224,823,164 25,412,116 24,766,360

Total Receivables - Other 0 0 1,213,531 1,184,662 0 0
                      - Due From Locals (Project Overruns) 0 0 1,023,572 1,058,742 0 0
                      - Inter Agency 11,204 7,785 0 756 0 0
            Total Receivables 11,204 7,785 2,237,103 2,244,160 0 0

Inven Inventory on Hand 0 0 20,650,778 20,456,630 0 0
            Inventory on Hand 0 0 20,650,778 20,456,630 0 0

            Total Assets: 3,362,759 7,463,709 241,768,728 247,523,954 25,412,116 24,766,360

LIABILITIES
Liabil Vouchers Payable 0 0 502,207 21,527 77,952 0

Sales Tax Payable 0 0 5,800 30,698 0 0
Deferred Revenue (Local Projects Match) 0 0 22,655,550 22,643,036 0 0
Accounts Receivable Overpayment 0 0 16,019 16,019 0 0
Contractor Retained % (In Lieu Of Performance Bond) 0 0 218,651 222,613 0 0
            Liabilities 0 0 23,398,226 22,933,891 77,952 0

            Total Liabilities: 0 0 23,398,226 22,933,891 77,952 0

Idaho Transportation Department
OPERATING FUND BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

UserID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-002 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund 0221 Fund 0260 Fund 0269
FUND BALANCE

Reserve for Encumbrance 235,347 200,833 33,136,650 30,049,495 0 0
3,362,759 7,463,709 265,166,955 270,457,846 25,490,068 24,766,360

Fund Balance 3,127,412 7,262,876 185,233,852 194,540,568 25,334,163 24,766,360
            Total Fund Balance: 3,362,759 7,463,709 218,370,502 224,590,063 25,334,163 24,766,360

            Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3,362,759 7,463,709 241,768,728 247,523,954 25,412,116 24,766,36059



Strategic Initiatives
Fund        (State

Share)

Strategic Initiatives
Fund        (Local

Share)

Total Strategic
Initiatives Fund

CARES Act
Covid-19

B 0270.02 0270.05 0270 0345
Feb-21 Mar-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Feb-21 Mar-21

ASSETS
Cash on Hand (Change Fund) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cash in Bank (Daily Operations) 3,751,183 76,419,383 53 2,000,053 3,751,235 78,419,436 (192,005) (5,152)
Investments (Long Term: STO - Diversified Bond Fund) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
            Total Cash & Investments 3,751,183 76,419,383 53 2,000,053 3,751,235 78,419,436 (192,005) (5,152)
Receivables - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                      - Due From Locals (Project Overruns) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                      - Inter Agency 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
            Total Receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory on Hand 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
            Inventory on Hand 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

            Total Assets: 3,751,183 76,419,383 53 2,000,053 3,751,235 78,419,436 (192,005) (5,152)

LIABILITIES
Vouchers Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sales Tax Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Deferred Revenue (Local Projects Match) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Receivable Overpayment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contractor Retained % (In Lieu Of Performance Bond) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
            Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

            Total Liabilities: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Idaho Transportation Department
OPERATING FUND BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

UserID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-002 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021

Fiscal Year: 2021

FUND BALANCE
Reserve for Encumbrance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3,751,183 76,419,383 52.52 2,000,052.54 3,751,235.14 78,419,435.71 5,152 (5,152)

Fund Balance 3,751,183 76,419,383 53 2,000,053 3,751,235 78,419,436 0 0
Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 -192,005.07 -5,152.06

            Total Fund Balance: 3,751,183 76,419,383 53 2,000,053 3,559,230 78,419,436 (192,005) (5,152)

            Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3,751,183 76,419,383 53 2,000,053 3,559,230 78,419,436 (192,005) (5,152)60



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0260 State Highway Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Federal Sources
FHWA - Highway 205,183,200 242,015,950 13,217,222 0 36,832,750 17.95 % 375,381,680 133,365,730 35.53 %
FHWA - Indirect Cost 18,801,000 18,548,475 1,041,672 0 (252,525) -1.34% 25,000,000 6,451,525 25.81 %
Federal Transit Authority 7,800,000 9,279,158 1,823,188 0 1,479,158 18.96 % 14,759,600 5,480,442 37.13 %
NHTSA - Highway Safety 3,050,000 3,138,583 271,415 0 88,583 2.90 % 6,142,800 3,004,217 48.91 %
Other Federal Aid 900,000 772,223 43,489 0 (127,777) -14.20% 11,621,300 10,849,077 93.36 %

Total Federal Sources: 235,734,200 273,754,389 16,396,986 0 38,020,189 16.13 % 432,905,380 159,150,991 36.76 %
State Sources

Equipment Buy Back 860,000 2,693,568 0 0 1,833,568 213.21 % 11,414,100 8,720,532 76.40 %
Miscellaneous Revenues 22,843,875 24,413,690 2,966,328 0 1,569,815 6.87 % 30,855,504 6,441,814 20.88 %

Total State Sources: 23,703,875 27,107,258 2,966,328 0 3,403,383 14.36 % 42,269,604 15,162,346 35.87 %
Local Sources

Match For Local Projects 14,300,000 6,809,546 471,260 0 (7,490,454) -52.38% 19,238,100 12,428,554 64.60 %
Other Local Sources 0 20,085 9,000 0 20,085 0.00 % 0 (20,085) 0.00 %

Total Local Sources: 14,300,000 6,829,631 480,260 0 (7,470,369) -52.24% 19,238,100 12,408,469 64.50 %
TOTAL REVENUES: 273,738,075 307,691,278 19,843,574 0 33,953,203 12.40 % 494,413,084 186,721,806 37.77 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Highway Distribution Account 157,406,100 176,016,526 18,533,120 0 18,610,426 11.82 % 215,599,000 39,582,474 18.36 %
Fuel/Registration Direct 51,785,327 55,055,839 5,816,865 0 3,270,512 6.32 % 67,657,200 12,601,361 18.63 %
Ethanol Fuels Tax 12,547,600 14,812,232 1,576,523 0 2,264,632 18.05 % 17,700,000 2,887,768 16.32 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 221,739,027 245,884,597 25,926,508 0 24,145,570 10.89 % 300,956,200 55,071,603 18.30 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN:

495,477,102 553,575,875 45,770,082 0 58,098,773 11.73 % 795,369,284 241,793,409 30.40 %

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

61



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0260 State Highway Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
EXPENDITURES

Operations Expense
Permanent Staff Salaries 64,644,427 62,097,773 6,537,815 0 2,546,654 3.94 % 88,026,291 25,928,518 29.46 %
Board, Hourly, OT, Shift Diff 1,030,814 1,104,055 289,547 0 (73,241) -7.11% 1,253,547 149,492 11.93 %
Fringe Benefits 29,715,236 28,283,296 3,133,845 0 1,431,940 4.82 % 39,978,286 11,694,990 29.25 %
Internal Holdback-Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 % 2,367,276 2,367,276 100.00 %
In State Travel Expense 1,206,814 433,004 41,671 0 773,810 64.12 % 1,709,146 1,276,142 74.67 %
Out of State Travel Expense 333,377 3,415 (596) 0 329,962 98.98 % 454,748 451,333 99.25 %
Technology Operating Expense 23,242,966 16,127,613 4,172,296 3,070,442 4,044,910 17.40 % 27,015,981 7,817,925 28.94 %
Operating Expense 50,569,071 39,104,119 4,180,176 6,979,856 4,485,096 8.87 % 70,938,159 24,854,184 35.04 %
Technology Equipment Expense 1,396,783 784,717 30,404 887,845 (275,779) -19.74% 2,691,083 1,018,521 37.85 %
Capital Equipment Expense 22,197,800 9,674,249 328,668 8,788,254 3,735,297 16.83 % 27,763,200 9,300,697 33.50 %
Capital Facilities Expense 4,310,000 1,815,200 106,606 2,460,480 34,320 0.80 % 6,209,807 1,934,127 31.15 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 16,004,633 11,150,243 1,908,269 799,004 4,055,386 25.34 % 21,321,900 9,372,653 43.96 %

Total Operations Expense: 214,651,921 170,577,684 20,728,701 22,985,882 21,088,355 9.82 % 289,729,424 96,165,858 33.19 %
Contract Construction

Technology Operating Expense 0 1,352,752 (105,769) 71,019 (1,423,772) 0.00 % 0 (1,423,772) 0.00 %
Operating Expense 3,977,000 1,765,923 127,119 539,848 1,671,229 42.02 % 10,600,000 8,294,229 78.25 %
Capital Projects 356,927,339 319,337,073 16,894,251 0 37,590,266 10.53 % 641,141,164 321,804,091 50.19 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 542,000 878,879 252,551 0 (336,879) -62.15% 9,591,300 8,712,421 90.84 %

Total Contract Construction: 361,446,339 323,334,627 17,168,152 610,867 37,500,844 10.38 % 661,332,464 337,386,969 51.02 %
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 576,098,260 493,912,311 37,896,853 23,596,750 58,589,199 10.17 % 951,061,888 433,552,827 45.59 %
TRANSFERS OUT

Statutory 0 108,900 0 0 (108,900) 0.00 % 0 (108,900) 0.00 %
Operating 12,013,007 12,063,783 0 0 (50,776) -0.42% 57,646,439 45,582,656 79.07 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS OUT: 12,013,007 12,172,683 0 0 (159,676) -1.33% 57,646,439 45,473,756 78.88 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT:

588,111,267 506,084,994 37,896,853 23,596,750 58,429,523 9.94 % 1,008,708,327 479,026,583 47.49 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: (92,634,165) 47,490,881 7,873,229 116,528,296 (213,339,043) (237,233,174)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

62



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0260 State Highway Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to Date
Allotment

Year to Date
Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
Contract Construction
Operating Expenditures

COperating Expenditures Dedicated 349,000 232,612 (3,504) 44,862 71,526 20.49 % 2,500,000 2,222,526 88.90 %
Operating Expenditures Federal 3,615,000 2,884,949 24,813 566,005 164,045 4.54 % 8,000,000 4,549,045 56.86 %
Operating Expenditures Local 13,000 1,114 42 0 11,886 91.43 % 100,000 98,886 98.89 %

Total Operating Expenditures 3,977,000 3,118,675 21,350 610,867 247,457 6.22 % 10,600,000 6,870,457 64.82 %
Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay Dedicated 109,164,097 81,234,160 2,146,020 0 27,929,937 25.59 % 228,094,683 146,860,523 64.39 %
Capital Outlay Federal 218,063,241 214,862,425 13,753,326 0 3,200,816 1.47 % 361,320,980 146,458,556 40.53 %
Capital Outlay FICR 18,400,000 15,894,816 233,363 0 2,505,184 13.62 % 33,000,000 17,105,184 51.83 %
Capital Outlay Local 11,300,000 7,345,672 761,542 0 3,954,328 34.99 % 18,725,500 11,379,828 60.77 %

Total Capital Outlay 356,927,339 319,337,073 16,894,251 0 37,590,266 10.53 % 641,141,164 321,804,091 50.19 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments
Trustee & Benefit Payments Dedicated 23,000 66 (14,766) 0 22,934 99.71 % 500,000 499,934 99.99 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments Federal 506,000 878,813 267,317 0 (372,813) -73.68% 8,991,300 8,112,487 90.23 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments Local 13,000 0 0 0 13,000 100.00 % 100,000 100,000 100.00 %

Total Trustee & Benefit Payments 542,000 878,879 252,551 0 (336,879) -62.15% 9,591,300 8,712,421 90.84 %
Total Contract Construction: 361,446,339 323,334,627 17,168,152 610,867 37,500,844 10.38 % 661,332,464 337,386,969 51.02 %

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

63



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0269 Transportation Expansion and Congestion Mitigation Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Miscellaneous Revenues 495,000 132,151 8,249 0 (362,849) -73.30% 670,000 537,849 80.28 %
TOTAL REVENUES: 495,000 132,151 8,249 0 (362,849) -73.30% 670,000 537,849 80.28 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Cigarette Tax 300,000 135,515 135,515 0 (164,485) -54.83% 605,627 470,112 77.62 %
Sales Tax 12,050,000 15,049,585 1,448,648 0 2,999,585 24.89 % 18,612,996 3,563,411 19.14 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 12,350,000 15,185,100 1,584,163 0 2,835,100 22.96 % 19,218,623 4,033,523 20.99 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 12,845,000 15,317,251 1,592,412 0 2,472,251 19.25 % 19,888,623 4,571,372 22.98 %

 
EXPENDITURES

Contract Construction - Capital
Projects 28,500,000 32,674,805 2,238,167 0 (4,174,805) -14.65% 67,900,346 35,225,541 51.88 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 28,500,000 32,674,805 2,238,167 0 (4,174,805) -14.65% 67,900,346 35,225,541 51.88 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 28,500,000 32,674,805 2,238,167 0 (4,174,805) -14.65% 67,900,346 35,225,541 51.88 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: (15,655,000) (17,357,554) (645,756) (1,702,554) (48,011,723) (30,654,169)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

64



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0270 Strategic Initiatives Program Fund (State 60%)

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 196,730 219,067 1,267 0 22,337 11.35 % 259,000 39,933 15.42 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 196,730 219,067 1,267 0 22,337 11.35 % 259,000 39,933 15.42 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Statutory 0 72,800,000 72,800,000 0 72,800,000 0.00 % 0 (72,800,000) 0.00 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 0 72,800,000 72,800,000 0 72,800,000 0.00 % 0 (72,800,000) 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 196,730 73,019,067 72,801,267 0 72,822,337 37016.39 % 259,000 (72,760,067) #########

 
EXPENDITURES

Contract Construction - Capital
Projects 17,850,000 16,509,855 133,066 0 1,340,145 7.51 % 20,376,559 3,866,705 18.98 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 17,850,000 16,509,855 133,066 0 1,340,145 7.51 % 20,376,559 3,866,705 18.98 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 17,850,000 16,509,855 133,066 0 1,340,145 7.51 % 20,376,559 3,866,705 18.98 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: (17,653,270) 56,509,212 72,668,201 74,162,482 (20,117,559) (76,626,772)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

65



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0270 Strategic Initiatives Program Fund (LHTAC-Local 40%)

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 0 53 0 0 53 0.00 % 0 (53) 0.00 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 0 53 0 0 53 0.00 % 0 (53) 0.00 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Statutory 0 2,000,000 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 0.00 % 0 (2,000,000) 0.00 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 0 2,000,000 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 0.00 % 0 (2,000,000) 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 0 2,000,053 2,000,000 0 2,000,053 0.00 % 0 (2,000,053) 0.00 %

 
EXPENDITURES

Contract Construction -
Trustee & Benefit Payments 25,831 49,051 0 0 (23,219) -89.89% 49,831 781 1.57 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 25,831 49,051 0 0 (23,219) -89.89% 49,831 781 1.57 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 25,831 49,051 0 0 (23,219) -89.89% 49,831 781 1.57 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: (25,831) 1,951,002 2,000,000 1,976,834 (49,831) (2,000,834)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

66



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0345 CARES Act Covid-19

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Federal Sources - Federal
Transit Authority 0 5,673,256 216,657 0 5,673,256 0.00 % 0 (5,673,256) 0.00 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 0 5,673,256 216,657 0 5,673,256 0.00 % 0 (5,673,256) 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 0 5,673,256 216,657 0 5,673,256 0.00 % 0 (5,673,256) 0.00 %

 
EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenditures 3,365,919 278,314 57 0 3,087,605 91.73 % 4,951,395 4,673,081 94.38 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 16,230,065 3,752,052 29,747 0 12,478,013 76.88 % 20,638,404 16,886,352 81.82 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 19,595,984 4,030,366 29,804 0 15,565,618 79.43 % 25,589,799 21,559,433 84.25 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 19,595,984 4,030,366 29,804 0 15,565,618 79.43 % 25,589,799 21,559,433 84.25 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: (19,595,984) 1,642,890 186,853 21,238,874 (25,589,799) (27,232,689)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

67



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0374 GARVEE Capital Project Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 0 28,998,901 2,786,742 0 28,998,901 0.00 % 0 (28,998,901) 0.00 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 0 28,998,901 2,786,742 0 28,998,901 0.00 % 0 (28,998,901) 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 0 28,998,901 2,786,742 0 28,998,901 0.00 % 0 (28,998,901) 0.00 %

 
EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenditures 0 238,995 29,074 0 (238,995) 0.00 % 0 (238,995) 0.00 %
Capital Projects 0 29,248,494 2,473,991 0 (29,248,494) 0.00 % 0 (29,248,494) 0.00 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 0 29,487,489 2,503,065 0 (29,487,489) 0.00 % 0 (29,487,489) 0.00 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 0 29,487,489 2,503,065 0 (29,487,489) 0.00 % 0 (29,487,489) 0.00 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: 0 (488,588) 283,678 (488,588) 0 488,588

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

68



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0375 GARVEE Debt Service Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

State Sources - Miscellaneous
Revenues 0 27,401 1,198 0 27,401 0.00 % 0 (27,401) 0.00 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 0 27,401 1,198 0 27,401 0.00 % 0 (27,401) 0.00 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Operating 0 16,763,783 0 0 16,763,783 0.00 % 0 (16,763,783) 0.00 %
TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 0 16,763,783 0 0 16,763,783 0.00 % 0 (16,763,783) 0.00 %
TOTAL REV AND
TRANSFERS-IN: 0 16,791,184 1,198 0 16,791,184 0.00 % 0 (16,791,184) 0.00 %

 
EXPENDITURES

Bond Principal / Interest 0 60,372,251 403,073 0 (60,372,251) 0.00 % 0 (60,372,251) 0.00 %
TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 0 60,372,251 403,073 0 (60,372,251) 0.00 % 0 (60,372,251) 0.00 %
TOTAL EXPD AND
TRANSFERS OUT: 0 60,372,251 403,073 0 (60,372,251) 0.00 % 0 (60,372,251) 0.00 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: 0 (43,581,067) (401,875) (43,581,067) 0 43,581,067

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

69



User ID: kbentley
Report ID: AD-FN-GL-003 
Run Date: 06 Apr 2021
% of Time
Remaining: 25.0

Fiscal Year: 2021

Fund: 0221 State Aeronautics Fund

Fiscal Year:                 2021

Year to
Date

Allotment

Year to
Date Actual

Current
Month
Activity

Year to Date
Encumbrance

Variance
Favorable /
Unfavorable

Percent
Variance

Annual
Appropriation

Appropriation
Balance

Percent
Remaining

Budget Fiscal Year:    2021 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E = A - B - D) (F = E / A) (G) (H = G - B - D) (I = H / G)
REVENUES

Federal Sources - FAA 304,800 542,949 40,831 0 238,149 78.13 % 668,500 125,551 18.78 %
State Sources - Miscellaneous 301,819 323,974 8,811 0 22,155 7.34 % 347,000 23,026 6.64 %
Interagency Sources - 200,000 176,289 0 0 (23,711) -11.86% 252,500 76,211 30.18 %

TOTAL REVENUES: 806,619 1,043,212 49,642 0 236,593 29.33 % 1,268,000 224,788 17.73 %
TRANSFERS-IN

Statutory 0 4,000,000 4,000,000 0 4,000,000 0.00 % 0 (4,000,000) 0.00 %
Operating 1,650,437 1,451,897 211,102 0 (198,540) -12.03% 2,100,000 648,103 30.86 %

TOTAL TRANSFERS-IN: 1,650,437 5,451,897 4,211,102 0 3,801,460 230.33 % 2,100,000 (3,351,897) -159.61%
TOTAL REV AND TRANSFERS-
IN: 2,457,056 6,495,109 4,260,744 0 4,038,053 164.35 % 3,368,000 (3,127,109) -92.85%

TOTAL REV AND TRANSFERS-IN:

EXPENDITURES
Permanent Staff Salaries 619,532 564,144 61,742 0 55,388 8.94 % 847,578 283,434 33.44 %
Board, Hourly, OT, Shift Diff 42,000 44,899 0 0 (2,899) -6.90% 64,100 19,201 29.95 %
Fringe Benefits 270,296 246,342 26,727 0 23,954 8.86 % 366,538 120,196 32.79 %
Internal Holdback-Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 % 16,084 16,084 100.00 %
In State Travel Expense 36,749 29,319 64 0 7,430 20.22 % 60,905 31,586 51.86 %
Out of State Travel Expense 12,034 8,157 1,169 0 3,877 32.22 % 12,034 3,877 32.22 %
Technology Operating Expense 39,693 33,394 8,226 0 6,299 15.87 % 48,235 14,841 30.77 %
Operating Expense 724,994 596,230 40,975 146,953 (18,189) -2.51% 1,196,326 453,143 37.88 %
Technology Equipment Expense 6,000 5,170 0 0 830 13.83 % 6,000 830 13.83 %
Capital Equipment Expense 1,900 1,823 0 52,512 (52,435) -2759.74% 57,400 3,065 5.34 %
Capital Facilities Expense 30,000 37,686 0 0 (7,686) -25.62% 92,324 54,638 59.18 %
Trustee & Benefit Payments 939,300 545,757 20,891 0 393,543 41.90 % 2,033,948 1,488,191 73.17 %
Internal Holdback-Trustee/Benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 % 1,750,000 1,750,000 100.00 %

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 2,722,498 2,112,921 159,793 199,465 410,112 15.06 % 6,551,472 4,239,086 64.70 %
TOTAL EXPD AND TRANSFERS
OUT: 2,722,498 2,112,921 159,793 199,465 410,112 15.06 % 6,551,472 4,239,086 64.70 %

Net for Fiscal Year 2021: (265,442) 4,382,188 4,100,951 4,448,165 (3,183,472) (7,366,195)

Idaho Transportation Department
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET TO ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR TO DATE - FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3/31/2021

70



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS Justin Collins Financial Mgr., FP&A JC 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Colleen Wonacott Sr. Planner - Programming cw 

Subject 
Monthly Reporting of Federal Formula Program Funding Through April 
Key Number District Route Number 

N/A N/A N/A 

Background Information 

Idaho received obligation authority through September 30th via an Appropriations Act signed on 
December 27, 2020.  Obligation authority through September 30th (365/365ths) is $359.9 million which 
corresponds to $365.4 million with match after a reduction for prorated indirect costs.  This includes 
$425,527 of Highway Infrastructure General Funds carried over from last year in the Transportation 
Management Area, $71.0 million COVID Relief, and $13.1 million of FY21 Highway Infrastructure 
General Funds as approved by the Board to date.  The COVID Relief and general funds are also included 
in the apportionments detailed below. 
An extension to the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act was signed on October 9, 2020. 
Additional apportionments were received via the Appropriations Act.  Idaho has received apportionments 
of $396 million.  Currently, obligation authority is 91% of apportionments. 
The exhibits on the following page summarize these amounts and show allotments and remaining funds 
by program through April 30, 2021. 

Recommendations 
For Information 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

71



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Exhibit One 
Actual Formula Funding for FY2021 

Per FAST Flatlined at FY 2020 – Total Year  
Federal Aid Only $316,590 
Including Match $342,741 

Per Apportionments + COVID + Hwy Infra.  

Federal Aid Only $395,992 
Including Match $428,702 

Obligation Limits through 9/30/2021  

Federal Aid Only $359,878 
Less prorated $25M indirect costs w/Match $365,446 

Notes: 1. All dollars in Thousands 
2. ‘Approved Program’ amounts from the 5/3/2021 Highway 

Funding Plan. 
3. Apportionment and Obligation Authority amounts reflect 

available funds via federal notices received through 
01/15/2021 

 
Exhibit Two 

Allotments of Available Formula Funding w/Match and Amount Remaining 

Program 
Allotted Program 
Funding through 

9/30/2021 

Program Funding 
Remaining as of 

4/30/2021 
All Other SHS Program $210,587 $78,648 

GARVEE Formula Debt Service* $67,476 $54,457 

State Planning and Research* $7,138      $176 

Metropolitan Planning* $2,409        $77 

Railroad Crossings $1,908 $908 

Transportation Alternatives (Urban/Rural) $3,373 $682 

Recreational Trails  $1,510 $1,710 

STBG - Local Urban+ $12,634 $5,043 

STBG - Transportation Mgt. Area $14,905 $9,369 

Transportation Alternatives (TMA) $423 $78 

STBG – Local Rural $17,591 $14,413 

Local Bridge+ $14,005     $7,857 

Off System Bridge $3,605 ($632) 

Local Safety $7,882 $4,186 

Total  (excluding indirect costs) $365,446 $176,972 

   

Notes: 
1.  All dollars in Thousands. 
2.  Allotments based on the 5/3/2021 Highway Funding Plan. 
3.  Funding amounts include match and reflect total formula funding available (excluding indirect costs). 
4.  Data reflects both obligation and de-obligation activity (excluding indirect costs) through April 30tht. 
5.  Advanced construction conversions of $28.1 million are outstanding for FY 2021. 
 *  These programs are provided 100% Obligation Authority.  Other programs are reduced accordingly. 
 +  $335k Penstock Br and $706k Northgate IC OA loan paybacks deferred until August Redistribution. 

  
 

72



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed  N/A 
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
LSS 

      
      

L. Scott Stokes Chief Deputy LSS  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Lorraine Dennis Executive Assistant to the Board LD  

 
Subject 
FY2022 -25 Strategic Plan for the Division of Financial Management (DFM) 
Key Number District Route Number 

                  

Background Information 
 

Idaho Code 67-1903 – 67-1904 requires all state agencies to annually submit a Strategic Plan covering a 
minimum of four years, forward to DFM by July 1. The format, structure and required elements for the 
Strategic Plan are set by DFM inclusive of the following: 
 
- Vision and/or Mission Statement 
- Goals and Objectives 
- Performance Measures and Benchmarks 
- Key External Factors 

 

Recommendations 
Staff is requesting Board members review the Attached Strategic Plan. 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

73



 
 

Idaho Transportation 
Department  

 

FY22-25 Strategic Plan 
 

 

 
 

  

74



2 
 

 

The Idaho Transportation Department is committed to being fiscally responsible 
stewards of the taxpayer funds and provide excellent customer service to the citizens of 
Idaho. The first two bulleted goals listed below defines the department’s commitment 
to maximize customer service outcomes while the latter two supports our vision. 
 

Mission and Vision 
 
The mission of the Idaho Transportation Department is Your Safety. Your Mobility. Your 
Economic Opportunity. 
 
The department’s vision is to become the best transportation department in the country.  

 

Goals and Objectives 
The department has set measurable objectives for each primary goal detailed below and 
further described in the “Measurement” section, next: 
 
• Provide the safest possible transportation system and work environment. 

o Reduce fatalities 
• Provide a mobility-focused transportation system that drives economic opportunity. 

o Keep highways clear of snow and ice during winter storms  
o Maintain pavement and bridges in good or fair condition 
o Complete project designs on time  

 o Reduce time to deliver motor vehicle credentials  
• Continually improve the employee experience. 
 o Minimize employee voluntary turnover rates 
• Continually innovate business practices. 

o Save taxpayer’s money through employee-driven innovations 
o Increase the availability of online services 

  

75



3 
 

Measurement – What Are We Doing to Achieve our Goals? 
ITD unveiled a dashboard of performance measures and benchmarks/objectives in 
January 2010. It can be found online at: https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/Dashboard/. 
Look for new performance measures updated this summer. 
 
Committed to: Provide the safest possible transportation system and 
work environment. 

We care about your safety because each person is a mother, father, son or daughter and 
even one fatality or serious injury is not acceptable. 
 
A safe transportation system connects families and communities, enables a vibrant 
economy, and allows the movement of essential supplies and services.   
 
Safety is essential to maintaining and enhancing Idaho’s high quality of life. 

 
Objective: Maintain a safe and responsible five-year fatality rate.  

Achievement: ITD recorded a five-year fatality rate of 1.35 for CY2015-19 
Future Targets: CY16-20 – 1.41, CY17-21 – 1.38, CY18-22 – 1.36, CY19-23 – 1.34 
How Target Was Chosen: This represents federal standards for each state, and also 
adheres to ITD’s own internal research. 
 
Why This Is Important 
Even one death on Idaho's highways is one death too many. Each death is a personal 
tragedy for the individual's family and friends, and has an enormous financial cost to the 
community. Every life counts. 
 
How We Measure It 
The measure is calculated by dividing the number of fatalities that occur over a five-year 
period by the number of vehicle miles traveled during that same five-year period.  
 
What We're Doing About It 
The department advances programs to eliminate traffic deaths, serious injuries, and 
economic losses. These programs focus on engineering, education, enforcement and 
emergency response. 

 
Committed to: Provide a mobility-focused transportation system that 
drives economic opportunity. 

A mobility-focused transportation system sets that stage for a healthy economy that 
improves quality of life and prosperity for every citizen, as well as future generations. 
 
Investments in transportation allow citizens to work and build strong communities that 
attract new business. This brings more jobs and ensures Idaho’s economy remains 
strong. 

 
Objective: Keep highways free of ice and snow at least 73% of the time during winter storms. 

Achievement: Last winter, roads were kept clear 80% of the time during winter storms. 

76

https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/apps/Dashboard/


4 
 

Future Targets: 73% Annually  
How Target Was Chosen: 73% is above ITD initial target and represents performing to 
a high level of service. 
 
Why This Is Important 
Idaho travelers need safe and reliable highways during winter storms. Preventing the 
accumulation of snow and ice or quickly removing it from highways increases safety, 
mobility, and improves commerce. 
 
How We Measure It 
Idaho's highways are broken down into hundreds of sections. Nearly half of these 
highway sections, including the most heavily traveled corridors, have automated 
roadway condition sensors and weather information stations where winter storms most 
affect travel -- high elevation summits, steep grades, bridge overpasses, etc. This 
measure tracks the percent of time those highway sections are kept clear of ice and 
snow during winter storms. 
 
What We're Doing About It 
ITD is using this data from the automated roadway condition sensors and weather 
information stations to continuously improve the effectiveness of its winter 
maintenance efforts across the state. The department accomplishes this by customizing 
snowplowing practices and de-icing treatments. 

 
Objective: Maintain 80% of pavement and bridges on State Highways in good or fair condition. 

Pavement Achievement: In 2020, 87% of pavements were in good or fair condition. 
Bridge Achievement: In 2020, 77% of bridges were in good condition. 
Future Targets: Maintain up to 80% Annually 
How Target Was Chosen: This target is the result of ITD research. 
 
Why This Is Important 
Pavement condition has an impact on the operating costs of passenger and commercial 
vehicles. Regularly scheduled preventive maintenance, preservation and reconstruction 
treatments extend the useful life of pavements. 
 
Ensuring that Idaho's bridges are in good condition protects transportation investments 
and lowers repair costs. It also helps maintain connectivity and commerce, which 
depends on the carrying capacity and reliability of roads and bridges. 
 
How We Measure It 
Roughness and rutting are measured by driving a specially equipped rating van over the 
entire State Highway System during spring and summer. Cracking is measured in the 
summer and fall by a visual inspection and digital video recordings. Data and visual 
inspections are then used to rate pavement conditions. 
 
The measurement is the ratio of deck area (or plan dimension) of bridges in good 
condition to the deck area of the entire inventory of state bridges stated as a 
percentage. 
 

77



5 
 

What We're Doing About It 
ITD focuses on internal efficiencies to maximize investments in the transportation 
system. Investment decisions are prioritized to keep highways and bridges in good or 
fair condition to avoid costly replacement. New management systems help ITD 
strategically schedule preventative maintenance, preservation and restoration projects 
and at the optimal time. 
 

Objective: Get 100% of the projects scheduled for construction in any given year designed and 
ready to bid on or ahead of time.  

Achievement: In FFY20, ITD had 92% of projects designed and ready to bid on time. 
Future Targets: 100% Ready to Bid Annually 
How Target Was Chosen: This represents the best possible outcome. 
 
Why This Is Important 
Completing highway infrastructure projects on time for Idaho's state highway system is 
an important aspect of credibility and customer service. Getting projects ready to bid 
involves planning, designing, environmental documentation, permitting, and right-of-
way acquisition. Stakeholders depend on the department to deliver projects in the year 
they are scheduled in the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). Projects for 
which designs are completed on time cost less and provide ITD and the construction 
industry adequate lead times. This allows flexibility to plan and schedule resources for 
the construction phases of the projects. 
 
How We Measure It 
ITD monitors the dates when highway infrastructure projects are ready to bid. This 
includes highway paving, guardrails, traffic signals, signs, bridge repair, and more. 
 
What We're Doing About It 
ITD holds managers accountable for delivering the state infrastructure projects on 
time.  The Highway Leadership Team reviews the delivery status of the next year’s 
projects monthly and provides assistance and commits additional resources as needed. 
Each infrastructure project in the Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP) is 
assigned a Project Manager who is responsible for coordinating the work on the project 
and setting and keeping the project schedule while maintaining the project scope and 
budget. Each project has a completed charter before entering the ITIP which includes an 
approved scope, schedule and budget. A Program Management Office (PMO) has been 
created to provide training and assistance in project delivery including scheduling and 
estimating. Also, each district and the bridge section have a PMO Liaison assigned to 
assist the project managers and project owners deliver the programmed projects on or 
ahead of the scheduled time. 
 

Objective: Average a 5-day or less processing cycle for DMV transactions.   
Achievement: Maintained an average processing time of 3 days in FY20. 
Future Targets: 5 Days or Less Annually 
How Target Was Chosen: This target is the result of ITD research. 
 
 
 

78



6 
 

Why This Is Important  
Customers need titles to be issued in a timely manner to legally conduct vehicle sales 
and trades, or use titles as collateral for loans. Average title turnaround time also 
measures efficiency and productivity to determine the best use of limited resources. 
 
How We Measure It 
Annual cycle times are calculated by dividing the monthly sum by twelve. 
 
What We're Doing About It 
DMV recognizes the direct customer component of their services. The division 
prioritizes staffing and provides training so applications are submitted quickly and 
correctly in minimal time. 
 

Committed to: Continually improve the employee experience 
Creating an ideal experience for employees, where they are engaged in meaningful work 
with opportunities for development and growth, drives better results and increased 
customer satisfaction. 
 
Employees thrive in an environment where their innovation and contributions matter.  
 
Employees are essential to delivering transportation systems and services, so attracting 
and retaining quality employees is critical to our success. 
 

Objective: Hold employee voluntary turnover rate to 5% (new for FY22). 
Achievement: In FY20, held turnover rate to 5.3% 
Future Targets: 5% Annually   
How Target Was Chosen: Historical performance. 
 
Why This Is Important  
Employees are the driving force of our agency. Retaining employees minimizes cost 
invested in time and dollars spent onboarding and training. Ultimately it affords us the 
ability to support our mission as we strive to be a highly sought after employer known 
for providing extraordinary customer service, fostering a constructive, results-driven 
culture, implementing innovative business practices and continually developing 
employees.    
 
How We Measure It   
Turnover rates are calculated comparing data from the number of employees at the 
beginning and end of a fiscal year to voluntary employee separations. Retirements are 
not included.  
 
What We're Doing About It   
We are committed to creating an Ideal Workplace where employees are engaged in 
their work and provided opportunities for development and growth. This drives better 
results and services for the public and increases customer satisfaction. ITD conducts 
assessment surveys every other year that measure the behaviors of our organization 
and tracks how close we are to achieving an Ideal Workplace. 

79



7 
 

Committed to: Continually innovate business practices 
Adapting to growth and change is essential to meeting customer expectations. 
Innovation provides freedom and motivation for employees to try new things and helps 
ITD to make the best use of our resources.  
 
Saving time and money allows us to stretch resources further, making us a more 
efficient agency. 
 
Continuous improvement keeps ITD focused on the future. 

 
Objective: Save taxpayer’s money through employee-driven innovation (new for FY22). 

Achievement: In FY20, saved $1.16 million in time and money from Innovate ITD. 
Future Targets: Annual Savings $1.4 million   
How Target Was Chosen: Historical performance of employee-driven innovative 
efforts. 
 
Why This Is Important 
Measuring the results of employee-driven innovation demonstrates the contribution of 
the efforts back toward ITD priorities of putting as many dollars to work on 
transportation services as possible. 
 
How We Measure It 
Employees calculate the dollars saved from their efforts as well as their time. Time is 
converted into dollars at the flat average rate of $30 per hour of time. 
 
What We're Doing About It 
Innovate ITD! is an employee-driven program. Since 2014, ITD employees have 
generated 1,689 innovative ideas that save time, money and improve the ITD 
customer’s experience, whether it is a DMV service or traveling the state. ITD has a 
senior leadership team that steers this effort supported by leaders and employees 
across the state that inspire and motivate employees to create efficiencies and 
customer service improvements. 
 

Objective: Increase the number of transactions processed online.   
Achievement: in 2020, we processed 600,000 DMV transactions online.  
Future Targets:  2021 – 700,000, 2022 – 900,000, 2023 – 950,000, 2024 – 1,000,000  
How Target Was Chosen: Historical performance combined with planned actions. 

 
Why This Is Important 
Online services provide the public an alternative method of payment for motor-vehicle 
services such as licenses and permits. These services minimize staffing requirements and 
eliminate the need for motorists to travel and wait in line. 
 
How We Measure It 
This measure captures transactions by direct DMV customers who purchase online 
services for licenses, permits and endorsements. 
 

80



8 
 

 
What We're Doing About It 
ITD has expanded the ability of customers to obtain licenses and permits online, and 
continually spreads the word for these options through targeted communication. 

  

81



9 
 

Key External Factors 
Growth  
• As of 2020, Idaho's population is 1,839,106 according to the U.S. Census Bureau. 
Current data shows the state has seen a 17.3% increase in resident population from 
2010. Idaho the second-fastest-growing state in the nation.  
 
• Skyrocketing growth creates an increasing demand on the transportation system, as 
citizens rely on the highway system to access work, supplies, services and recreational 
opportunities. ITD has to be strategic with statewide infrastructure investments in order 
to meet the demands. 
 
Federal Regulatory Climate  
•  The department continues to work within federal funding provided by the Fixing 
America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act. This act was extended to September 30, 
2021. There is emerging pressure nationally to shift a larger proportion of funding to 
large urban areas in the country reducing amounts allocated to rural areas. 
 
Resources 
•Employee recruitment and retention is the biggest risk to ITD’s ability to deliver on its 
mission. External factors include the lack of competitive pay, benefits and other 
environmental factors.   
 
     • One significant factor is housing shortages and cost. Across Idaho, the demand for 
housing has exacerbated an already thin inventory creating shortages in Idaho’s three 
largest counties: Ada, Canyon, and Kootenai. In 2020, the Boise metro area price of rent 
increased and home prices rose substantially. Soaring costs and limited housing options, 
places additional burdens and challenges to workforce recruitment efforts.  
 
• Materials and supplies costs and shortages; nationwide, home builders and other 
construction companies are battling record-high prices and material shortages like they 
have never seen before. Various natural disasters, political treaties, and shipping delays 
create critical shortages of essential materials like lumber, steel and paint. 
 
Technological 
• Rampant technological advancement is touching every aspect of our lives. There is no 
escaping it. The causes are many and the impacts are pressing. Technology impacts that 
are immediate for ITD include 1) data – storage, processing, and securing; 2) 
infrastructure modernization and architectural advancement; and 3) mobile demand for 
access to devices, applications and information. These challenges will need to be 
addressed in the immediate near term in order to ensure the successful delivery of 
service for ITD customers. 
 

82



10 
 

• Security of the transportation system is a high priority as ITD makes transportation 
decisions and investments. ITD’s progress toward information technology security is 
noted below: 

 
Cyber Security 

Below is the status on five items that require ITD action in Executive Order 2017-02: 
• Adopt and implement NIST Cybersecurity Framework - Complete 
• Implement first five CIS Critical Security Controls - Complete 

ITD has implemented and is continuing to improve all Critical Security Controls in 
coordination with the Office of ITS.  

• Develop and submit employee education and training plans for mandatory 
cybersecurity training - Complete 

• Require all state employees to complete annual cybersecurity training - Complete 
• Include a link to statewide cybersecurity website on all public websites – Complete 
 

Red Tape Reduction Act (RTRA) Compliance 
Under Governor Little’s 2019 Red Tape Reduction Act E. O. and subsequent 2020 Zero-
Based Regulation E. O., ITD has made significant regulatory reductions and modifications 
to the department’s administrative rules, also known as IDAPA Title 39.   
 
ITD’s innovative thinking and customer-focused approach to administrative rulemaking 
has made ITD an example of what other agencies strive for under this initiative. ITD staff 
has also heavily engaged with DFM on many rulemaking topics, issues and projects. 
   
Under the Zero-Based Regulation Executive Order, there was a moratorium on 
administrative rulemaking in 2020, with few exceptions, such as, in order to comply with 
new state, federal or court ordered laws.  During FY21, ITD only executed two 
rulemakings and each were the direct result of passed legislation from Idaho’s 2020 
legislative session.  As the Department begins work on 2021-22 rulemakings for FY22, 
there will be multiple opportunities for continued regulatory cuts. 
 
 FY19 – FY21 
# of Chapters -36 (-45%) 
# of Words -17,637 (-14.5%) 
# of Restrictive words -319 (-17.5%) 

*Percentages are per year basis. 
 
Additionally, ITD successfully moved one (1) piece of legislation through the 2021 
legislative session.  The proposal addressed new federal regulation and was signed into 
law on March 17, 2021, which directly supported the Red Tape Reduction Act and/or 
the Licensing Freedom Act. The bill was HB128: Title Transaction Odometer Disclosure. 
 

83

https://gov.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/74/2019/01/eo-2019-02.pdf
https://gov.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/74/2020/01/eo-2020-01.pdf
https://gov.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/74/2020/01/eo-2020-01.pdf
https://gov.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/74/2019/01/eo-2019-01.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2021/legislation/H0128/


 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 minutes 
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
LSS 

      
      

Mollie McCarty Governmental Affairs Manager MM  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Mollie McCarty GAM MM  

 
Subject 
Proposed Legislative Ideas - 2022 Legislative Session 
Key Number District Route Number 

                  

Background Information 
 

The attached Legislative Idea summary provides a brief description and any fiscal impact for the 2022 
staff proposals, which includes the new idea below: 
 

• Red Tape Reduction – fees for online DMV services – C-22-006 
 
In addition, last month the board reviewed the following ideas: 

 
• Red Tape Reduction – Driver License Surrender Requirement - C-22-002 

 
• Red Tape Reduction - Interagency Working Group membership changes - C-22-003 

 
• One Year Commercial Learner’s Permit - C-22-004 

 
These Legislative Ideas are being presented to the Idaho Transportation Board (Board) at this time as 
information only. 
 
Legislative ideas must be previewed with the Governor’s Office and ITD’s Division of Financial 
Management (DFM) Analyst before the middle of June, 2021. 
 
Legislative Ideas must be submitted to DFM by the second week of July, 2021, for their review and 
approval. 
 
DFM approval of Legislative Ideas authorizes ITD staff to proceed with the development of draft 
legislation. Draft legislation proposals will be presented to the Board for their review and approval in 
June/July, and must be submitted to DFM in early August, 2021. 

 

Recommendations 
For information only. 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

84



Idaho Transportation Department - Proposed Legislative Ideas - 2022 Legislative Session 

 
Red Tape Reduction – Fees for online DMV Services – C-22-006 

This proposal allows citizens who choose to obtain vehicle registrations online or through the mail to 
pay less or reasonably equivalent to those who do transactions at a brick and mortar office location. 
Currently when a citizen obtains registration online, there are additional fees, typically $2 plus 3%. The 
department is considering options that would make online services more equitable to office services. 

One option is to modify Idaho Code 49-402 to provide a consistent administrative fee across service 
delivery methods that would offset the need for these additional fees. 

Another option is the centralization of all mail in and online registration transactions with the 
department. This would lead to the elimination of administrative fees charged by the counties and 
would offset the additional online fees. 

Fiscal 

The fiscal impacts for this proposal are dependent on the option pursued. The proposal may cause a 
revenue increase to the department that would be used to cover the online fees directly and the 
remainder would go toward covering increased expenses of department processing. There would also 
be a fiscal benefit to customers who would pay less fees for online services. 

Contact: Brian Goeke, DMV 

 

Red Tape Reduction – Driver License Surrender Requirement – C-22-002 

This proposal seeks to eliminate the outdated practice of requiring drivers to surrender their driver’s 
license to the Department or law enforcement when their driving privileges are temporarily withdrawn 
due to suspension, revocation or cancellation as described in Idaho Code 49-327, 49-331, and 49-1222.  

A driver’s record with the Department clearly indicates the real-time status of an individual’s driving 
privileges to law enforcement. Many driving privilege withdrawals are short in duration, making the 
practice of seizing the physical driver’s license unnecessary. Additionally, a driver’s license is the primary 
source of identification for many uses such as: banking, traveling and public services. 

Fiscal  

There is no expected fiscal impact to the general fund or the Department’s dedicated fund. In practice, a 
driver’s license is rarely surrendered to the Department in this manner. Therefore, fees collected 
through subsequent duplicate license applications are negligible. Individuals who are occasionally 
subject to this process will no longer have to pay for a duplicate license after it is temporarily 
withdrawn.  

Contact:  Brian Goeke, DMV 

 

 

85

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title49/T49CH3/SECT49-327/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title49/T49CH3/SECT49-331/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title49/T49CH12/SECT49-1222/


Red Tape Reduction - Interagency Working Group membership change - C-22-003 

Idaho Code 40-514 authorizes the Interagency Working Group (IWG), a compilation of thirteen state 
agencies that advise the Idaho Transportation Department on public transportation needs and efficient 
use of certain Federal Transit Administration grants. One of the thirteen members specifically listed in 
statute is the Head Start Association of Idaho, which does not receive these grants. This proposal 
eliminates Head Start as a required participant of the IWG since it does not participate in the program, 
making this language in statute outdated and obsolete.  

Fiscal 

This proposal causes no fiscal impact to the general fund, the department or any entities because it 
simply eliminates obsolete language for membership of a statutorily authorized working group.  

Contact:  Ron Duran, PT 

 

Red Tape Reduction - One Year Commercial Learner’s Permit - C-22-004 

Like most states, Idaho is experiencing a significant shortfall of interested commercial drivers. This 
proposal will ease one of the burden’s future CDL holders must complete, by modifying Idaho Code     
49-305 to extend the Commercial Learners Permit from 180 days to one year. This will give interested 
commercial drivers additional time to prepare for their skills test, without the need to return to the 
DMV. 

Fiscal 

This change would cause a minimal $10,000 impact to the department’s dedicated funds, because 
individuals would not need to return to the DMV and renew their Commercial Learners Permit. The 
small amount of revenue lost would be a cost savings to the customers. 

Contact: Brian Goeke, DMV 

86

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title40/T40CH5/SECT40-514/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title49/T49CH3/SECT49-305/


 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 18 & 19 , 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed  10min 
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
      
      
      

Randy Danner Employee Safety Manager rtd  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Steven Spoor Maintenance Services Manager sp  

 
Subject 
Consolidation and Update to Administrative Policy 5505 
Key Number District Route Number 

                  

Background Information 
 

This is a consolidation of policy 5505 and 5535 with edits to reflect modernization and compliance with 
current ITD polices. 

 

Recommendations 
Approve policy for adoption 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

87



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 1 
Page 1 of 25 2 

 3 
 4 

OPERATING AND USAGE PRACTICES OF STATE-OWNED VEHICLES 5 
 6 
Purpose 7 
This policy defines the authorized ridership and use of state-owned vehicles, including aircraft and 8 
vehicles rented in the name of the Department (ITD). 9 
 10 
Legal Authority 11 
• Idaho Code 40-312(2) – Authority of Board to promulgate rules for the expenditure of all moneys 12 

appropriated or allocated by law to the Department or the Board. 13 
 14 
• Idaho Code 40-314(3) - Authority of Board to exercise any power or duty necessary to implement 15 

and carry out the provisions of Title 40 and the control of the financial affairs of the Board and the 16 
Department. 17 

 18 
• Idaho Code 40-505 - The Director of the Idaho Transportation Department is the administrative 19 

officer of the Board. 20 
 21 
Operating and Usage Practices for State-Owned Vehicles 22 
The Idaho Transportation Department shall, at a minimum, comply with state-owned vehicle, 23 
including aircraft, usage requirements of state law and ITD policy.  All usage of state vehicles shall 24 
be strictly for the conduct of official Department business. The use of state-owned vehicles is for 25 
official business or approved commuting only.  Vehicles rented in the name of the Department ITD 26 
are included in this policy. 27 
 28 
Department personnel shallEmployees: 29 
 30 

• Shall Ffollow the state laws governing motor vehicle, drivers, and traffic laws.  Seat belts 31 
shall be worn in all seating positions that are equipped with operable seat belts whenever 32 
riding in or driving state-owned vehicles.  Seat belts State Laws shall also be used followed 33 
when using personal vehicles for on departmentITD business.  Department eEmployees shall 34 
be liable for any fines arising from infractions of state and local traffic laws and personally 35 
liable for any damage if the employee is acting outside the course and scope of official duty.  36 
Employees who are found guilty of committing an infraction of state law may be requested to 37 
attend a defensive driving course and may be subject to disciplinary action depending on 38 
severity. 39 
 40 

• Use state-owned vehicles for official business purposes only.  Department employees, Along 41 
with authorized volunteers, and others in the conduct of doing conducting official business 42 
with the state of Idaho, shall be are the only passengers that may be transported.  (Emergency 43 
assistance shall be considered official business.)  The vehicle operator is responsible for 44 
determining if a passenger(s) can be transported in a department vehicle.  Any time a non-45 
State employee will be riding in an ITD vehicle, the Employee Safety and Risk Manager or 46 
the District Safety Compliance Officer shall be notified and provided with a signed copy of 47 
the ITD-5505S - Release and Acknowledgement of Responsibility form prior to the event 48 
unless the event is an emergency, in which case the release form shall be provided at the 49 
earliest opportunity. Non-State employees may be allowed to drive or ride in state vehicles 50 
under the following limited conditions: 51 
 52 
 Non-State employees shall execute and deliver to the supervising Department employee a 53 

88



signed copy of the supplemental ITD-5505S - Release and Acknowledgement of 54 
Responsibility form prior to driving or riding in a state owned vehicle; 55 
 56 
May provide a ride for stranded motorists in emergency situations that involve isolation, 57 
dangerous inclement weather, and/or if there is no expectation that aid will be 58 
forthcoming in a reasonable amount of time. 59 
 60 
 61 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 62 
Page 2 of 25 63 

  64 
 65 

 Non-State employees may be allowed to drive or ride in state-owned vehicles only when 66 
no other non-state owned vehicles are reasonably available and such travel is directly 67 
associated with the business purpose of the relationship between the non-State employee 68 
and the DepartmentITD; 69 
 70 

 Spouses or family member of Department employees shall not drive or ride in state 71 
vehicles unless they fall into the above category; 72 
 73 

 Department eEmployees may pick up stranded motorists in emergency situations that 74 
involve isolation, dangerous inclement weather, and no expectation that aid will be 75 
forthcoming in a reasonable amount of time. 76 
 77 

 Non-State employees shall not be allowed to drive a state owned vehicle while an 78 
Department ITD employee is a passenger in the same vehicle. 79 
 80 

 Prior authorization shall be obtained from a District Engineer, Division Administrator 81 
or a member of executive management before a non-State employee may be allowed 82 
to drive or ride in a state owned vehicle.  Said authorization shall not be given until 83 
sufficient evidence of the non-State employee’s current and valid driver’s license has 84 
been obtained by the authorizing individual; 85 

 86 
 Any non-State employee authorized to drive or ride in a state owned vehicle shall at all 87 

times abide by the terms and conditions of this policy relating to Department employees’ 88 
operation of state owned vehicles. 89 

 90 
• Be Shall be authorized to drive a state vehicle by the Employee Safety/Risk Management 91 

Manager. The employee and supervisor shall submit an ITD-1211, Supervisor's Request For 92 
ITD Driving Authorization.  The Safety/Risk Management Manager will validate after 93 
acceptance of the employee's driver record and possession of a valid Idaho Class D Driver's 94 
license or an Idaho Class A, B, or C Commercial Driver's license. 95 
 96 

• Take Shall take reasonable precautions to adequately protect the state-owned vehicle from 97 
damage or theft. 98 
 99 

• Shall perform a daily walk around inspection of the vehicle prior to use noting any damage or 100 
deficiencies that would prevent the safe operation of the vehicle. 101 
 102 

• Park vehicles in areas which do not reflect adversely on the Department.  Employees should 103 
not park state vehicles at nightclubs, recreational establishments, etc.Shall be conscious of 104 
public awareness of ITD vehicles and conduct yourself appropriately as a state employee and 105 

89



strive to not park at locations which would reflect poorly upon the Department’s public 106 
image. 107 
 108 

• Promptly Shall promptly report any incidents or accidents involving a state-owned vehicle to 109 
their supervisor or the Employee Safety/Risk Management section. 110 
 111 

• Shall adhere to Administrative Policy, 5558 – USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES WHILE 112 
DRIVING AND OPERATING ITD VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 113 
 114 

• Follow Shall follow the instructions on the Operator Information stickers placed in all road 115 
equipment. 116 
 117 

Non-State Employees: 118 
 119 

• May be allowed to drive or ride in state vehicles under the following limited conditions: 120 
 121 

• Shall execute and deliver to the supervising employee a signed copy of the supplemental 122 
ITD-5505S – Release and Acknowledgement of Responsibility form prior to driving or riding 123 
in a state owned vehicle; 124 
 125 

• May be allowed to drive or ride in state-owned vehicles only when no other non-state owned 126 
vehicles are reasonably available and such travel is directly associated with the business 127 
purpose of the relationship between the non-State employee and ITD; 128 
 129 

• Including spouses and/or family members of employees shall not drive or ride in state 130 
vehicles unless they fall into the above category; 131 
 132 

• Shall not be allowed to drive a state owned vehicle while an ITD employee is a passenger in 133 
the same vehicle. 134 
 135 

• Must have prior authorization obtained from a District Engineer, Division Administrator or a 136 
member of executive management before a non-State employee may be allowed to drive or 137 
ride in a state owned vehicle.  Said authorization shall not be give until sufficient evidence of 138 
the non-State employee’s current and valid driver’s license has been obtained by the 139 
authorizing individual; 140 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 141 
Page 3 of 5 142 

 143 
• Shall at all time abide by the terms and conditions of this policy relating to employees’ 144 

operation of state owned vehicles; 145 
 146 
Employees shall NOT: 147 
 148 

• Smoke or vape in any department vehicle as required by Administrative Policy 5508 – 149 
DEPARTMENT SMOKING POLICY 150 
 151 

• Applicants As applicants for employment positions within the Department may be allowed to 152 
operate Department ITD-owned heavy equipment/vehicles for the purpose of performing 153 
hands-on skills testing demonstration relating to the equipment/position for which they are 154 

90



applying.  Such operation shall be under the direct supervision of The skills demonstration 155 
will be directed by an ITD supervisor/manager level employee who is directly involved in the 156 
evaluation process familiar with the job requirements and equipment to be operated.  Prior to 157 
a non-employee applicant operating Department ITD equipment for skills testing 158 
demonstration purposes, the Employee Safety and Risk hiring Manager or the District Safety 159 
Officer shall state that a review of the applicant’s application materials indicate that the 160 
applicant has the basic skills and experience necessary to safely operate the specific 161 
equipment/vehicles being used for testing purposes and shall forward this information to the 162 
Human Resource Manager for review and documentation designee will conduct a joint walk 163 
around and thorough safety briefing for that piece of equipment. The non-employee applicant 164 
shall review and sign the supplemental ITD form 5505-S Release and Acknowledgement of 165 
Responsibility form which shall be filed as part of the interview files recruitment file. 166 

 167 
Employees and Non-State Employees shall NOT: 168 
 169 

• Smoke or vape in any ITD vehicle as required by Administrative Policy 5508 – 170 
DEPARTMENT SMOKING POLICY. 171 

 172 
Parking State Vehicles at Employee Residences 173 
 174 
Driving a state vehicle from the employee’s official duty station** to home, parking the vehicle at 175 
home, and/or returning the vehicle from home to the employee’s official duty station is permissible 176 
only for the following reasons: 177 
 178 

• De Minimus Usage  179 
De Minimus Usage occurs when a state employee occasionally drives a state vehicle from the 180 
official duty station to his/her home: 181 

 182 
 for an early departure or arrival that requires the employee to leave or return to the 183 

employee’s home at least one-half hour (1/2) before or after the employee’s normal 184 
home-to-work commuting schedule, and  185 

 186 
 involves travel to a distant location (over 50 miles) away from the employee’s official 187 

duty station for an authorized business activity, and 188 
 189 

 does not pass by his/her official duty station to make the trip. 190 
 191 

Use of a state vehicle that meets the De Minimus Usage limitation is exempt from being taxed 192 
as a fringe benefit.  193 

 194 
 195 
 196 
 197 
 198 
 199 
 200 
 201 
 202 
 203 
 204 
*Official Duty Station is the city, town, or other location where ITD designates that the employee’s 205 
place of business is located, or where the employee’s work is performed on a permanent basis.  The 206 
official duty station is determined by the needs of ITD and not assigned because it is close to the 207 
official employee’s home or preferred living area. 208 
 209 
 210 

91



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 211 
Page 4 of 5 212 

 213 
 Commute Assignment  214 

Commute Assignment occurs when a state employee is approved for travel between an 215 
employee’s duty station and home or another place of work and home for reasons considered 216 
in the best interest of the state and approved by the Director or delegate. 217 
 218 
Employees who are authorized for a commute assignment shall pay taxable fringe benefits, as 219 
applicable, and be subject to the rules and procedures provided in the Financial Services 220 
manual. 221 

 222 
 Commute Assignment Approval 223 

The Division Administrator shall review and authorize commute assignments, which must be  224 
submitted to the State Board of Examiners for approval.  Monitoring and usage of all state 225 
vehicles shall be the responsibility of the Chief Officers, Division Administrators, District 226 
Engineers, and the Controller. 227 

 228 
Each year, all commute assignments shall receive written authorization by the Director or 229 
delegate, and then be approved by the State Board of Examiners.  Each District shall assess 230 
the needs of the District and recommend commute assignments for specific conditions.   231 

 232 
Vehicle Telematics and Data Collection 233 
State-owned equipment and vehicles including sedans, pickups, vans, and SUV’s are equipped with 234 
telematics devices to record vehicle usage and on-board diagnostic information.  The data generated 235 
by the vehicle and recorded by the telematics device is stored and maintained by the vendor.  Data 236 
collected is used to track and monitor vehicle utilization including miles traveled, days used, idle 237 
time, speed, and usage of the vehicle.  The system also collects data regarding vehicle on-board 238 
diagnostics.   239 
 240 
The telematics system is not intended as an employee monitoring system, however, it does provide 241 
incidental vehicle alerts for unsafe and unusual operation which must be addressed appropriately by 242 
Management.  Automated reporting from the system includes, but is not limited to excessive idling 243 
practices, driving at sustained speeds in excess of the posted speed limit, excessive speed, hard 244 
braking/acceleration, and vehicle diagnostic alerts regarding vehicle fault codes.   245 
 246 
ITD reserves the right to review employee use of State owned equipment and vehicles at any time for 247 
any reason.  Therefore, employees should not have an expectation of privacy as to the use of State 248 
owned equipment and vehicles.  Tampering with the telematics or any GPS (Global Positioning 249 
System) device and/or equipment in the vehicle is expressly prohibited. 250 
 251 
Access to the system and data generated is restricted to Headquarters and District Fleet Management 252 
personnel, Chief Officers, Division Administrators, and District Engineers.  Any specialized reports 253 
or data requests must be sanctioned by one of these upper management positions.  Any unauthorized 254 
use of the system shall be subject to corrective action.  255 
 256 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 257 
Page 5 of 5 258 

 259 
Immediate Corrective Actions for Abusing the Privilege of Using a State-Owned Vehicle  260 
Any employee found abusing the privilege of using a state-owned vehicle for inappropriate use or 261 

92



unauthorized purposes shall be subject to immediate corrective action, up to and including 262 
disciplinary action. 263 
 264 
Violation of the preceding state vehicle operation rules or if an employee is found abusing the 265 
privilege of using a state-owned vehicle for any unauthorized purpose shall be subject to 266 
immediate corrective action, up to and including disciplinary action. 267 
Department personnel shall adhere to Administrative policy, A-18-12, ALCOHOL AND DRUG-268 
FREE WORKPLACE.**Official Duty Station is the city, town, or other location where ITD 269 
designates that the employee’s place of business is located, or where the employee’s work is 270 
performed on a permanent basis.  The official duty station is determined by the needs of ITD and not 271 
assigned because it is close to the official employee’s home or preferred living area. 272 
 273 
 274 
 275 
 Signed  Date  July 26, 2013  276 
Brian W. Ness 277 
Director  278 

93



 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5535 
Page 1 of 2 

 
STATE-OWNED VEHICLE USAGE PRACTICES 

 
Purpose 
This policy defines the usage of state-owned vehicles. 
 
Legal Authority 
• Idaho Code 40-312(2) – Authority of Board to promulgate rules for the expenditure of all 

moneys appropriated or allocated by law to the Department or the Board. 
 

• Idaho Code 40-314(3) - Authority of Board to exercise any power or duty necessary to 
implement and carry out the provisions of Title 40 and the control of the financial affairs of 
the Board and the Department. 

 

• Idaho Code 40-505 - The Director of the Idaho Transportation Department is the 
administrative officer of the Board. 

 

• Idaho Code 67-2004 – Regulation of per diem travelling expense. 
 

• Idaho Code 67-2007 – Standard travel pay and allowances. 
 

• Idaho Code 67-2008 – Determination of per diem allowance by Board of Examiners. 
 
The State Board of Examiners oversees and establishes state-owned vehicle usage practices and 
procedures for all state agencies and as noted in their Idaho State Travel Policies and Procedures, 
Section 9, Use of State Vehicles, “The use of state vehicles for personal or other non-official 
business is strictly prohibited.” 
 
ITD Usage Practices for State-Owned Vehicles 
The Idaho Transportation Department shall, at a minimum, comply with state-owned vehicle usage 
requirements of state law and Department policy.  All usage of state vehicles shall be strictly for the 
conduct of Department business.  Driving a state vehicle from the employee’s official duty station** 
to home, parking the vehicle at home, and/or returning the vehicle from home to the employee’s 
official duty station is permissible only for the following reasons: 
 
1.  De Minimus Usage  
De Minimus Usage occurs when a state employee occasionally drives a state vehicle from the official 
duty station to his/her home: 
 

• for an early departure or arrival that requires the employee to leave or return to the employee’s 
home at least one-half hour (1/2) before or after the employee’s normal home-to-work 
commuting schedule, and  
 

• involves travel to a distant location (over 50 miles) away from the employee’s official duty 
station for an authorized business activity, and 
 

• does not pass by his/her official duty station to make the trip. 
 
Use of a state vehicle that meets the De Minimus Usage limitation is exempt from being taxed as a 
fringe benefit.  
 
2.  Commute Assignment  
Commute Assignment occurs when a state employee is approved for travel between an employee’s  

94



 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5535 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 duty station and home or another place of work and home for reasons considered in the best interest 
of the state and approved by the Director or delegate. 
 
Employees who are authorized for a commute assignment shall pay taxable fringe benefits, as 
applicable, and be subject to the rules and procedures provided in the Financial Services manual. 
 
Commute Assignment Approval 
The Director or delegate shall review and authorize commute assignments and submit commute 
assignment information to the State Board of Examiners for approval.  Monitoring and usage of all 
state vehicles shall be the responsibility of the Chief Officers, Division Administrators, District 
Engineers, and the Controller. 
 
Each year, all commute assignments shall receive written authorization by the Director or delegate, 
and then be approved by the State Board of Examiners.  Each District shall assess the needs of the 
District and recommend commute assignments for specific conditions.   
 
Immediate Corrective Actions for Abusing the Privilege of Using a State-Owned Vehicle  
Any employee found abusing the privilege of using a state-owned vehicle for inappropriate use or 
unauthorized purposes shall be subject to immediate corrective action, up to and including 
disciplinary action. 
 
**Official Duty Station is the city, town, or other location where the Department designates that the 
employee’s place of business is located, or where the employee’s work is performed on a permanent 
basis.  The official duty station is determined by the needs of the Department and not assigned 
because it is close to the official employee’s home or preferred living area. 
 
 
 Signed  Date: November 25, 2014  
Brian W. Ness 
Director  
 

95



 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 
Page 1 of 5 

 
OPERATING AND USAGE PRACTICES OF STATE-OWNED VEHICLES 

 
Purpose 
This policy defines the authorized ridership and use of state-owned vehicles, including aircraft and 
vehicles rented in the name of the Department (ITD). 
 
Legal Authority 
• Idaho Code 40-312(2) – Authority of Board to promulgate rules for the expenditure of all moneys 

appropriated or allocated by law to the Department or the Board. 
 
• Idaho Code 40-314(3) - Authority of Board to exercise any power or duty necessary to implement 

and carry out the provisions of Title 40 and the control of the financial affairs of the Board and the 
Department. 

 
• Idaho Code 40-505 - The Director of the Idaho Transportation Department is the administrative 

officer of the Board. 
 
Operating and Usage Practices for State-Owned Vehicles 
The Idaho Transportation Department shall, at a minimum, comply with state-owned vehicle, 
including aircraft, usage requirements of state law and ITD policy.  All usage of state vehicles shall 
be strictly for the conduct of official Department business.  Vehicles rented in the name of the ITD 
are included in this policy. 
 
Employees: 
 

• Shall follow the state laws governing motor vehicle, drivers, and traffic laws.  Seat belts shall 
be worn in all seating positions that are equipped with operable seat belts whenever riding in 
or driving state-owned vehicles.  State laws shall also be followed when using personal 
vehicles for ITD business.  Employees shall be liable for any fines arising from infractions of 
state and local traffic laws and personally liable for any damage if the employee is acting 
outside the course and scope of official duty.  Employees who are found guilty of committing 
an infraction of state law may be requested to attend a defensive driving course and may be 
subject to disciplinary action depending on severity. 

 
• Along with authorized volunteers, and others conducting official business with the state of 

Idaho, shall be the only passengers that may be transported.  (Emergency assistance shall be 
considered official business.)  The vehicle operator is responsible for determining if a 
passenger(s) can be transported in a department vehicle.  Any time a non-State employee will 
be riding in an ITD vehicle, the Employee Safety and Risk Manager or the District Safety 
Compliance Officer shall be provided with a signed copy of the ITD-5505S - Release and 
Acknowledgement of Responsibility form prior to the event unless the event is an 
emergency, in which case the release form shall be provided at the earliest opportunity.  
 

• May provide a ride for stranded motorists in emergency situations that involve isolation, 
dangerous inclement weather, and/or if there is no expectation that aid will be forthcoming in 
a reasonable amount of time. 

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT 
P.O. Box 7129  •  Boise, ID  83707-1129 

(208) 334-8000  •  itd.idaho.gov 
 
 
 

96



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 
Page 2 of 5 

 
• Shall be authorized to drive a state vehicle by the Employee Safety/Risk Management 

Manager. The employee and supervisor shall submit an ITD-1211, Supervisor's Request For 
ITD Driving Authorization.  The Safety/Risk Management Manager will validate the 
employee's driver record and possession of a valid Idaho Class D Driver's license or an Idaho 
Class A, B, or C Commercial Driver's license. 
 

• Shall take reasonable precautions to adequately protect the state-owned vehicle from damage 
or theft. 
 

• Shall perform a daily walk around inspection of the vehicle prior to use noting any damage or 
deficiencies that would prevent the safe operation of the vehicle. 

 
• Shall be conscious of public awareness of ITD vehicles and conduct yourself appropriately as 

a state employee and strive to not park at locations which would reflect poorly upon the 
Department’s public image. 

 
• Shall promptly report any incidents or accidents involving a state-owned vehicle to their 

supervisor or the Employee Safety/Risk Management section. 
 
• Shall adhere to Administrative Policy, 5558 – USE OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES WHILE 

DRIVING AND OPERATING ITD VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 
 
• Shall follow the instructions on the Operator Information stickers placed in all road 

equipment. 
 

Non-State Employees: 

• May be allowed to drive or ride in state vehicles under the following limited conditions: 
 

• Shall execute and deliver to the supervising employee a signed copy of the supplemental 
ITD-5505S - Release and Acknowledgement of Responsibility form prior to driving or riding 
in a state owned vehicle; 

 
• May be allowed to drive or ride in state-owned vehicles only when no other non-state owned 

vehicles are reasonably available and such travel is directly associated with the business 
purpose of the relationship between the non-State employee and ITD; 

 

• Including spouses and/or family member of employees shall not drive or ride in state vehicles 
unless they fall into the above category; 

 

• Shall not be allowed to drive a state owned vehicle while an ITD employee is a passenger in 
the same vehicle. 

 
• Must have prior authorization obtained from a District Engineer, Division Administrator or a 

member of executive management before a non-State employee may be allowed to drive or 
ride in a state owned vehicle.  Said authorization shall not be given until sufficient evidence 
of the non-State employee’s current and valid driver’s license has been obtained by the 
authorizing individual; 

97



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 

• Shall at all times abide by the terms and conditions of this policy relating to employees’ 
operation of state owned vehicles. 
 

• As applicants for employment positions, may be allowed to operate ITD-owned heavy 
equipment/vehicles for the purpose of performing hands-on skills demonstration relating to 
the equipment/position for which they are applying.  The skills demonstration will be 
directed by an ITD supervisor/manager level employee who is familiar with the job 
requirements and equipment to be operated.  Prior to a non-employee applicant operating 
ITD equipment for skills demonstration purposes, the hiring Manager or designee will 
conduct a joint walk around and thorough safety briefing for that piece of equipment. The 
non-employee applicant shall review and sign the ITD form 5505-S Release and 
Acknowledgement of Responsibility form which shall be filed as part of the recruitment file. 
 

Employees and Non-State Employees shall NOT: 
 

• Smoke or vape in any ITD vehicle as required by Administrative Policy 5508 – 
DEPARTMENT SMOKING POLICY 
 

Parking State Vehicles at Employee Residences 
Driving a state vehicle from the employee’s official duty station* to home, parking the vehicle at 
home, and/or returning the vehicle from home to the employee’s official duty station is permissible 
only for the following reasons: 
 

• De Minimus Usage  
De Minimus Usage occurs when a state employee occasionally drives a state vehicle from the 
official duty station to his/her home: 

 

 for an early departure or arrival that requires the employee to leave or return to the 
employee’s home at least one-half hour (1/2) before or after the employee’s normal 
home-to-work commuting schedule, and  

 

 involves travel to a distant location (over 50 miles) away from the employee’s official 
duty station for an authorized business activity, and 

 

 does not pass by his/her official duty station to make the trip. 
 

Use of a state vehicle that meets the De Minimus Usage limitation is exempt from being taxed 
as a fringe benefit.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
*Official Duty Station is the city, town, or other location where ITD designates that the employee’s 
place of business is located, or where the employee’s work is performed on a permanent basis.  The 
official duty station is determined by the needs of ITD and not assigned because it is close to the 
official employee’s home or preferred living area. 
 
 

98



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 Commute Assignment  

Commute Assignment occurs when a state employee is approved for travel between an 
employee’s duty station and home or another place of work and home for reasons considered 
in the best interest of the state and approved by the Director or delegate. 
 
Employees who are authorized for a commute assignment shall pay taxable fringe benefits, as 
applicable, and be subject to the rules and procedures provided in the Financial Services 
manual. 
 

 Commute Assignment Approval 
The Division Administrator shall review and authorize commute assignments, which must be 
submitted to the State Board of Examiners for approval.  Monitoring and usage of all state 
vehicles shall be the responsibility of the Chief Officers, Division Administrators, District 
Engineers, and the Controller. 

 
Each year, all commute assignments shall receive written authorization by the Director or 
delegate, and then be approved by the State Board of Examiners.  Each District shall assess 
the needs of the District and recommend commute assignments for specific conditions.   

 
Vehicle Telematics and Data Collection 
State-owned equipment and vehicles including sedans, pickups, vans, and SUV’s are equipped with 
telematics devices to record vehicle usage and on-board diagnostic information.  The data generated 
by the vehicle and recorded by the telematics device is stored and maintained by the vendor.  Data 
collected is used to track and monitor vehicle utilization including miles traveled, days used, idle 
time, speed, and usage of the vehicle.  The system also collects data regarding vehicle on-board 
diagnostics.   
 
The telematics system is not intended as an employee monitoring system, however, it does provide 
incidental vehicle alerts for unsafe and unusual operation which must be addressed appropriately by 
Management.  Automated reporting from the system includes, but is not limited to excessive idling 
practices, driving at sustained speeds in excess of the posted speed limit, excessive speed, hard 
braking/acceleration, and vehicle diagnostic alerts regarding vehicle fault codes.   
 
ITD reserves the right to review employee use of State owned equipment and vehicles at any time for 
any reason.  Therefore, employees should not have an expectation of privacy as to the use of State 
owned equipment and vehicles.  Tampering with the telematics or any GPS (Global Positioning 
System) device and/or equipment in the vehicle is expressly prohibited. 
 
Access to the system and data generated is restricted to Headquarters and District Fleet Management 
personnel, Chief Officers, Division Administrators, and District Engineers.  Any specialized reports 
or data requests must be sanctioned by one of these upper management positions.  Any unauthorized 
use of the system shall be subject to corrective action.  
 
 
 
 

99



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 5505 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Immediate Corrective Actions for Abusing the Privilege of Using a State-Owned Vehicle  
Any employee found abusing the privilege of using a state-owned vehicle for inappropriate use or 
unauthorized purposes shall be subject to immediate corrective action, up to and including 
disciplinary action. 
 
 
 
   Date    
Brian W. Ness 
Director  
 

100



RES. NO 
  
WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board is charged with setting policies for the Idaho 
Transportation Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Administrative Policy 5505 Operating State-Owned Vehicles was 
consolidated with Administrative Policy 5535 State Owned Vehicle Usage Practices and 
renamed 5505 Operating and Usage Practices of State-Owned Vehicles; and 
 
WHEREAS, 5505 Operating and Usage Practices of State-Owned Vehicles was revised 
to include the use of telematics and update references to other polices on smoking in 
vehicles and the use of handheld electronic devices in vehicles. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board concurs with revisions to 
Administrative Policy 5505 Operating and Usage Practices of State-Owned Vehicles and 
deletion of Administrative Policy 5535 State Owned Vehicle Usage Practices. 
 

101



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS John Tomlinson/Tabitha Smith HSM/ Grants Contracts Officer JT/TS 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

John Tomlinson/Tabitha Smith HSM/ Grants Contracts Officer JT/TS 

Subject 
Idaho Battle of the Belts 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

The Office of Highway Safety partners with State Farm Insurance each year for the Idaho Battle of the 
Belts competition.  This is open to all Idaho high school students, and they are asked to develop plans for 
increasing seat belt use in their high schools and communities.  Thanks to the generosity of State Farm, 
the students compete for scholarship money. 

Tabitha Smith will talk about the competition and the record participation we saw this year.  She will also 
announce the 2021 winners, and show reaction from some of the award winners.  

Recommendations 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

For information.

102



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  10 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS John Tomlinson/Richard Adamson HSM/ Captain, ISP D2 JT/RA 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

John Tomlinson/Richard Adamson HSM/ Captain, ISP D2 JT/RA 

Subject 
Idaho Law Enforcement Phlebotomy Program 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

Back in 2009, Idaho was one of the early adopters of the law enforcement phlebotomy program.  Just 
recently, Idaho State Police has joined the program.  There are around 15 law enforcement agencies 
across the state that participate, and there are approximately 65 certified law enforcement phlebotomists.  
The program initially focused on impaired driving cases, but has now expanded into other cases like 
trafficking, sexual assault, and others. 

Idaho State Police Captain Richard Adamson was instrumental in bringing ISP on board with this 
program, and he is going to talk about how it works, and how the program is going so far. 

Recommendations 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

For information.

103



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  5 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS John Tomlinson Highway Safety Manager JT 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

John Tomlinson Highway Safety Manager JT 

Subject 
Highway Safety Plan 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

I will be doing an informational presentation previewing the proposed Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Highway 
Safety Plan.  This is the Office of Highway Safety’s FFY 2022 plan, which has to be submitted to the 
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration by July 1, 2021. 

I will talk about the program areas and highlight the newest projects that are included in this plan.  I will 
seek any recommendations the Board may have for the plan, so the final draft can be brought before 
them for approval at the June Board Meeting. 

The draft Highway Safety Plan is provided under separate cover.

Recommendations 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

For information.

104



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 Min 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

Randy Gill PMO Manager rg 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Randy Gill PMO Manager rg 

Subject 
Spending Plan for Available One - Time Funds 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

The purpose of this Board item is to present projects to the Board for approval to use the FY21 ST Covid 
Mitigation Set-Aside Funds, the FY22 ST Building Idaho’s Future - General Fund Surplus and the FY21 
Covid Relief Federal Aid Funds. 

FY21Covid Mitigation Set-Aside Funds became available as ITD prepared for what might happen to the 
state funds as we headed into the unknown during the pandemic.  We intentionally did not program funds 
that we did not know if we would be receiving.  Currently we have received and have current year 
spending authority for $63 Million.  In past meetings the Board has approved the use of $14.6 Million.  
This request is for the remaining $48.4M. 

As part of Building Idaho’s Future plan, House Bill 308 was recently approved appropriating and 
transferring $126M from the General Funds Surplus of which $72.8M was transferred to the Strategic 
Initiative Program Fund for use by ITD. 

In the March 2021 Board meeting the Board was presented with a distribution plan for the $71M of FY21 
Covid Relief Federal Aid Funds Idaho received for highway projects.  ITD’s share of that is $63.175M with 
ITD’s matching share. 

It is proposed that the Board approve using these available one-time funds to add projects to the program 
and to advance the projects as shown on the attachment. 

Recommendations 
That the Board approve the resolution on page 107. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

105



FY21 COVID MITIGATION SET‐ASIDE ST (estimated $63M for FY21)
District KEYNO Location Currrent Year Costs New Prog Year Notes

All NEW FACILITIES ‐ District 2 Well and ADA Study N/A 900,000  FY21
1 NEW US 95, LAKESHORE DRIVE N/A 8,000,000  FY21
4 23281 SH‐75, SUN VALLEY SPUR RELINQUISHMENT N/A 4,180,000  FY21
6 23117 SH 33, CANYON CREEK BRIDGE REPAIRS N/A 550,000  FY21
6 23229 SH 20, ASHTON to TARGHEE PASS PEL N/A 1,000,000  E.D. PC in FY21

Prior Approval Received by the Board 14,630,000                  

All NEW MATCH FOR COVID 19 FA N/A 4,300,000  FY21
1 NEW US 95, SAGLE to LAKESHORE DRIVE ‐ NEPA N/A 3,000,000  E.D. PC in FY21
1 NEW US‐95, ALTERNATE ROUTE ‐ HUETTER BYPASS ‐ NEPA N/A 3,000,000  E.D. PC in FY21
2 NEW US‐95, MOSCOW NORTH & MOSCOW ALTERNATE ROUTE ‐ PEL N/A 4,000,000  E.D. PC in FY21
2 NEW SH‐8, MOSCOW to TROY ‐ PEL N/A 2,000,000  E.D. PC in FY21
4 NEW SNAKE RIVER CROSSING ‐ PEL N/A 4,000,000  E.D. PC in FY21
1 NEW I 90, MULLAN TO MONTANA ST LN, SHOSHONE CO. N/A 1,100,000  FY21
1 NEW NON‐COMM PAVEMENT REHAB N/A 6,500,000  FY21
1 22888 SH3, GOOSEHAVEN RD to ROUND LAKE RD N/A 18,000,000                   FY21
2 NEW NON‐COMM PAVEMENT REHAB N/A 1,400,000  FY21
5 NEW SH‐34, MP 84.975 – 90.867 (West Side Road to Wayan Loop Road) N/A 1,070,000  FY21

Total this Request 48,370,000                  

Total Combined 63,000,000                  

BUILDING IDAHO'S FUTURE ‐ GENERAL FUND SURPLUS FY22 ST BIF ONE‐TIME (estimated SHS $72.8M)
District KEYNO Location ConstYr Costs New Prog Year Notes

1 20397 I‐90, WALLACE TO MULLAN IC 68 2024 8,100,000  FY22
2 20704 US 12, OROFINO TO GREER, CLEARWATER CO 2025 8,800,000  FY22
3 N/A I‐84, CALDWELL to KARCHER (Centennial IC 27 to Franklin IC 29) N/A 30,000,000                   FY22
4 20669 SH 27, BURLEY CL TO JCT I‐84, MINIDOKA CO 2024 3,241,000  FY22
4 20675 I 84, KIMBERLY IC (SH 50), JEROME CO 2026 13,632,000                   FY22
5 21895 US30, NOUNAN RD TO BENNINGTON, BEAR LAKE CO 2025 5,000,000  FY22
6 20420 I 15B, CONCRETE INTERSECTIONS, IDAHO FALLS 2023 1,717,000  FY22
6 20514 SH47, OVERLAY, FREMONT CO 2025 2,310,000  FY22

Total 72,800,000                  

FA ‐ COVID RELIEF FY21 FA (estimated SHS $63.175M w match)
District KEYNO Location ConstYr Costs New Prog Year Notes

1 21938 US 95, IRONWOOD TO SH53 SIGNAL UPGRADES, KOOTENAI CO 2026 2,450,000  FY21
2 20032 US95, CULDESAC CANYON PASSING LN, PH 3, NEZ PERCE CO 2023 14,500,000                   FY21
4 19973 I84, DECLO POE EB, CASSIA CO 2027 12,225,000                   FY21
5 21831 SH 34 ‐ SODA SPRINGS TO CONDA CARIBOU CO 2022 2,289,000  FY21
5 19849 I15, ARIMO RD IC# 40, BANNOCK CO 2023 9,629,000  FY21
5 20455 SH 39 ‐ STERLING N RD TO RRX BINGHAM CO 2022 8,171,000  FY21
6 20114 US20, EXPRESSWAY MEDIAN CABLE BARRIER, BONNEVILLE CO 2023 4,000,000  FY21
6 20735 US20B, YELLOWSTONE HWY & HOLMES MICROSEAL, IDAHO FALLS  2023 1,766,000  FY21
6 20544 SH31, OVERLAY & GUARDRAIL, BONNEVILLE CO 2025 8,145,000  FY21

Total 63,175,000                  

Spending Plan Board Item Attachment

106



ITD 2210   (Rev. 11-05) Board Agenda Item 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Transportation Board to effectively utilize all available federal, state, local, 
and private capital investment funding; and 

WHEREAS, the FY21 Covid Mitigation Set-Aside Funds became available as ITD prepared for what might 
happen to the state funds as we headed into the unknown during the pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, currently ITD has received and has current year spending authority for $63 Million.  In past 
meetings the Board has approved the use of $14.6 Million. The use of the remaining $48.4 Million is shown 
on the attachment; and 

WHEREAS, the Building Idaho’s Future plan, House Bill 308 was recently approved appropriating and 
transferring $126 Million from the General Funds Surplus of which $72.8 Million was transferred to the 
Strategic Initiative Program Fund for use by ITD; and 

WHEREAS, In the March 2021 Board meeting the Board was presented with a distribution plan for the  
$71 Million of FY21 Covid Relief Federal Aid Funds Idaho received for highway projects.  ITD’s share of 
that is $63.175 Million with ITD’s matching share. 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department is prepared to incorporate the attached projects into the 
approved FY21 – 27 Idaho Transportation Investment Program (ITIP). 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the above additional funding will be added as described and 
incorporated into the ITIP; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Idaho Transportation Board approves the staff making appropriate 
adjustments to the program and amending the approved FY 2021- 2027 Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program. 

Page 1 of 1 107



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 Minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
     Scott Luekenga Freight Program Manager csl 

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Scott Luekenga Freight Program Manager csl 

Subject 
129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 
Key Number District Route Number 

2 District 2: SH13, US12, SH162 

Background Information 

Freight Program Manager is presenting a 129,000 Pound Route application for Board consideration. 

Application submitted by KBC Transport LLC., to re-designated SH13, US12, and SH162 in District 
2 from a BLUE route to an ORANGE route capable of carrying CMV (commercial motor vehicle) 
loads weighing up to 129,000 pounds.  

On April 22, 2021, the 129,000 Pound Route Subcommittee unanimously voted to support this 
application and move it forward to the full Board for consideration.  

Recommendations 
Staff is requesting Board approval of the 129,000 Pound Route; Case 202101SH162, resolution on page 
205. 

LSS

108



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 2 of 2 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

109



110



111



  
 

1 
 

Idaho Transportation Department 
P.O. Box 7129 • Boise, ID  83707-1129 

(208) 334-8000  •  itd.idaho.gov 

Your Safety      Your Mobility 
Your Economic  Opportunity 

 
 

129,000 Pound Evaluation of Case # 202101SH162 
 

SH-13: MP 24.400 to 26.390 
US-12: MP 74.480 to 66.220 
SH-162: MP 23.065 to 8.000 

SH-162: MP 38.819 to 31.077 
 

Executive Summary 
KBC Transport LLC., is requesting sections of State Highways 13 (SH-13), United States Highway (US-
12) and State Highway 162 (SH-162) be designated as 129,000 Pound route(s) (Attached Map) for the 
transportation of lumber and wood chips from mills in Kooskia, ID to Tamarack, ID and Boise, ID. KBC 
Transport is projecting up to 250 trips annually.  
 
These highways are predominantly two lane rural arterial routes with a mix of flat rolling agricultural and 
U.S. Forest Service lands passing through the communities of Kooskia and Kamiah. The routes are 
currently coded as “Blue” and as such all trucks must adhere to the permitted 5.50-foot off-track and 95 
foot overall vehicle length criteria and not to exceed 105,500 lbs. The recommendation is to reclassify 
these routes to “Orange” and as such all trucks must adhere to the permitted 5.50-feet off track and 95 
foot overall vehicle length criteria not to exceed to 129,000 lbs. 
  
ITD Bridge Asset Management has reviewed the nine (9) bridges pertaining to this request and has 
determined they will safely support the 129,000-pound truck load. Pavement conditions on these 
highways range from good to poor. The highways Commercial Average Annual Daily Traffic (CAADT) 
constitutes 6% to 16% of the Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT).  Between 2016 and 2020, there were 
a total of 103 accidents on these highway of which one (1) involved tractor-trailers. There were a total of 
44 injuries and two (2) fatality associated with these accidents. The two (2) fatility did not involve a tractor-
trailer.  
 
Department of Motor Vehicles, Highway Safety, Bridge Asset Management and District 2 all recommend 
proceeding with this request.  

 
Detailed Analysis 

Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) Review 
 
All Idaho Transportation Department routes are currently categorized by their ability to handle various 
extra-length vehicle combinations and their off-tracking allowances. The categories used when 
considering allowing vehicle combinations to carry increased axle weights above 105,500 pounds and up 
to 129,000 pounds are: 

• Blue and Orange routes at 95 foot overall vehicle length and a 5.50-foot off-track 

• Red and Purple routes at 115 foot overall vehicle length and a 6.50-foot off-track.  

Off-tracking is the turning radius of the vehicle combination, which assists in keeping them safely in their 
lane of travel. Off-tracking occurs because the rear wheels of trailer trucks do not pivot, and therefore will 
not follow the same path as the front wheels. The greater the distance between the front wheels and the 
rear wheels of the vehicle, the greater the amount of off-track. The DMV confirms that the requested 

112



   
Case #202101SH162 

2 
 

routes fall under one of the above categories and meet all length and off-tracking requirements for 
that route. More specifically, the requested section of SH-162, SH13 and US12 are designated blue 
routes and as such all trucks must adhere to the 5.50-foot off-track and 95- foot overall vehicle 
length criteria. 

Bridge Review 
Bridges on all publicly owned routes in Idaho, with the exception of those meeting specific criteria, 
are inspected every two years at a minimum to ensure they can safely accommodate vehicles. A 
variety of inspections may be performed including routine inspections, in-depth inspections, 
underwater inspections, and complex bridge inspections. All are done to track the current condition 
of a bridge and make repairs if needed. 
 
When determining the truck-carrying capacity of a bridge, consideration is given to the types of 
vehicles that routinely use the bridge and the condition of the bridge. Load limits may be placed on 
a bridge if, through engineering analysis, it is determined the bridge cannot carry legal truck loads. 
 
ITD Bridge Asset Management has reviewed the nine (9) bridges pertaining to this request and has 
determined they will safely support the 129,000-pound truck load, provided the truck’s axle 
configuration conforms to legal requirements. To review load rating data for each of the bridges, see 
the Bridge Data chart below. 
 
*The bridge(s) is/are adequate if it has a rating value greater than 129,000 pounds or is designated as 
"OK EJ" (okay by engineering judgment).  
 
 

Table 1. SH-13, Bridge Data 
 

ROUTE 

FROM: SH-13 
MILE POST: 24.400 
TO: SH-13/US-12 JCT 
MILE POST: 26.390 

 

HIGHWAY 
NUMBER 

MILE 
POST BRIDGE KEY RATING (lbs) 

SH-13 26.17 10556 304,000 
 
 
 

Table 2. US-12, Bridge Data 
 

ROUTE 

FROM: US-12/SH-13 Jct 
MILE POST: 74.480  
TO: US-12/SH162 Jct  
MILE POST: 66.220 

 

HIGHWAY 
NUMBER 

MILE 
POST BRIDGE KEY RATING (lbs) 

SH-12 70.48 10435 338,000 
SH-12 68.77 10430 284,000 

113



   
Case #202101SH162 

3 
 

SH-12 66.75 10426 298,000 
 

Table 3. SH-162,  Bridge Data 
 

ROUTE 

FROM: SH-162/US-12 Jct 
MILE POST: 38.819 
TO: SH-162 
MILE POST: 8.00 

 

HIGHWAY 
NUMBER 

MILE 
POST BRRIDE KEY RATING (lbs) 

162 20.56 14931 298,000 
162 19.30 14925 308,000 
162 17.85 14924 796,000 
162 17.61 14923 198,000 
162 17.04 14922 198,000 

 

ITD District 2 Evaluation 
This evaluation is in response to the application from KBC Transport LLC, case number 202101SH162, 
requesting that portions of SH-13, US-12 and SH-162 be designated as a 129,000 pound route. District 2 
has evaluated the roadway characteristics, pavement condition, and traffic volumes in response to the 
request.   
 
It is District 2’s recommendation that the following road sections be reclassified from a “Blue” to a 
“Orange” route that is legal for a single trailer not exceeding 48 feet and a doubles configuration not 
exceeding 61 feet and 75 feet overall (doubles configurations can exceed one or the other and still be 
legal).  A Permit would be required if exceeding these dimensions and must not exceed 5.50 feet of off-
track and 95’ overall length including load overhang. Total gross weight not to exceed 129,000 lbs.  

State Highway 13 
 
Roadway Characteristics  
 
The portion of SH-13 requested to be reviewed starts MP 24.400 and ends at the intersection with US-12 
at MP 26.390. This section of road is a rural arterial passing through agricultural lands and the rural 
community of Kooskia. The review will start at MP 24.429 (the entrance to the KBC office and lumber mill 
yard) and will conclude at the intersection of US-12 at MP 26.390. This section is in Idaho County. There 
are no pull off opportunities until in the community. 
 
This section of roadway is predominantly flat with no dedicated passing or climbing lanes. The speed limit 
at the start of the review on SH-13 is posted at 55 MPH. The speed limit drops to 35 MPH at MP 25.083. 
The areas with curb, gutter and sidewalk begins at approximately MP 26.363. The speed limit further 
reduces to 25 MP at approximately MP 25.398 in the community of Kooskia. 
 
At approximately MP 24.488, the highway widens to have a center turn lane along with the through lanes 
and curb side parking. This widen section continues to approximately MP 25.832 where the center turn 

114



   
Case #202101SH162 

4 
 

lane ends and the road narrows to one lane in each direction with widened shoulders. The speed limit 
increases to 35 MPH at approximately MP 25.882. 
 
Beginning at approximately MP 26.002, the highway widens for a north bound (NB) through lane, a NB 
right turn bay, a south bound (SB) through lane and a SB left turn bay at the Broadway Ave (SH-13 
Business Loop) intersection at MP 26.082. This widening ends at the start of the bridge at MP 26.152. 
The bridge ends at MP 26.256. 
 
From the bridge to the intersection with US-12 at MP 26.390, the highway has widened shoulders. This 
intersection does not have turn bays on SH-13, but has a right turn bay from east bound US-12 onto SH-
13. The SH-13, Howard Creek to Kooskia City Limits (MP 18.680 to MP 25.378) paving project was 
completed in 2010 and this section was later seal coated in 2013. 
 
Roadway Geometry  
 

Table 4. SH-13 Roadway Geometry 
 

MILEPOSTS THROUGH LANES TURN LANES  SHOULDER PARKING 
LANE 

24.426 TO 26.363 
1 – 1 each direction No No No 

11’    

26.363 TO 25.488 
1 – 1 each direction No Paved Yes 

12’   Both Sides 

25.488 TO 25.832 
1 – 1 each direction Center Paved Yes 

12’   Both Sides 

25.832 TO 26.002 
1 – 1 each direction No Paved Yes 

12’   Both Sides 

26.002 TO 26.152 
1 – 1 each direction Yes Paved No 

12’ Left and Right   
26.152 TO 26.256 

KOOSKIA BRIDGE 
1 – 1 each direction No Concrete No 

12’    
26.256 TO 26.390 1 – 1 each direction Yes Paved No 

 12’ Right turn from US-12   
 
Pavement Condition 
 
These sections are asphalt pavement. SH-13 is rated as good or fair outside of the community of 
Kooskia. In Kooskia, it is rated as fair or poor.  
 

Table 5. SH-13 TAMS Visual Survey Data 

MILEPOST PAVEMENT 
TYPE 

DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

24.390 – 24.490 Flexible No Good 
24.490 – 24.590 Flexible No Fair 
24.590 – 24.690 Flexible No Good 
24.690 – 24.790 Flexible No Fair 
24.790 – 24.890 Flexible No Good 
24.890 – 24.990 Flexible No Fair 
24.990 – 25.090 Flexible No Good 
25.090 – 25.190 Flexible No Fair 
25.190 – 25.290 Flexible No Good 

115



   
Case #202101SH162 

5 
 

25.290 – 25.390 Flexible Yes Poor 
25.390 – 25.490 Flexible No Fair 
25.490 – 25.590 Flexible Yes Poor 
25.590 – 25.690 Flexible Yes Poor 
25.690 – 25.790 Flexible No Fair 
25.790 – 25.890 Flexible Yes Poor 
25.890 – 25.990 Flexible Yes Poor 
25.990 – 26.090 Flexible Yes Poor 
26.090 – 26.190 Flexible Yes Poor 
26.190 – 26.290 Flexible Yes Poor 
26.290 – 26.390 Flexible No Fair 

 
Traffic Volumes 
 
The speed limit of these highway sections vary between 25 and 55 mph.  
 

Table 6. SH-13 Traffic Volumes 
 

MILEPOSTS AADT CAADT % 
TRUCKS 

24.43 – 25.44 2,400 300 11% 
25.44 – 26.02 3,100 400 11% 
26.02 – 26.33 2,890 310 10% 

 

United States Highway 12 
Roadway Characteristics 
 
For this request, our review will start at the “T” intersection of SH-13 (MP 26.390) and US-12 (MP 
73.850). On US-12 for east bound (EB) traffic, there is a right-turn only lane and one through lane. For 
west bound traffic, there is one left-turn only lane and one through lane. There is a a pullout/POE at the 
junction of US12 and SH13. 

With the exception of the community of Kamiah, this section of road is a two (2) lane, rural arterial 
bordered by the Clearwater River on one side and agricultural and wooded properties on the other. It is 
predominantly rolling terrain with no dedicated passing or climbing lanes. A majority of this section is in 
Idaho County, but is in Lewis County on the west side of the river. 
 
Upon leaving the intersection, this area reduces to one (1) lane in each direction. The road surface is 
asphalt concrete pavement. The speed limit in this section is 55 MPH. 
 
At the intersection of US-12 and Valley View Drive at MP 69.644, there are opposing left turn lanes and a 
west bound right turn lane. At the intersection of US-12 and Trenary Drive at MP 68.457, there is a west 
bound right turn lane. At the intersection of US-12 and Woodland Road, at MP 66.916, there is an east 
bound left turn lanes. 

The speed limit reduces to 35 MPH at the beginning of the bridge at MP 66.857. This structure ends at 
MP 66.736. A railroad crossing is located MP 66.659. This crossing is no longer used as the a RR bridge 
located to the south of the crossing was severely damaged several years ago during heavy spring 
runoffs. 
 
At the west end of the bridge, the roadway becomes an urban section with concrete curb on either side of 
the highway. These curbs end at approximately MP 66.595 and the shoulders are paved. In addition, a 
continuous center left turn bay begins.  

116



   
Case #202101SH162 

6 
 

 
There is a west bound right turn bay at the west entrance to Harvest Food Grocery Store at MP 66.275. 
This review ends at the US-12 / SH-162 intersection at US-12 MP 66.220. 
 
The US-12, Valley View Drive Turnbay project (MP 69.33 to 69.64) was completed in 2018. This project 
widened along both sides of US-12 to construct opposing left turn lane and a west bound right turn lane at 
Valley View Drive. 

The Trenary Drive turn bay project (MP 68.457) was completed in 2009. This project constructed a west 
bound right turn lane. 

The US-12, Woodland Road to MP 70 project (MP 66.835 to MP 70.000) was completed in 2008. This 
project placed a HMA overlay and upgraded guardrail. 

This section from MP 66.874 to MP 73.85 received a sealcoat in 2011 (see FY12 D2 Districtwide 
Sealcoats, Key 12012). 

Table 7. US-12 Roadway Geometry 
 

MILEPOSTS THROUGH LANES TURN LANES SHOULDER PARKING 
LANE 

73.966 TO 73.716 
1 each direction 2 Paved No 

11’ EB Right / WB Left   

73.716 TO 66.857 
1 each direction See below Paved No 

11’    

VALLEY VIEW DR. 
MP 68.644 

1 each direction Yes Paved No 

11’ Opposing Lefts/WB 
Right  No 

TRENARY DRIVE 
MP 69.457 

1 each direction Yes Paved No 
11’ WB Right Turn   

WOODLAND RD MP 
66.916 

1 each direction Yes Paved No 
11’ EB Left Turn   

66.857 TO 66.736 
KAMIAH BRIDGE 

1 each direction No Concrete No 
12’    

66.659 RR 
CROSSING 

1 each direction No Concrete 
Panels 

No 
12’   

66.736 TO 66.605 
1 each direction No Paved No 

12’    
66.605 TO 66.595 1 each direction No Paved No 

 12’    

66.595 TO 66.220 
3 – 1 each direction Yes Paved No 

 Center Left Turn Lane   
66.220 US-12/SH-

162 INTERSECTION 
3 – 1 each direction  Yes Paved No 

12’ Left Turnbay to SH-162   
 

Pavement Condition 

US-12 is generally rated as fair condition with some smaller sections noted as poor.  
 

117



   
Case #202101SH162 

7 
 

 
Table 8. US-12 TAMS Visual Survey Data 

    

MILEPOST 
PAVEMENT 

TYPE 
DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

66.220 – 66.720 Flexible Yes Poor 
66.720 – 66.820 Flexible No Fair 
66.820 – 66.920 Flexible Yes Poor 
66.920 – 69.475 Flexible No Fair 
69.475 – 69.575 Flexible Yes Poor 
69.575 – 69.975 Flexible No Fair 
69.975 – 70.075 Flexible Yes Poor 
70.075 – 70.275 Flexible No Fair 
70.275 – 70.375 Flexible Yes Poor 
70.375 – 70.975 Flexible No Fair 
70.975 – 71.075 Flexible Yes Poor 
71.075 – 71.975 Flexible No Fair 
71.975 – 72.075 Flexible Yes Poor 
72.075 – 72.575 Flexible No Fair 
72.575 – 72.875 Flexible Yes Poor 
72.875 – 72.975 Flexible No Fair 
72.975 – 73.075 Flexible Yes Poor 
73.075 – 73.175 Flexible No Fair 
73.175 – 73.675 Flexible Yes Poor 
73.675 – 73.950 Flexible No Fair 
73.950 – 74.050 Flexible Yes Poor 

 
Traffic Volumes 

The speed limit of these highway sections vary between 25mph and 55mph.  
 

Table 9. US-12 Traffic Volumes 
 

MILEPOSTS AADT CAADT % 
TRUCKS 

66.22 – 66.29 4,600 310 6% 
66.29 – 66.95 5,800 430 7% 
66.95 – 73.86 4,100 600 13% 

 
State Highway 162 
 
Roadway Characteristics  
 
The review section of SH-162 starts at the intersection of SH-162 and US-12 (MP 66.220) and ends 
at Four Corners (MP 8.00) where it intersections with Old SH-7 and SH-162 turns to the north. This 
section of road, with the exception of the portion in the community of Kamiah, is a two lane, rural 
arterial passing through agricultural and wooded properties and is predominantly rolling terrain with 
no dedicated passing or climbing lanes. This section is in Lewis County until crossing the Lawyers 
Creek Bridge at MP 20.577 at which point it becomes Idaho County. 
 
Starting at the intersection US-12 (MP 66.220) and SH-162 (MP 31.077), this portion runs south and 
west through the community of Kamiah. This area has one lane in each direction. The road surface 
is asphalt concrete pavement with wide shoulder to allow parking. This in-town section which 

118



   
Case #202101SH162 

8 
 

include the Hill and 5Th Streets has a speed limit in this section is 25 MPH. This road intersects with 
SH-64 at MP 30.819 and continues south from there. 
 
At MP 23.065, SH-162 this section runs through a residential area and past the Kamiah School. The 
speed limit is 25 MPH up to MP 22.590 where it increases to 40 MPH. The speed limit then 
increases to 55 MPH at MP 22.300.  
 
The section from Kamiah to MP 14 is locally referred to as the 7 Mile due to the long grade in this 
section. Once on top, the grade is more gradual and the road continues to wind through an 
agricultural area. 
 
Other than the P.O.E rover site MP 19, there are very limited pull off opportunities along this 
section. 
 
In 2012, between MP 8.000 to MP 13,047, a shoulder notch widening, retaining walls, a Full Depth 
Reclamation and an HMA overlay project was completed. 
 
The SH-162, Red Rock Road to Kamiah project (MP 14.853 to MP 23.065) was completed in 2012. 
This project included a cold-in-place recycle, soft spot repairs, shoulder enhancements, guardrail 
upgrades and a HMA overlay.  
 
The SH-162, MP 13 to Red Rock Road project (MP 13.047 to MP 14.853) was completed in 2013. 
This project included shoulder notch widening, Cement Recycled Asphalt Base Recycle, retaining 
walls and a HMA overlay.  
 
The section from MP 8.00 to MP 23.065 received a sealcoat in 2016. 
 

Table 10. SH-162 Roadway Geometry 

MILEPOSTS THROUGH LANES TURN LANES  SHOULDER PARKING 
LANE 

30.819 TO 31.077 
1 each direction No Paved and 

Gravel Yes 

12’  3’  
23.065 TO 20.577 1 each direction No Paved No 

 11’    
20.577 TO 20.562 
LAWYER CR BR 1 each direction No Concrete No 

 11’    
20.562 TO 8.00 1 each direction No Paved No 

 11’    
 
Pavement Condition 
 
In the community of Kamiah, SH-162 is rated as poor and fair on Hill and 5th Streets. Outside of the 
community, it is mostly good and fair with some smaller poor areas. 
  

119



   
Case #202101SH162 

9 
 

Table 11. SH-162 TAMS Visual Survey Data 
 

MILEPOSTS PAVEMENT 
TYPE 

DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

8.000 – 8.100 Flexible Yes Poor 
8.100 – 8.800 Flexible No Good 
8.800 – 9.200 Flexible No Fair 
9.200 – 9.300 Flexible No Good 
9.300 – 10.300 Flexible No Fair 
10.300 – 10.400 Flexible No Good 
10.400 – 10.600 Flexible No Fair 
10.600 – 10.800 Flexible No Good 
10.800 – 10.900 Flexible No Fair 
10.900 – 11.300 Flexible Yes Poor 
11.300 – 11.400 Flexible No Fair 
11.400 – 11.700 Flexible No Good 
11.700 – 12.500 Flexible No Fair 
12.500 – 12.700 Flexible No Good 
12.700 – 12.800 Flexible Yes Poor 
12.800 – 13.000 Flexible No Good 
13.00 – 13.100 Flexible Yes Poor 
13.100 – 13.200 Flexible No Good 
13.200 – 13.500 Flexible Yes Poor 
13.500 – 13.600 Flexible No Fair 
13.600 – 13.800 Flexible Yes Poor 
13.800 – 14.300 Flexible No Good 
14.300 – 14.400 Flexible No Fair 
14.400 – 14.800 Flexible No Good 
14.800 – 15.100 Flexible Yes Poor 
15.100 – 15.200 Flexible No Good 
15.200 – 15.600 Flexible Yes Poor 
15.600 – 15.800 Flexible No Good 
15.800 – 15.900 Flexible Yes Poor 
15.900 – 16.000 Flexible No Good 
16.000 – 16.100 Flexible Yes Poor 
16.100 – 16.200 Flexible No Good 
16.200 – 16.400 Flexible No Fair 
16.400 – 16.600 Flexible No Good 
16.600 – 16.700 Flexible Yes Poor 
16.700 – 17.000 Flexible No Good 
17.000 – 17.200 Flexible No Fair 
17.200 – 17.600 Flexible No Good 
17.600 – 17.700 Flexible Yes Poor 
17.700 – 17.800 Flexible No Fair 
17.800 – 18.000 Flexible No Good 
18.000 – 18.100 Flexible No Fair 
18.100 – 20.000 Flexible No Good 
20.000 – 20.100 Flexible Yes Poor 
20.100 – 20.500 Flexible No Good 
20.500 – 20.800 Flexible Yes Poor 

120



   
Case #202101SH162 

10 
 

MILEPOSTS PAVEMENT 
TYPE 

DEFICIENT 
(YES/NO) 

CONDITION 
STATE 

20.800 – 22.100 Flexible No Good 
22.100 – 23.000 Flexible No Fair 
23.000 – 23.065 Flexible Yes Poor 
30.819 – 31.019 Flexible Yes Poor 

 
Traffic Volumes 

The speed limit of these highway sections vary between 25mph and 55mph.  
 

Table 12. SH-162 Traffic Volumes 
 

MILEPOSTS AADT CAADT % 
TRUCKS 

    
8.00 – 20.56 1,120 80 7% 

20.56 – 21.85 1,110 90 8% 
21.85 – 23.03/30.819 1,670 330 16% 

    
Truck Ramps 
 
No runaway truck ramps exist along these routes.  
 
Port of Entry (POE) 
 
There is a P.O.E. rover site at the intersection of SH-13 and US-12.   
There is a P.O.E rover site on SH-162 at MP 19. 

Safety Review 
Accident Data 
 
State Highway 13 
 
Analyses of the 5-year accident data (2016-2020) on this section of SH-13 shows there were a total of 20  
accidents involving 36 units and 33 people (0 fatalities and 5 Injuries), none of which involved a tractor-
trailer combination.  Accidents on this section primarily involved parked cars getting struck or were 
intersection related. Contributing circumstances were improper turning, animals, speed and inattention. 
This route pass by two (2) churches and no other social facilities. There are no signalized intersection on 
this route. 
 
United States Highway 12 
 
Analyses of the 5-year accident data (2016-2020) on this section of US-12 shows there were a total of 50 
accidents involving 68 units and 73 people (2 fatalities and 22 Injuries), none of which involved a tractor-
trailer combination.  The accidents on this section primarily involved wild animals, rear-end accidents, and 
vehicles leaving the roadway.  Contributing circumstances were animals, inattention and failure to 
maintain lane. This route pass by four (4) churches and no other social facilities. There are no signalized 
intersection on this route.  
 
 
 
 

121



   
Case #202101SH162 

11 
 

State Highway 162 
 
Analyses of the 5-year accident data (2016-2020) on this section of SH-162 shows there were a total of 
33 accidents involving 37 units and 48 people (0 fatalities and 17 Injuries).  One accident involved a 
tractor-trailer combination (no injuries or fatalities).  The accidents on this section primarily involved 
vehicles leaving the roadway. This route pass by Kamiah Elementary/High School and no social facilities. 
There are no signalized intersection on this route.  
 
Climate Data 

 
PRECIPITATION ANNUAL 

AVERAGE 
Rainfall 30.6” 
Snowfall 26.4” 
Days w/ 

Precipitation 110 

Annual August 
High Temp 

90.0F 
 

Average December 
Low Tem 25.6F 

 
END EVALUATION 

122



 

             

 

  

  

Executive Summary 2 – 3 
 
Before public hearing 

Website 4 – 16 
Site views 17 
Stakeholder notification 18 – 20  
Stakeholder list  21 – 25 
Postcard 26 – 27 
Press releases 28 – 30  
News coverage 
 Daily Fly 31 
 Big Country News 32 – 34  
 Idaho County Free Press 35 – 37  
 Clearwater Progress 38 – 39  
Advertisements 
 Idaho County Free Press 40 – 41 
 Clearwater Progress 42 – 43  

itd.idaho.gov/news-info 44 – 45 
Facebook post and analytics 46 
Tweet and analytics   47 – 48  
Public comments 49 – 60 

 
Before subcommittee meeting  

Press release 61 – 62  
News coverage* 
 Daily Fly 63 – 64  

Big Country News 65 – 67  
Idaho County Free Press 68 – 70  
Lewiston Morning Tribune 71 – 72  

itd.idaho.gov/news-info 73 – 74  
Facebook post and analytics 75 
Tweet and analytics 76 

 
After subcommittee meeting  

Stakeholder notification 77 – 79  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*KLER Radio out of Orofino also covered the story 
 
May 2021 
 

Case #202101SH162 
Public involvement summary  
Table of contents 

123



 

             

 

Communication efforts prior to the online hearing from March 29 to April 12, 2021, for the application 
submitted by KBC Trucking to reclassify Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 
24.4 to its intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia, US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah and Idaho Highway 
162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7 included:  

• Created an application-specific website at https://arcg.is/1S4XHy 
• Sent a notification on March 29 to city, county and state officials and industry associations  
• Sent postcards to  4,219 addresses and postal boxes along the proposed routes in Kamiah, 

Kooskia, Stites and Nezperce 
• Sent two press releases to more than 100 news groups that resulted in the following coverage:  

o Daily Fly on March 16 
o Big Country News on March 29 
o Idaho County Free Press on April 7  
o Clearwater Progress on April 8  

• Published ads 
o Idaho County Free Press on March 31 and April 7 
o Clearwater Progress on April 1 and April 8 

• Posted notices to itd.idaho.gov/news-info, ITD’s Facebook and ITD’s Twitter  
 
The site was viewed 164 times, and 31 comments were received. Of the comments, 71 percent 
opposed the reclassification and 13 percent expressed support. The remaining commenters offered 
statements without directly stating their opinions and/or asked for further information.  
 
Those who opposed the reclassification focused on the poor conditions of the highways and concerns 
about pavement damage from heavier trucks. Of all of the highways, ID-162 received the most 
comments due to its narrow lanes and shoulders and a steep grade that already slows down trucks 
and has limited passing opportunities.  
 
Those in favor of the reclassification believed increasing the limits would support the economy of the 
Clearwater Valley and that this would not only benefit KBC Trucking and the logging industry but also 
other related industries.  
 
Of the 31 comments, six were recorded via the oral testimony line. All others were emailed directly to 
the Freight Program Manager or sent via the link on the website. Submission of comments was 
consistent throughout the comment period, likely due to the staggered coverage by news outlets and 
paid advertisements in the local papers.  Note that comments were received before and after the 
official comment period, and all have been included in the analysis.  
 

Executive Summary 

124

https://arcg.is/1S4XHy
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-info/


 

 

Communication with stakeholders continued through the process, including after the subcommittee 
meeting on May 22.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

N
um

be
r o

f c
om

m
en

ts

Date

Number of comments received by date 

125



ID-13, US-12 and ID-162

129,000-pound load application submitted by KBC Trucking

March 29, 2021Idaho Transportation Department

Welcome

Welcome video

Welcome to the online hearing for a 129,000 pound (129k) route

application affecting several highways in Idaho County. The

ID-13, US-12 and ID-162

126

https://itd.idaho.gov/freight


comment period closes April 12.

Comments will be reviewed by ITD before a decision is reached. A

decision could come as early as late May.

Application

Map of proposed routes

Download application map.

KBC Trucking is applying to utilize commercial loads up to 129,000

pounds on Idaho Highway 13 (ID-13) from its yard to Kooskia, US-12

from Kooskia to Kamiah and Idaho Highway 162 (ID-162) from

Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7. The applicant is also

requesting conversion of Old Highway 7 from its intersection with

ID-162 down to Grangeville, but that request is being considered

independently by the Greencreek Highway District, Union

Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.

The purpose of the application is to more efficiently transport logs

and lumber, both from the yard to Boise Valley using US-95 (which

is already legal for 129,000-pound loads) and from Kooskia to the

sawmill in Tamarack. KBC Trucking is already using trucking

configurations capable of hauling 129,000 pounds but only loads

them to the current legal limits of 105,500 pounds.
127

https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/ID-13-US-12-ID-162_129k-app-map_KBC-Trucking_March-2021.png


You can read the application by clicking here.

Road Descriptions

These highways are predominantly flat or rolling terrain. They can

accommodate vehicles up to 95 feet long and a 5.5-foot off-track.

Loads weighing up to 129,000 pounds would meet these safety

requirements.

All nine bridges are already capable of safely carrying 129,000-

pound loads.

There are no runaway truck ramps along any of the routes. Roving

sites for Port of Entry employees are established at the intersection

of ID-13 and US-12 as well as on ID-162 at milepost 19.

Between 2016 and 2020, there were a total of 103 crashes on

these highways, one of which involved a tractor-trailer. These

crashes resulted in 44 injuries and two deaths. The two deaths

were the result of two separate crashes in August 2018 and June

2020. Neither involved a tractor-trailer.

ID-13 from the entrance of the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4

to the intersection of US-12 at milepost 26.390 is a rural arterial

passing through agricultural lands and Kooskia. This section of

roadway is predominantly flat with no dedicated passing lanes or

climbing lanes. It is an asphalt paved route rated as good or fair

outside of city limits. However, within city limits is is rated as fair or

poor. The speed limit varies from 25 mph to 55 mph, with traffic

volumes ranging from 2,400 to 3,100 vehicles per day on average.

Truck traffic accounts for 10 to 11 percent of all traffic.

US-12 from its intersection with ID-13 at milepost 73.85 and its

intersection with ID-162 at milepost 66.22 is a two-lane rural arterial

bordered by the Clearwater River on one side and agricultural and

wooded properties on the other. It runs through predominantly

rolling terrain with no dedicated passing or climbing lanes. It is rated

in fair condition with some shorter sections rated as poor. The

128

https://apps.itd.idaho.gov/Apps/freight/129K/requests/20210309151022-App.pdf


speed limit varies from 35 mph to 55 mph, with traffic volumes

ranging from 4,100 to 5,800 vehicles per day on average. Truck

traffic accounts for 6 to 13 percent of all traffic.

ID-162 from its intersection of US-12 at milepost 31.077 to its

intersection with Old Highway 7 at milepost 8 is a two-lane, rural

arterial, except within the city of Kamiah. Note the mileposts in the

full evaluation change at the ID-64 intersection in Kamiah. It passes

through predominantly rolling terrain and has no dedicated passing

or climbing lanes. It includes the long grade known as Seven Mile.

The highway is in mostly good and fair condition, with some shorter

sections rated as poor. The speed limit varies from 25 mph to 55

mph, with traffic volumes ranging from 1,110 to 1,670 vehicles per

day on average. Truck traffic accounts for 7 to 16 percent of traffic.

For specific data on pavement conditions, traffic volumes and

crashes, read the engineering evaluation.

Engineering Evaluation

ITD engineers have evaluated the conditions of the bridges and

roads as well as safety data for highway sections included in this

application. The analysis determined the route is appropriate for

129,000-pound loads. No improvements are necessary for these
routes to support 129,000-pound trucking, and no additional
costs will be passed on to taxpayers.

You can review the full analysis by clicking the button below.

ITD Evaluation

Common Concerns

Noise

Trucks on highways generate noise, especially impacting residents

129

https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/129000-Pound-Route-Evaluation-Case-202101SH162.pdf


along rural highways. ITD has heard concerns that heavier trucks

will produce more noise. However, in an analysis of noise generated

by various truck sizes, ITD has found that heavier trucks do not

create more noise than trucks already allowed on these highways.

In regards to compression brakes, ITD does not have the authority

to regulate the trucking industry. Those standards are created by

the Environmental Protection Agency and enforced by local and

state law enforcement agencies.

Pavement Damage & Braking

The primary difference between a

129,000-pound load and a load that

weighs 105,500 pounds is of course

the weight. Most people can't tell the

difference, but visually you can

usually identify the heavier load by its

extra axles or sometimes the addition

of a pup trailer.

To the left, you can see the different

legal configurations for commercial

vehicles. At the bottom are the

configurations for 129,000-pound

loads.

Notice how the 129,000-pound configurations require more axles.

This spreads out the load over a greater surface area, reducing the

impact to the roadway. In testing, ITD has found that 129,000-

pound loads are actually less damaging than lighter loads with

fewer axles.

More axles also means more brakes. Depending on the type of

brakes and how well they are maintained, 129,000-pound trucks

can stop as quickly as lighter trucks already on the highway. Heavier

Diagrams for different truck weight

configurations

130



trucks are still required to meet stopping standards identified in

state and federal regulations.

Existing Routes

North Central Idaho

Download existing 129,000-pound routes. Although not shown on

this map, note that the following highways are now approved for

129,000-pound loads:

• Idaho Highway 6 from the US-95 junction to Harvard

• Idaho Highway 9 from Harvard to Deary

• Idaho Highway 8 from Deary to the US-95 junction

131

https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/129k-routes_D2_November-2020.pdf


Map of 129,000-pound routes in North Central Idaho

132



Map of 129,000-pound routes in Lewiston

Previous Application

A similar application to this request by KBC Trucking was filed by

Arlo Lott of Montana in 2015 but included all of ID-13 from Kooskia

to Grangeville. After engineering analysis deemed the proposal

would not negatively affect safety or pavement conditions, a public
133



hearing was held and received significant public comment, with

much opposition to the reclassification of ID-13. The applicant

withdrew his request in 2016. 

Comment

Before submitting your comment, please finish reading the FAQs

below. Written comments can be emailed to

officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov or mailed to the attention

of Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at P.O. Box 7129 in

Boise, Idaho 83707. Oral testimony can be recorded at (855) 785-

2499.

If you have questions you would like to discuss before giving

comment, you may call Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at

(208) 334-8057.

In your comment, be sure to clearly identify whether you support or

oppose this application and why. Since multiple routes are under

review, be specific in your comment.

Comment

FAQs

Q: Why does Idaho have a 129,000-pound route program?

A: In 2013, at the request of the trucking industry, Idaho Legislature

authorized the permitting of trucks weighing up to 129,000 pounds

to operate on designated Idaho highways. The permitting of

129,000-pound trucks allows for combining shipments, which in

turn decreases the number of trips a truck must make, supporting

Idaho’s agricultural, forestry, mineral and manufacturing industries.

Furthermore, the 129,000-pound route program reduces

congestion on state routes, provides for a safer highway system

and reduces impact of trucking on the environment.
134

mailto:officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov


Q: What are the applicable laws governing the 129,000-pound
program?

A: Below are the applicable laws:

• Idaho Code Title 49, Motor Vehicles, Chapter 10 – Weight,

Speed and Tire Regulations

• IDAPA 39.03.03 Rules Governing Special Permits - General

Conditions and Requirements

• IDAPA 39.03.06 Rules Governing Special Permits for Extra-

Length Excess Weight, Up to 129,000 Pound Vehicle

Combinations

• IDAPA 39.03.22, Rules Governing Over Legal Permits for Extra-

Length Vehicle Combinations

Q: When did Idaho start allowing 129,000-pound trucks?

A: In 2003, as a result of ITD receiving an application to allow trucks

weighing up to 129,000 pounds, the Idaho Legislature passed

House Bill 395, which created a pilot project to test the effects of

increasing the legal truck weights on state highways. The pilot

project revealed no adverse impacts to Idaho highways, so in 2016,

the 129,000 Pound Program was officially adopted. The interstate

system (I-84, I-86, I-15, I-90, I-184) was approved by the federal

government on July 1, 2016, to allow 129,000-pound trucks.

Q: What criteria does ITD use to conduct its evaluation of a route
in order to ensure the route is suitable for 129,000-pound
trucking?

A: ITD operates with the mission of safety, mobility and economic

opportunity for all motorists on the state highway system. Criteria

used to analyze a route includes a safety analysis of vehicle

accidents and fatalities, an assessment of pavement and bridge

cracking, roughness or ruts and the route's ability to accommodate

off-tracking requirements to include route width and curvature.

Additional emphasis is given to residential areas and social

infrastructure along with residential and commercial traffic volume.
135



Q: Is there any reduction of overall trucks on highways as a
result of the 129,000-pound program?

A: Reduction in truck traffic varies dependent on the applicant,

route, commodities and time of year. Estimates range from 12

percent to 20 percent in reduced truck traffic on approved

129,000-pound routes.

Q: How is a 129,000-pound route approved?

A: Routes are approved by the Idaho Transportation Board following

a thorough review of the route. Reviews consist of route analysis

and public involvement. Analysis are conducted by ITD’s Office of

Highway Safety, Office of Bridge Asset Management, Division of

Motor Vehicles and the applicable ITD District Engineer. Public

comments are sought during the review process and are

incorporated into ITD’s final evaluation, which is presented to the

129,000 pound Subcommittee. The 129,000 pound Subcommittee

reviews the evaluation and either endorses or doesn’t endorse the

application. The application evaluation is presented to the Idaho

Transportation Board for approval or disapproval of the route. If

approved, the route goes into effect 14 calendar days after the

Transportation Board approves the application.

Q: Do trucks which are over legal limits require a permit to drive
on routes approved for 129,000 pound operations?

A: Yes. When a route is designated a 129,000-pound route it means

the route has been designated as such and meets all requirements

per Idaho Code. All trucks operating on these highways must still be

permitted to operate on a 129k approved route per Idaho Rules and

Code.

Q: Who grants permits for trucks weighing up to 129,000 pounds
on state and federal highways?

A: The Idaho Department of Motor Vehicles is the executive

permitting agent for trucks operating on highway systems within
136



Idaho.

Q: Who approves a route for trucks weighing up to 129,000
pounds on local roads?

A: The Local Highway Jurisdiction (LHJ) has the authority to approve

a 129,000-pound route request for routes within the local

highway’s jurisdiction.

Q: Who can apply for a highway to be designated for a 129,000-
pound-use highway?

A: Any company or owner or operator of an overweight or oversized

vehicle can apply for a route to be designated as a 129,000-pound

route.

Q: Won’t heavier trucks go slower on the highways and cause
congestion while ascending a hill?

A: Oversized vehicles must abide by Idaho rules and code regarding

speed or at safe speeds given road and environmental conditions

on highways. Oversized vehicles must maintain a minimum speed

limit of 20 mph while ascending any grade.

Q: What are the non-permitted weight limits on interstates and
highways?

A: The Federal Highway Amendment Act of 1974 established

allowable legal weight limits on Interstate System Highways at

20,000 pounds for single axles, 34,000 pounds on tandems and

total gross loads not exceeding 80,000 pounds.

Q: What are the non-permitted weight limits on non-interstate
highways?

A: Allowable legal weight limits on non-interstate highways are set

at 20,000 pounds on single axles, 37,000 pounds on tandems and

total gross loads not exceeding 80,000 pounds
137



Powered by ArcGIS StoryMaps

Q: Do trucks authorized to weigh up to 129,000 pounds damage
pavement more than trucks weighing up to 80,000?

A: The impact of a 129,000-pound on pavement structures is less

than an 80,000-pound truck by 21 percent. This is because of

disbursement of weight among additional axles and the spacing of

the axles allows the weight to spread over a greater area, thus

reducing the impact on routes.

138

https://www.esri.com/en-us/arcgis/products/arcgis-storymaps/overview


139



1

Megan Jahns

From: Idaho Transportation Department <megan.sausser@itd.idaho.gov>
Sent: Monday, April 12, 2021 1:38 PM
To: Megan Jahns
Subject: Comment period open

 

 

 

Comment period open 
 

March 29, 2021 
 

 

Proposal to reclassify highways under consideration 
 

140



2

The Idaho Transportation Department is hosting a virtual public hearing to 
collect comments on a proposal to reclassify several highways in Idaho County 
as legal for carrying heavier loads. If approved, these highways could support 
commercial loads weighing up to 129,000 pounds. 
 

KBC Trucking of Kooskia submitted an application to ITD earlier this month 
requesting the reclassification of the following routes to allow for more 
efficient transport of logs and lumber to Boise Valley:  
 

 Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its 
intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia 

 US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah 
 Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7  

 

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its 
intersections with ID-162 and US-95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD 
as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway District, Union 
Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District. 
These highways are currently rated for commercial loads weighing up to 
105,500 pounds. Analysis of the state routes by ITD subject matter experts 
found that allowing heavier loads on the specified highways could be 
accommodated without affecting safety or pavement conditions.  
 

A similar application was filed by Arlo Lott of Montana in 2015 but included all 
of ID-13 from Kooskia to Grangeville. After engineering analysis deemed the 
proposal would not negatively affect safety or pavement conditions, a public 
hearing was held and received significant public comment. The applicant later 
withdrew his request.  
 

“While similar to an earlier application, the latest request excludes much of ID-
13, which was the most controversial segment,” said Jan Vassar, the Idaho 
Transportation Board Member representing North Central Idaho. “Staff are 
approaching this proposal with fresh eyes, and as before, comments received 
will influence the decision regarding reclassification of the routes.”  
 

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are 
available at itd.idaho.gov/freight. Comments are being sought until April 12 
and can be submitted in the following ways:  

 via itd.idaho.gov/freight    
 by emailing officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov  
 mailed to PO Box 7129, Boise, Idaho 83707 to the attention of Scott 

Luekenga 
 recorded by calling (855) 785-2499 

141



3

 

Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at 
(208) 334-8057 with questions. 
 

The department is required to conduct an analysis and public hearing on all 
requests to operate 129,000-pound loads on the state highway system before 
the Idaho Transportation Board makes a final decision. The board could make a 
decision as early as May. 
 

Please share this commenting opportunity with others who may be interested.  
 

comment  

  

 

 

  

     

 

You are receiving this email due to your anticipated interest  
in reclassification of these routes. 

 

 

  

 

 

 <--! ITD Anti-Spam GUID: 78abcc92-35e5-49bb-bf48-027590c762ac --> 
    

  

Idaho Transportation Department | 2600 Frontage Road, Lewiston, ID 83501  

Unsubscribe megan.jahns@itd.idaho.gov  

Update Profile | Customer Contact Data Notice  

Sent by megan.sausser@itd.idaho.gov powered by
 

 
Try email marketing for free today!  

 

 

 

142



Stakeholders 129k meeting for ID-13, US-12 and ID-162

Cities, counties and law enforcement 
Name Email City
Steve Bateman sbateman@simplot.com Nezperce Mayor

Clerk@CityOfNezperce.com Nezperce Clerk
Jason Davis jdavis@lewiscountyid.org Lewis County Sheriff
Greg Johnson gjohnson@lewiscountyid.org Lewis County Commissioner
Justin McLeod jmcleod@lewiscountyid.org Lewis County Commissioner
Mike Ponozzo mponozzo@lewiscountyid.org Lewis County Commissioner
Stephanie stephanied@cityofkamiah.org Kamiah Clerk
Mike mtornatore@cityofkamiah.org Kamiah Assistant Deputy Clerk
Carlos Martinez kooskiapw@qroidaho.net Kooskia Public Works Supervisor 
Denis Duman dduman@idahocounty.org Idaho County Commissioner
Skip Brandt sbrandt@idahocounty.org Idaho County Commissioner
Ted Lindsley tlindsley@idahocounty.org Idaho County Commissioner
Doug Ulmer dulmer@idahocounty.org Idaho County Sheriff
Gene Meinen icroads@qroidaho.net Idaho County Roads Supervisor
Wes Lester wlester@grangeville.us Grangeville Mayor
Tonya Kennedy tkennedy@grangeville.us Grangeville Administrator/clerk
Morgan Drew grangevillepd1@grangeville.us Grangeville Chief of Police

grangevillehighwaydistrict@outlook.com Grangeville Highway District
Joe Forsmann joeforsm@qwestoffice.net Union Independent Highway District Clerk
Ken ken@forsmannaccounting.com Greencreek Highway District
Richard Adamson Richard.Adamson@isp.idaho.gov ISP D2 ISP Captain
Kayeloni Scott kayelonis@nezperce.org Nez Perce Tribe Communications Manager

Excluding Stites and Harpster since they are unincorporated 

143

mailto:sbateman@simplot.com
mailto:Clerk@CityOfNezperce.com
mailto:jdavis@lewiscountyid.org
mailto:gjohnson@lewiscountyid.org
mailto:jmcleod@lewiscountyid.org
mailto:mponozzo@lewiscountyid.org
mailto:stephanied@cityofkamiah.org
mailto:mtornatore@cityofkamiah.org
mailto:kooskiapw@qroidaho.net
mailto:dduman@idahocounty.org
mailto:dulmer@idahocounty.org
mailto:icroads@qroidaho.net
mailto:wlester@grangeville.us
mailto:tkennedy@grangeville.us
mailto:grangevillepd1@grangeville.us
mailto:grangevillehighwaydistrict@outlook.com
mailto:joeforsm@qwestoffice.net
mailto:ken@forsmannaccounting.com
mailto:Richard.Adamson@isp.idaho.gov
mailto:kayelonis@nezperce.org


Elected officials 

Name Email Coverage area
Sen. Carl Crabtree ccrabtree@senate.idaho.gov District 7
Rep. Priscilla Giddings PGiddings@house.idaho.gov District 7
Rep Charlie Shepherd cshepherd@house.idaho.gov District 7
Sen. Daniel G. Johnson DJohnson@senate.idaho.gov District 6
Rep. Aaron von Ehlinger AvonEhlinger@house.idaho.gov District 6
Rep. Mike Kingsley mkingsley@house.idaho.gov District 6

Shawn Keough skeough@senate.idaho.gov former legislator and commenter
Paul Shepherd pshepherd@house.idaho.gov former legislator and commenter
Sheryl Nuxoll snuxoll@senate.idaho.gov former legislator and commenter

144

mailto:ccrabtree@senate.idaho.gov
mailto:PGiddings@house.idaho.gov
mailto:cshepherd@house.idaho.gov
mailto:DJohnson@senate.idaho.gov
mailto:AvonEhlinger@house.idaho.gov
mailto:mkingsley@house.idaho.gov
mailto:skeough@senate.idaho.gov
mailto:pshepherd@house.idaho.gov
mailto:snuxoll@senate.idaho.gov


Trucking industry

Name Company Email Phone
Wally Burchak Trucking Advisory Council D2 wallykbc1@gmail.com
Allen Hodges Idaho Trucking Association allenh@idtrucking.org (208) 949-8937
Arlo Lott Arlo Lott Trucking andy.lott@agltrucking.com
Bill Higgins Idaho Forest Group bhiggins@idahoforestgroup.com
Steve Sherich Associated Logging Contractors alc@idahologgers.com
William Stellmon Excel Transport (208) 746-4111 has since been sold; left a message
Melanie von Lutzow Tamarack Energy Partnership melaniev@frontier.com
Frank Arnzen Arnzen Transfer (208) 962-3498 left message
Cynthia Lane former USFS lanefamily1988@gmail.com
Duane Orcutt Duane Orcutt Trucking no longer in business

145

mailto:wallykbc1@gmail.com
mailto:allenh@idtrucking.org
mailto:andy.lott@agltrucking.com
mailto:bhiggins@idahoforestgroup.com
mailto:alc@idahologgers.com
mailto:lanefamily1988@gmail.com


Email commenters

Jerry Litchfield jerpeg@startmail.com
Glen Scott gscott.swearingen@hughes.net
Daryl Kinzer dardonkinzer@gmail.com
Tim E. Christopherson dabco@connectwireless.us
Teresa Seloske tseloske@gmail.com
Abigail Haight haight@johnbosco.org
Jim McIver jdmcive@gmail.com
Edward Clark eaclark2@outlook.com
Lucky Brandt luckybrandt@gmail.com
LaVerne Wiley idwilley1@gmail.com
Craig Roach craig_03@hotmail.com
Phillip Kelley phillipakelley@icloud.com
Betty Heater mtornatore@cityofkamiaho.org
Hazel Eggers loseth73@gmail.com
Joshua Palken vom357@gmail.com
Frances Conklin frances@dogbarkparkinn.com
Craig Jones carnes3121955@icloud.com
Patricia Goetz nipntuckstede@hotmail.com
Jon Haupt hauptam@hotmail.com
John Conca drjbc7@gmail.com
Paul Hespen pwhespen@gmail.com
Falisa Wolfe wolfepac2@oakleyone.com
Darlene Malone bible4love777@hotmail.com

146

mailto:jerpeg@startmail.com
mailto:gscott.swearingen@hughes.net
mailto:dardonkinzer@gmail.com
mailto:dabco@connectwireless.us
mailto:tseloske@gmail.com
mailto:haight@johnbosco.org
mailto:jdmcive@gmail.com
mailto:eaclark2@outlook.com
mailto:luckybrandt@gmail.com
mailto:idwilley1@gmail.com
mailto:craig_03@hotmail.com
mailto:phillipakelley@icloud.com
mailto:mtornatore@cityofkamiaho.org
mailto:loseth73@gmail.com
mailto:vom357@gmail.com
mailto:frances@dogbarkparkinn.com
mailto:carnes3121955@icloud.com
mailto:nipntuckstede@hotmail.com
mailto:hauptam@hotmail.com
mailto:drjbc7@gmail.com
mailto:pwhespen@gmail.com
mailto:wolfepac2@oakleyone.com
mailto:bible4love777@hotmail.com


Phone commenters

Jamie Burton Willy (208) 935-5691
Anonymous (208) 935-7651
Elroy Moffett (208) 935-7014
Dave Seburt (208) 451-4340
Orville Martin (208) 926-4935
Mrs. Dains (208) 451-4650

147



Idaho Transportation Department
2600 Frontage Road
Lewiston, ID 83501

    
	 	 	 	 ٭٭٭٭ECRWSS٭٭٭٭٭٭٭٭٭

     Local 
			Postal	Customer

Comment on proposed 
changes to commercial 

trucking limits by April 12

PRSRT	STD
U.S.	POSTAGE

PAID
EDDM

PERMIT	NO.	1

148



Proposal to reclassify 
highways under consideration

VISIT     itd.idaho.gov/freight
CALL 				(208)	334	-	8057	with	any	questions
EMAIL 		officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov

A	virtual	public	hearing	will	be	held	from	March 29 to April 12 to collect 
comments on a proposal to reclassify several highways as legal for commercial 
loads	weighing	up	to	129,000	pounds.	

To	allow	for	more	efficient	transport	of	logs	and	lumber,	KBC	Trucking	
has	requested	reclassification	from	its	yard	on	Idaho	Highway	13	to	the															
ID-13/US-12	intersection	outside	of	Kooskia,	US-12	from	Kooskia	to	Kamiah	
and	Idaho	Highway	162	from	Kamiah	to	its	intersection	with	Old	Highway	7.	
ITD	has	reviewed	the	request,	with	the	analysis,	application	and	frequently	
answered	questions	available	online.	

Comments	may	be	submitted	via	the	website	or	emailed.	Oral	testimony	can	
be	recorded	at	(855)	785-2499.	Comments	may	also	be	mailed	to	the	attention	
of	Scott	Luekenga	at	P.O.	Box	7129	in	Boise,	ID	83707.	

149



From: ITDNews@itd.idaho.gov
To: Megan Jahns
Subject: Monthly meeting of Idaho Transportation Board Thursday (March 18) will include special 129,000-pound route

Subcommittee meeting
Date: Tuesday, March 16, 2021 7:41:45 AM

3/16/2021

Contact:
Megan Jahns
ITD Office of Communication
208 772-1295
megan.jahns@itd.idaho.gov

Monthly meeting of Idaho Transportation Board Thursday (March 18) will include
special 129,000-pound route Subcommittee meeting

BOISE - The Idaho Transportation Board will hold its monthly meeting Thursday (March 18) in
Boise, focusing on a pair of grant applications through the federal Infrastructure for Rebuilding
America (INFRA) Program, discussion of funds available through the COVID Relief bill, and a
report from the Dealer Advisory Board overseeing licensure and operations by vehicle dealers
statewide. The subcommittee on 129,000-pound routes will also meet and be informed of a recent
route application in north central Idaho.

Here’s a link to the agenda for the Idaho Transportation Board meeting: https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/March2021agenda.pdf

The larger meeting will also include a meeting by the subcommittee on 129,000-pound routes. That
meeting is tentatively scheduled to start at 2 p.m. on March 18, but could start a little early (but not
before 1:50 p.m.) or a little late, depending on when the Transportation Board’s regular business
meeting adjourns. 

The subcommittee will be informed of a recent application to designate portions of US-12, Idaho
Highway 13 and Idaho Highway 162 in north central Idaho as 129,000-pound routes. 

Here’s the link for the 129,000-pound Subcommittee meeting:

https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/129KsubcomagendaMarch2021.pdf

 

 

 

 

                                                                  # # #

150

mailto:ITDNews@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:Megan.Jahns@itd.Idaho.gov
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/March2021agenda.pdf
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/March2021agenda.pdf
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/129KsubcomagendaMarch2021.pdf


From: ITDNews@itd.idaho.gov
To: Megan Jahns
Subject: Comment period open for proposed changes to commercial trucking limits on some Idaho County highways
Date: Monday, March 29, 2021 4:52:04 PM

3/29/2021

Contact:
Megan Jahns
ITD Office of Communication
208 772-1295
megan.jahns@itd.idaho.gov

Comment period open for proposed changes to commercial trucking limits on some
Idaho County highways

LEWISTON—The Idaho Transportation Department is hosting a virtual public hearing to
collect comments on a proposal to reclassify several highways in Idaho County as legal for
carrying heavier loads. If approved, these highways could support commercial loads weighing
up to 129,000 pounds.

KBC Trucking of Kooskia submitted an application to ITD earlier this month requesting the
reclassification of the following routes to allow for more efficient transport of logs and lumber
to Boise Valley:

Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of
US-12 outside of Kooskia
US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah
Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162
and US-95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the
Greencreek Highway District, Union Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway
District.

Download a photo of Seven Mile Canyon on ID-162.

These highways are currently rated for commercial loads weighing up to 105,500 pounds.
Analysis of the state routes by ITD subject matter experts found that allowing heavier loads on
the specified highways could be accommodated without affecting safety or pavement
conditions.

A similar application was filed by Arlo Lott of Montana in 2015 but included all of ID-13
from Kooskia to Grangeville. After engineering analysis deemed the proposal would not
negatively affect safety or pavement conditions, a public hearing was held and received
significant public comment. The applicant later withdrew his request.

151

mailto:ITDNews@itd.idaho.gov
mailto:Megan.Jahns@itd.Idaho.gov
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/ID-162_7-Mile-Canyon_March-2021-scaled.jpg


“While similar to an earlier application, the latest request excludes much of ID-13, which was
the most controversial segment,” said Jan Vassar, the Idaho Transportation Board Member
representing North Central Idaho. “Staff are approaching this proposal with fresh eyes, and as
before, comments received will influence the decision regarding reclassification of the routes.”

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at
itd.idaho.gov/freight. Comments are being sought until April 12 and can be submitted in the
following ways:

via itd.idaho.gov/freight  
by emailing officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov
mailed to PO Box 7129, Boise, Idaho 83707 to the attention of Scott Luekenga
recorded by calling (855) 785-2499

Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at (208) 334-8057
with questions.

The department is required to conduct an analysis and public hearing on all requests to operate
129,000-pound loads on the state highway system before the Idaho Transportation Board
makes a final decision. The board could make a decision as early as May.

                                                                  # # #

152

https://itd.idaho.gov/freight/
https://itd.idaho.gov/freight/
mailto:officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov


 Garrison Hardie

(https://lcvalley.daily�y.com/Home/PID/1352/authorid/238/AuthorName/Garrison-Hardie) / Tuesday, March 16, 2021

Monthly meeting of Idaho Transportation Board Thursday
(March 18) will include special 129,000-pound route
Subcommittee meeting
ITD Press Release

BOISE - The Idaho Transportation Board will hold its monthly meeting Thursday (March 18) in Boise, focusing on a pair of
grant applications through the federal Infrastructure for Rebuilding America (INFRA) Program, discussion of funds
available through the COVID Relief bill, and a report from the Dealer Advisory Board overseeing licensure and operations
by vehicle dealers statewide. The subcommittee on 129,000-pound routes will also meet and be informed of a recent
route application in north central Idaho.

Here’s a link to the agenda for the Idaho Transportation Board meeting: https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/March2021agenda.pdf (https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/March2021agenda.pdf)

The larger meeting will also include a meeting by the subcommittee on 129,000-pound routes. That meeting is
tentatively scheduled to start at 2 p.m. on March 18, but could start a little early (but not before 1:50 p.m.) or a little late,
depending on when the Transportation Board’s regular business meeting adjourns. 

The subcommittee will be informed of a recent application to designate portions of US-12, Idaho Highway 13 and Idaho
Highway 162 in north central Idaho as 129,000-pound routes. 

Here’s the link for the 129,000-pound Subcommittee meeting:

https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/129KsubcomagendaMarch2021.pdf (https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/129KsubcomagendaMarch2021.pdf)

 Previous Article (https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Home/ArtMID/1352/ArticleID/58497/CRAPO-BENNET-REINTRODUCE-BIPARTISAN-
LEGISLATION-TO-STREAMLINE-ACCESS-TO-RESOURCES-FOR-VETERANS)

Next Article 

Sign In (https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Logon?returnurl=%2fHome%2fArtMID%2f1352%2fArticleID%2f58499%2fMonthly-meeting-of-

Idaho-Transportation-Board-Thursday-March-18-will-include-special-129000-pound-route-Subcommittee-meeting)Register (https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Home/Registration?returnurl=https%3a%2f%2flcvalley.dailyfly.com%2f)

153

https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Home/PID/1352/authorid/238/AuthorName/Garrison-Hardie
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/March2021agenda.pdf
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/129KsubcomagendaMarch2021.pdf
https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Our-Community/Buy-Local
https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Home/ArtMID/1352/ArticleID/58497/CRAPO-BENNET-REINTRODUCE-BIPARTISAN-LEGISLATION-TO-STREAMLINE-ACCESS-TO-RESOURCES-FOR-VETERANS
https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Home/ArtMID/1352/ArticleID/58500/Winter-survival-for-mule-deer-fawns-and-elk-calves-tracking-slightly-above-average
https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Logon?returnurl=%2fHome%2fArtMID%2f1352%2fArticleID%2f58499%2fMonthly-meeting-of-Idaho-Transportation-Board-Thursday-March-18-will-include-special-129000-pound-route-Subcommittee-meeting
https://lcvalley.dailyfly.com/Home/Registration?returnurl=https%3a%2f%2flcvalley.dailyfly.com%2f


https://www.bigcountrynewsconnection.com/idaho/itd-opens-comment-period-for-proposed-changes-to-

commercial-trucking-limits-on-some-idaho-county/article_07db90ec-90ea-11eb-8477-4b2b743f0f2c.html

ITD Opens Comment Period For Proposed Changes to Commercial
Trucking Limits on Some Idaho County Highways

Mar 29, 2021

KAMIAH - The Idaho Transportation Department is hosting a virtual public hearing to collect

comments on a proposal to reclassify several highways in Idaho County as legal for carrying heavier

loads. If approved, these highways could support commercial loads weighing up to 129,000 pounds.

KBC Trucking of Kooskia submitted an application to ITD earlier this month requesting the

reclassi�cation of the following routes to allow for more ef�cient transport of logs and lumber to Boise

Valley:

Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia

US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah

Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7

154



The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162 and US-

95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway

District, Union Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.

These highways are currently rated for commercial loads weighing up to 105,500 pounds. Analysis of

the state routes by ITD subject matter experts found that allowing heavier loads on the speci�ed

highways could be accommodated without affecting safety or pavement conditions.

A similar application was �led by Arlo Lott of Montana in 2015 but included all of ID-13 from Kooskia

to Grangeville. After engineering analysis deemed the proposal would not negatively affect safety or

pavement conditions, a public hearing was held and received signi�cant public comment. The applicant

later withdrew his request.

155

https://bigcountrynewsconnection.com/tncms/tracking/bannerad/clicks/?i=ros/fixed-big-ad-top-asset1/f703c200-1a4a-11eb-a14c-87b9e8aba4b8&r=https://lcca.com/locations/id/lewiston/careers
https://bigcountrynewsconnection.com/tncms/tracking/bannerad/clicks/?i=ros/fixed-big-ad-middle-asset1/11451c0a-7ba7-11eb-a23f-17eeca307a45&r=https://lewiston.floorcoveringsinternational.com/flooring-gallery/


“While similar to an earlier application, the latest request excludes much of ID-13, which was the most

controversial segment,” said Jan Vassar, the Idaho Transportation Board Member representing North

Central Idaho. “Staff are approaching this proposal with fresh eyes, and as before, comments received

will in�uence the decision regarding reclassi�cation of the routes.”

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at

itd.idaho.gov/freight. Comments are being sought until April 12 and can be submitted in the following

ways:

via idaho.gov/freight

by emailing of�ceofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov

mailed to PO Box 7129, Boise, Idaho 83707 to the attention of Scott Luekenga

recorded by calling (855) 785-2499

Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at (208) 334-8057 with questions.

The department is required to conduct an analysis and public hearing on all requests to operate

129,000-pound loads on the state highway system before the Idaho Transportation Board makes a

�nal decision. The board could make a decision as early as May.

156

https://itd.idaho.gov/freight/
http://idaho.gov/freight
mailto:officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov
https://bigcountrynewsconnection.com/tncms/tracking/bannerad/clicks/?i=ros/fixed-big-ad-bottom-asset1/6d677e1c-7619-11eb-b898-07ad71b29c65&r=https://lewistonrv.com/


https://www.idahocountyfreepress.com/news/proposal-for-county-highways-carrying-heavier-commercial-
loads-public-comment-deadline-april-12/article_75381334-9731-11eb-bbed-cb40a1f11895.html

FEATURED

Proposal for county highways carrying heavier commercial
loads; public comment deadline: April 12
Apr 7, 2021

Seven Mile Canyon, State Highway 162.

Contributed photo

The Idaho Transportation Department is hosting a virtual public hearing to collect comments

on a proposal to reclassify several highways in Idaho County as legal for carrying heavier loads.

If approved, these highways could support commercial loads weighing up to 129,000 pounds.

Comment deadline is next Monday, April 12.
157



KBC Trucking of Kooskia submitted an application to ITD earlier this month requesting the

reclassi�cation of the following routes to allow for more e�cient transport of logs and lumber

to Boise Valley:

• Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of U.S.

Highway 12 outside of Kooskia;

• U.S.12 from Kooskia to Kamiah; and

• Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7.

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID 162

and U.S. Highway 95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of

the Greencreek, Union Independent and Grangeville highway districts.

These highways are currently rated for commercial loads weighing up to 105,500 pounds.

Analysis of the state routes by ITD subject matter experts found that allowing heavier loads on

the speci�ed highways could be accommodated without a�ecting safety or pavement

conditions.

A similar application was �led by Arlo Lott of Montana in 2015, but included all of ID 13 from

Kooskia to Grangeville, according to ITD. After engineering analysis deemed the proposal

would not negatively a�ect safety or pavement conditions, a public hearing was held and

received signi�cant public comment. The applicant later withdrew his request.

158



“While similar to an earlier application, the latest request excludes much of ID 13, which was

the most controversial segment,” said Jan Vassar, the Idaho Transportation Board Member

representing North Central Idaho. “Sta� are approaching this proposal with fresh eyes, and as

before, comments received will in�uence the decision regarding reclassi�cation of the routes.”

The department is required to conduct an analysis and public hearing on all requests to

operate 129,000-pound loads on the state highway system before the Idaho Transportation

Board makes a �nal decision. The board could make a decision as early as May.

How to comment

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at

itd.idaho.gov/freight. Comments are being sought until April 12 and can be submitted in the

following ways:

• via itd.idaho.gov/freight

• o�ceofthechief

engineer@itd.idaho.gov

• PO Box 7129, Boise ID 83707 to the attention of Scott Luekenga

• call 855-785-2499

Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at 208-334-8057 with

questions.
159

http://itd.idaho.gov/freight
http://itd.idaho.gov/freight
mailto:engineer@itd.idaho.gov


S E R V I N G  T H E  U P P E R  C L E A R W A T E R  V A L L E Y  S I N C E  1 9 0 5

The Clearwater Progress | 417 Main Street, Kamiah, ID 83536 progress@clearwaterprogress.com | 208-935-0838

Carrier Route Presort  
postal Patron Local ECRSS

The Idaho Transportation 
Department is hosting a virtual 
public hearing to collect com-
ments on a proposal to reclas-
sify several highways in Idaho 
County as legal for carrying 
heavier loads. If approved, these 
highways could support com-
mercial loads weighing up to 
129,000 pounds.

Comment deadline is next 
Monday, April 12.

KBC Trucking of Kooskia 
submitted an application to ITD 
earlier this month requesting the 
reclassification of the following 
routes to allow for more efficient 
transport of logs and lumber to 
Boise Valley: 

• Idaho Highway 13 from the 
KBC Trucking yard at milepost 
24.4 to its intersection of U.S. 
Highway 12 outside of Kooskia;

• U.S.12 from Kooskia to 
Kamiah; and

• Idaho Highway 162 from 
Kamiah to its intersection with 
Old Highway 7.

The applicant has also 

By Lorie Palmer
The Clearwater Progress

In an effort to answer patrons’ 
concerns on the upcoming levy, 
Mountain View School District 
244 Superintendent Todd Fiske 
will hit the road with a variety 
of community meetings starting 
this month.

“I plan to have less than an 
hour presentation and dis-
cuss topics such as why the 
district needs a levy and what 
it supports, as well as answer 
questions,” Fiske said. He will 
also be presenting information 
to school staff in three to four 
meetings prior to the communi-
ty meetings.

MVSD will ask patrons to 
vote on a $3.1 million supple-
mental levy on May 18. This 
comes on the heels of a failed 
$3.9 million levy in 2020.

Upcoming meetings (subject 

to change if need-
ed) are as follows:

• April 15, Elk 
City, 5 p.m.

• April 20, 
Kooskia, 
Clearwater Valley 
High School 
Library, 6 p.m.

• April 21, 
Grangeville Senior Citizens 
Center, noon

• April 22, Grangeville 
Elementary Middle School 
Community Room, 6 p.m.

• April 27, Kooskia, Clearwater 
Valley Elementary School 
Library, 6 p.m.

• April 29, Grangeville, Idaho 
County Community Outreach 
and Veterans Center, 6 p.m.

• May 4, Grangeville High 
School Library, 6 p.m.

• May 6, Grangeville, Mountain 
View School District Office, 6 
p.m.

THURSDAY
April 8, 2021

75¢ Vol. 71, No. 14

INSIDE THIS EDITION:
Local 2
Opinion 4
Community 5

Sports 8
Classifieds 10

On the Hunt:
Kamiah Easter

Progress / Norma Staaf
Ron Sapko of the Kamiah Kiwanis Club was happy to have the annual Eas-
ter egg hunt after cancelling last year’s event. Although the crowd was 
smaller than past years, families enjoyed the event on a beautiful sunny 
Saturday, April 3. As expected, the 1-to-4-year-old group had by far the 
most kids. Sapko appreciates the kids from the teen center helping fill the 
estimated 2,800-3,000 plastic eggs. Tina Brotnov, Teen Center staff mem-
ber, said with all of the Youth Advisory board kids graduating this year, the 
younger high school teens are helping with more community events. Sap-
ko was glad to see the Kamiah fire district guys joining in also. “These guys 
are great, they are getting involved with all of the events around town.” 

Nez Perce Tribal Executive Committee

Six to vie for three 
seats in May 8 election

By Norma Staaf
The Clearwater Progress

The final slate of six candi-
dates is set for the upcoming 
Nez Perce Tribal Executive 
Committee (NPTEC) general 
election on May 8, following the 
primary election last Saturday, 
April 3. Two candidates will 
compete for each of seats 1, 2 
and 3. Mary Jane Miles, the in-
cumbent and Ryan Oatman will 
compete for seat 1 as the only 
two candidates who filed for the 
position.

In the April 3 primary elec-
tion, Samuel N. Penney, with 
139 votes, and the incumbent 
Ferris Paisano III with 126 votes 
topped the primary field of 
eight candidates to advance to 
the general election. Erik Holt 

(84 votes), Scherri R. Greene (67 
votes), Mary TallBull (58 votes), 
Tonia Garcia (45 votes), July 
Tess Greene (31 votes) and Louis 
Harris (29 votes) 
also competed in 
the primary.

In the race for 
seat 3, incum-
bent Shirley 
Allman won 
decisively with 
461 votes 
with James R. 
Spencer, 63 
votes, both 
advancing to 
the general 
election. 
Sheldon R. 
Allen received 50 votes. 

The vote counting 
was shown on Facebook 

live in real time, with elections 
officials tracking the votes on 
flip charts as the names were 

read out. According to 
election judge, Melissa 
Guzman, General 
Council Chairwoman 
Julia Davis Wheeler 
certified the vote. 
Several people posted 
positive comments 
in response to the 
chance to watch 
the counting on 
Facebook live. 

Aqua Greene 
posted, “A lot of 
tribal membership 
requested this for 
years. It’s awesome 

to have this opportu-
nity. Good job, election judges, 

for working on this.”

May 18 election includes 
Nezperce district levy vote

By Norma Staaf
The Clearwater Progress

Lewis County elections di-
rector Karen Long said that the 
ballot for the May 18th election 
will include a yes/no vote on the 
$445,000 Nezperce Joint School 
District 302 levy. A few Lewis 
County voters, who live within 
the Cottonwood or Orofino 
school district boundaries, will 
also have a levy vote. 

The Kamiah school district is 
not running a levy this year since 
they passed a two-year levy last 
year.

Two of the five Prairie River 
Library District seats are up for 
election this year for six-year 

terms. Jan Grueter of Winchester is 
the only person to file for the seat 
that she currently holds. The term 
for trustee Leonard Van Dyke of 
Genesee will expire 10 days after 
the May 18th date, at which point 
the board can declare a vacancy, 
according to Lisa Puckett, Prairie 
River Library system director.

“We have a friendly, supportive 
board,” Puckett said. “We are 
hoping to have someone step up.”

Various highway districts 
(Central, Evergreen, Kamiah, 
North, and Prairie) in Lewis 
County are also scheduled for 
election in May, but no contest 
is needed since only one person 
filed to run for each of the posi-
tions, according to Long. 

For the Kamiah Fire District, 
Mike Fischer and Dean Roach 
will advance to new four-year 
terms. In the Nezperce area, Greg 
Branson and Pat Barnett will 
continue on the Prairie Highway 
District with new four-year terms 
and Zak Ralston filed for one of 
two seats on the North Highway 
District, with no filers for the 2nd 
open seat. 

The group proposing the 
formation of the Valley United 
Ambulance District “ran out of 
time,” according to Long. They 
did not complete the required 
steps prior to the filing date. 
According to Long, their next 
opportunity will be to try to get 
on the November ballot.

MVSD community 
levy meetings set 

for April, May

Todd Fiske, 
MVSD 
superintendent

Public comment deadline: April 12

Proposal for county 
highways carrying heavier 

commercial loads

Contributed photo / ITD
A view of Seven Mile Canyon on State Highway 162.

See PROPOSAL on page 3

Feature a 
Teacher: 
Cheyenne 
Hudson
Page 11

Avista truck 
donated
Page 5

160



ClearwaterProgress.com The Clearwater Progress Thursday, April 8, 2021 | 3

requested the use of 
Old Highway 7 from its 
intersections with ID 162 
and U.S. Highway 95. 
This route is not being 
evaluated by ITD as it 
is under the jurisdic-
tion of the Greencreek, 
Union Independent  and 
Grangeville highway 
districts. 

These highways are 
currently rated for com-
mercial loads weighing 
up to 105,500 pounds. 
Analysis of the state routes 
by ITD subject matter 
experts found that allow-
ing heavier loads on the 
specified highways could 
be accommodated without 
affecting safety or pave-
ment conditions.

A similar application 
was filed by Arlo Lott of 
Montana in 2015, but 
included all of ID 13 from 
Kooskia to Grangeville, 

according to ITD. After 
engineering analysis 
deemed the proposal 
would not negatively 
affect safety or pavement 
conditions, a public hear-
ing was held and received 
significant public com-
ment. The applicant later 
withdrew his request.

“While similar to an 
earlier application, the 
latest request excludes 
much of ID 13, which was 
the most controversial 
segment,” said Jan Vassar, 
the Idaho Transportation 
Board Member represent-
ing North Central Idaho. 
“Staff are approaching this 
proposal with fresh eyes, 
and as before, comments 
received will influence the 
decision regarding reclas-
sification of the routes.” 

The department is 
required to conduct 
an analysis and public 
hearing on all requests to 
operate 129,000-pound 
loads on the state highway 
system before the Idaho 
Transportation Board 
makes a final decision. 
The board could make a 
decision as early as May.

Lynn Wentz, DDS

Gentle Family Dentistry

Open Monday - Friday 8am-5pm

Friendly,  
Reliable, Experienced 

& Affordable

(208) 476-4315
Call for an Appointment

1265 Riverside Avenue • Orofino ID

Financing Available

Most Dental 
Insurance Accepted

Comment on proposed changes to commercial trucking limits 
on ID-13, ID-162 and US-12

MARCH 29 - APRIL 12
itd.idaho.gov/freight

YOUR  Safety YOUR  Mobility YOUR  Economic Opportunity

�������������������������������������������������������������
�������������
����
����������������	������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������	��������������������
��������������������

How to comment
The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 

129,000-pound loads are available at itd.idaho.gov/
freight. Comments are being sought until April 12 and 
can be submitted in the following ways: 

• via itd.idaho.gov/freight
• officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov
• PO Box 7129, Boise, Idaho 83707 to the attention 

of Scott Luekenga
• call 855-785-2499
Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program 

Manager Scott Luekenga at 208-334-8057 with 
questions.

Proposal: 
Comment 
sought
continued from page 1

Correction: Quilt of Valor
In last week’s Progress, a few mistakes were 

made in the front page story on a Quilt of Valor 
recipient.

The quilt recipient should have been named as 
Robert Lee Burdock, who served as 2nd Class in the 
U.S. Navy. In one of the photos, the person hugging 
Robert should have been listed as Julia Bates.

The Progress apologizes for the errors.

Progress 
moving to paid 
subscriptions 

starting April 15

Final remarks promise voter reprisal at polls

Fifty confront commission 
for immediate 2A 

sanctuary proclamation
By Gary Altman

The Clearwater Progress

GRANGEVILLE — 
Fifty petitioners packed 
in shoulder-to-shoulder 
last Tuesday, March 
30, armed with 2,000 
signatures, demand-
ing the Idaho County 
Commissioners imme-
diately declare Idaho 
County a “Second 
Amendment sanctuary.” 

Five scheduled speak-
ers read statements aimed 
at commission reluc-
tance to officially en-
dorse the proclamation. 
Some speakers targeted 
Commission Chair Skip 
Brandt’s Feb. 24 opinion 
piece in the Idaho County 
Free Press, criticizing the 
proclamation as possibly 
useless, redundant, or 
legally dangerous.

Brandt, self-quaran-
tined, joined the meeting 
by conference phone. 
Speakers praised coop-
erating counties, blasted 
Biden anti-gun ploys and 
Governor Brad Little’s 
state shutdown, then 
lobbed rhetorical fire 
at skeptics of sanctuary 
status. Commissioner 
Denis Duman opened 
proceedings with the 
Pledge of Allegiance and 
a prayer for wisdom, then 
welcomed the first of five 
speakers.

Retired veterinari-
an Phil Volkman, read 
the petition: “‘We the 
people of Idaho County 

hereby petition the … 
Commissioners to declare 
Idaho County a Second 
Amendment sanctuary, 
with protections from 
outside governments that 
would infringe on these 
rights as described in 
the Constitution’ … We 
currently have over 2,000 
signatures [and] 15 cities 
and counties in Idaho who 
have passed sanctuary 
resolutions. Idaho County 
is on a list of three that 
have rejected this status … 
Governor Little showed us 
last year he can shut down 
our freedoms with an 
emergency declaration on 
a questionable pandemic 
to qualify for federal funds 
… Would he cave on gun 
rights for federal money 
threats?…”  

Speaker Jo Hardy read 
a letter from military 
veteran John Whyte: “… 
I served my country for 
30 years, supporting and 
defending the Constitution 
and the Bill of Rights …  
currently under attack … 
challenged at every level 
of government, especial-
ly with the current 9th 
Circuit Court … I believe 
our forefathers were men 
of vision who knew we 
needed a second amend-
ment to preserve and 
protect our Constitution 
and the Bill of Rights …”

Speaker Mary Mangold 
rejected Brandt’s published 
opinion, saying: “A …  
member of our group … 
discovered a law, enacted 

in 2003 [by commission-
ers]: Ordinance Number 
45 … passed in defiance 
of The Patriot Act [that] 
threatened to infringe con-
stitutional rights … [45] 
reads: ‘… The Bill of Rights 
and the Constitution for 
these United States of 
America, which is the 
supreme law of the land, 
shall be upheld and en-
forced within the bound-
aries of Idaho County; re-
pugnant acts, ordinances, 
or regulations of govern-
ment in clear contraven-
tion notwithstanding’ … 
Using its contents might 
have been a great strategy 
to calm fears ….”

Speaker Craig Seegel 
read Jesie Schubert’s 
message: “… I came from 
a small town in Oregon, 
a conservative commu-
nity … [It] was taken 
over by people who had 
moved into the area and 
had more liberal ideas … 
Now you can’t recognize 
our little town. It’s been 
transformed into a politi-
cally correct version of the 
cancel culture….”

Speaker Jon Aronson 
said, “One night my 
17-year-old [daughter] 
asked me why we need 
such an effort here in 
Idaho County if the Bill of 
Rights is supposed to pro-
tect Constitutional rights 
… I reverted the question 
back to her: ‘Why do you 
think it’s important?’ 
After a pause, [she said], 
‘Because I’m losing the 

fight and our rights’ …”
Sheriff Ulmer distribut-

ed copies of Ordinance 45, 
which he described as “a 
hidden gem …reaffirming 
… we will support the 
whole Constitution ….”

Duman promised: “We 
will take what has been 
said under consideration 
… we have a [pending] 
resolution …. affirming 
our support for Ordinance 
Number 45 .…”

“How does that answer 
2,000 signatures?” some-
one asked.

Volkman retorted that 
if 2,000 signatures isn’t 
enough, “We can get 
more.”

One challenger quot-
ed Second Amendment 
language “… ‘a well-regu-
lated militia’: “… Are we 
‘well-regulated’?”

Volkman was again rec-
ognized: “… 2,000 people 
— so far — want this …. 
What they’ve signed is the 
sanctuary status. It’s not 
a new law; it’s not a new 
ordinance; it’s a declara-
tion .…”

Final remarks left prom-
ised voter reprisal at the 
polls for commission inac-
tion. Duman announced: 
“Alright, folks, I know 
there’s a lot of comments, 
but we have to move 
on with the rest of our 
agenda ….” That included 
a  support letter for Hells 
Canyon Recreation and a 
postponed executive ses-
sion with State Insurance  
Representative Alicia Ray.

The Clearwater Progress 
is moving to a paid sub-
scription model starting 
with next Thursday’s April 
15th edition.

For readers in Kamiah, 
Kooskia and Stites who 
receive the weekly newspa-
per in their mailboxes free 
each week, to continue re-
ceiving the Progress, they 
will need to subscribe, 
either by calling the office, 
208-935-0838, or go online 
at www.clearwaterprog-
ress.com.

Driving this, Progress 
publisher, Sarah Klement, 
explained it partly due to 
ever-rising postal rates, as 
well as from economic im-
pacts that many businesses 
have been hit with as a 
result of the COVID-19 

pandemic. Another part 
of the change is to pro-
vide pricing consistency 
for its readers.

“It’s kind of an odd 
model right now,” 
Klement said. “We have 
people getting it for free 
and people buying it for 
75 cents at the stands. 
With this move, we’re 
just looking to, one, make 
sure we can sustain the 
local community news-
paper, and, two, provide a 
model that’s consistent.”

“We would love to 
have you as a subscriber,” 
Klement continued. “It’s 
only $33 a year to keep 
your local paper support-
ed and bringing you the 
news of your communi-
ties each week.”

Stay up to date on the go at: progress@clearwaterprogress.com
161



(208) 983-1200 Classified (800) 252-0233ClassifiedsClassifieds
Miscellaneous

March 31, 2021 www.IdahoCountyFreePress.com 13

Kidder Harris Highway District
Applications are being accepted for:

Road Crewman 
Primary Duties
· Maintains assigned equipment as needed.
· Operates a variety of heavy equipment including but not limited to, bulldozers, 
graders, loaders, single and double axle trucks, backhoes, track hoes, chip 
spreaders, rollers, brush cutters, snowplows, and related road maintenance 
and construction equipment as needed.
· Operates a variety of hand and power tools including, but not limited to, 
sledges, hammers, picks, air compressors, welders, chainsaws, air hammers, 
jacks, and related equipment as needed;
· Grades roads, smoothing potholes, and washboards, and maintains slope for 
proper drainage, as needed;
· Maintains culverts and bridges as needed;
· Removes debris and other safety hazards from roads, culverts, storm drains, 
and adjacent public areas, as needed;
· Opens and closes roads seasonally, as needed;
· Responds to Commisioners, elected officials and appointed officials, citizens, 
questions and comments ina  courteous and timely manner. 

Required Qualifications
· Must be able to lift 100 pounds (4) feet off the ground
· Must have current Class A Commercial Drivers License or be able to obtain one 
within 60 days opon hire.

A completed KHHD application is required and must be submitted by 
April 2, 2021 with a May 3, 2021 start date. Please apply to Kidder Harris 
Highway District through one of the following:

1) email: khhd@qroidaho.net
2) mailing to P.O. Box 398, Kooskia, Idaho 83539
3) dropping the application off at our office on 260 Thenon Street, 
Kooskia ID 83539

Information and applications are available at 260 Thenon Street, 
Kooskia, ID 83539 or through email. 

KHHD IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

PRE-EMPLOYMENT DRUG TESTING AND BACKGROUND CHECK

VETERANS’ PREFERENCE 

Employment selection and related decisions are made without regard to race, color, religion, 
gender, national origin, age, disability, or any other protected class.

KHHD is committed to recruiting and retaining a diverse, skilled, engaged, and drug-free 
workforce. Applicants given a conditional offer of employment will be subject to a druge test 

and background check.

KHHD gives preference in appointment to preference eligable applicants as defined by Idaho 
Code, Title 65, and Chapter 5.

Comment on proposed changes to commercial trucking limits 
on ID-13, ID-162 and US-12

MARCH 29 - APRIL 12
itd.idaho.gov/freight

YOUR  Safety YOUR  Mobility YOUR  Economic Opportunity

 HEATING
AIR CONDITIONING

& ELECTRIC

106 Hwy. 95 North • Grangeville, ID

208-935-7727
208-983-2495

Honest, reliable, affordable.

Idaho HHVAC contractor’s license HVAC-1153 • Idaho Electrical contractor’s license ELE-33119

WE HAVE A HOME COMFORT SYSTEM 
FOR EVERY BUDGET

BUY•SELL TRADE•PAWN
104 E. South St

 GRANGEVILLE
      208-983-0381

•NEW & USED •NEW & USED 
FURNITUREFURNITURE

•APPLIANCES
•ANTIQUES•ANTIQUES

•TOOLS
•RIFLES & •RIFLES & 

HANDGUNSHANDGUNS
•FIREPROOF GUN 

SAFES
•CAMPING •CAMPING 

EQUIPMENTEQUIPMENT
AND SO MUCH MORE...

Cottonwood Livestock Auction

For Marketing Information, Call:
Dennis Rowland, (208) 962-3284 or (208) 983-7400 cell

Brent Rowland, (208) 451-4415
For more info, visit www.cottonwoodlivestock.com

Sales the 2nd and 4th Friday of the month

Back to Grass Feeder Sale- 
April 9th

Annual Farm & Livestock Equipment 
Consignment Auction- 
Saturday, June 5th

ATTENTION STOCKMEN:

Lewiston Livestock Market-208-743-5506
For Your Marketing Needs Anytime - 1-800-473-3406

Tony Seubert....(208) 305-7172                     Clay Bickford....(208) 791-5090
Maddie McMinn.... (509) 850-6764

Email us at: LLM@lewistonlivestockmarket.com

SMALL ANIMAL SALE 
WED, MARCH 31ST - 11 A.M.

500 -Sheep 250 Calves & Yearlings 50 LB Boer Goats 
40 Young Black Reputation Fall Calving Cows with Calves, Cows With Calves At Side 

200 Hogs  30 Horses


NO SALE WEDNESDAY, APRIL 7
SPECIAL CALF & FEEDER SALE, WED, APRIL 14TH

— Sales every other Wednesday — 

NO SALE WED, APRIL 7TH


SPECIAL CALF & FEEDER SALE, 
WED, APRIL 14TH

— Sales every other week — 

Announcements 
& Notices

Yahuah is His Name
Acts 4:12

Seek Me Find Me 
208-628-2322

BECOME A published author! 
Publications sold at all major 
secular and specialty Chris-
tian bookstores. Call Christian 
Faith Publishing for your FREE 
author submission kit. 1-866-
397-2250.

Business Opportunities
Become a Published Author. 
We want to read your book. 
Dorrance Publishing, Trusted 
by Authors since 1920. Book 
manuscript submissions cur-
rently being reviewed. Com-
prehensive Services: Consul-
tation, Production, Promotion 
& Distribution. Call for your free 
Author’s Guide, 1-877-256-3023 
or visit www.DorranceInfo.com/
Pacific.

Financial & Notices
Timeshare Cancellation Ex-
perts: Over $50,000,000 in 
timeshare debt & fees canceled 
in 2019. Get a free informational 
package and learn how to get 
rid of your timeshare! Free con-
sultations. Over 450 positive 
reviews. Call Wesley Financial 
Group LLC, 844-615-0146.

Up to $15,000 of GUARANTEED 
Life Insurance! No medical 
exam or health questions. 
Cash to help pay funeral and 
other final expenses. Visit www.
Life55plus.info/pacific or call 
Physicians Life Insurance Com-
pany, 1-844-218-4167.

The COVID crisis has cost us 
all something. Many have lost 
jobs & financial security. Have 
$10K in Debt? Credit Cards. 
Medical Bills. Car Loans. Call 
NATIONAL DEBT RELIEF! We 
can help! Get a FREE debt relief 
quote: Call 1-888-714-8597.

Thrifty Ads
JVC TV, 43” screen, asking 
$75.00. Call/text 208-739-3416.

FREE: Belts for Oreck vacuums. 
Belts fit all Oreck upright mod-
els. Call Linda, 208-983-1200.

Antiques & Collectibles
BUYING ANTIQUES,

Collectables, Western, Native 
American. White Bird Antiques, 
208-839-2619 or 208-839-2825

Appliances
2020 FRIGIDAIRE side-by-side 
water/ice refrigerator/freezer, 
22 cu. ft. Used only 3-1/2 mos. 
$1,000. Call 208-989-4818 or 
208-880-9879.

EarthLink High Speed Internet. 
As Low as $14.95/month (for 
the first 3 months). Reliable 
High Speed Fiber Optic tech-
nology. Stream Videos, Music 
& More! Call EarthLink Today, 
1-844-359-5240.

Miscellaneous 
Amazing Orange Gift for the 
Holidays - Delicious oranges 
fresh from the grove! Four fa-
vorite varieties. High in Vitamin 
C. December holiday delivery. 
SAVE 43%! Just $19.99 (plus 
s/h.) Call 1-855-657-2388 to 
order item 496X and mention 
code HNVH-N181 for savings 
or visit www.halegroves.com/
mn181.

Pittman & Davis’s Mixed-Fruit 
Medley for the Holidays! Give 
the gift of Winter Sunshine! 6 
Rio Ruby Red Gems. 4 Tiny 
tim Navels. 6 Mini Fuji Apples. 
Call NOW and SAVE 33% OFF. 
Pay just $19.99. FREE Shipping! 
Visit www.pittmandavis.com/
MN257 or call 1-855-338-
0587 to order item MXSP and 
mention code PNVH-N257 for 
savings!

ENJOY 100% guaranteed, 
delivered-to-the-door Oma-
ha Steaks! Get 4 FREE Pork 
Chops and 4 FREE CHICKEN 
BREASTS. Order The Omaha 
Steaks Classic - ONLY $129.99. 
Visit www.OmahaSteaks.com/
Dinner184 or call 1-877-701-
4335 & use code 66762ENW.

ORANGE SPECTACULAR GIFT 
BOX for the Holidays: Send 4 
navel oranges, 4 tangerines, 4 
petite navel oranges, chocolate 
chip cookies & foil-wrapped 
chocolates! SAVE 43%! Just 
$19.99 (plus s/h). Visit www.
halegroves.com/me201 or 
call 844-441-0967 to order 
item 442X (mention code HN-
VH-E201 for savings).

Electronics
AT&T TV - The Best of Live & 
On-Demand On All Your Favor-
ite Screens. CHOICE Package, 
$64.99/mo. plus taxes for 12 
months. Premium Channels 
at No Charge for One Year! 
Anytime, anywhere. Some 
restrictions apply. W/ 24-mo. 
agmt TV price higher in 2nd 
year. Regional Sports Fee up 
to $8.49/mo is extra & applies. 
Call IVS, 1-844-940-3503.

Firearms   
SMALL Gun Collection for sale: 
6.5 creed moor, 25-06, 30-06, 
.357. All rifles are scoped and in 
great condition. Will sell with or 
w/o scopes. Call for particulars 
and prices. 208-451-0288.

*CASH FOR GUNS *
We Buy ALL Firearms
We Come To YOU!
We Pay CASH To YOU!
Licensed Dealer Makes It
Legal-Ethical-Easy
Estate Collections
From small to Large
208-476-7871
keith@OCGunsNGear.com
OCGunsNGear.com

Furniture
FREE: Downsizing, no longer 
need queen size sofa hideabed 
and extra queen foam mattress. 
No smoke, no stains, no Covid. 
See at 414 S Florence St., Gran-
geville.

HUTCH, 2 pc. w/glass doors, 
linen drawer & 2 dr. storage, 
$350. 42” rd glasstop dining 
table, $100; Tall teak storage 
cabinet, $300. 208-451-6615.

WE’LL MEET OR BEAT any 
competitor’s pricing, and have 
since 1945. Lindsley’s Home  
Furnishings, Grangeville. La-Z-
Boy and Ashley furniture. GE, 
Whirlpool, Kitchenaide, May-
tag appliances. Mohawk, Shaw, 
Mannington flooring. Serta 
mattresses. Design service at 
lindsleyshomefurnishings.com. 
1-800-215-5964/208-983-1040.

Heating & Air 
Conditioning

THE STOVE THAT JACK BUILT
High quality, efficient, durable. 
This locally built stove will keep 
you warm for generations. Call  
208-476-9047.

Health & Fitness
Having men’s health issues? 
Thanks to science, ED can be 
optional. Try HIMS. Connect 
with a medical professional 
online. If approved, your pre-
scribed medication is delivered 
to your door. FREE online visit: 
www.himsnow.com/pacific

Miscellaneous

JVC TV, 43” screen, asking 
$75.00. Call/text 208-739-3416.

BUYING GOLD & SILVER
Jewelry Estates, Gold, Silver,
Platinum, Scrap & Dental.
Good Old Watches, Costume
Jewelry in bulk.
      Mtn. Gem Studio,
       140 W. Main St., 
        Grangeville,
      208-983-3962.

USED BOOK SALE
Grangeville Centennial Library 
ongoing discard book sale. Do-
nations appreciated. Library 
hrs: Mon-Fri. 10-6 p.m.

FIRE STARTERS
Newspaper bundles available 
at the Free Press Office. $2.00 
each. 900 W. Main St. , Gran-
geville.

RAW HONEY: Gallons- $50; 
5 gallons - $225; 1/2 gal. $35; 
Quarts $20; Pints $10 . Also 
Beeswax, $8 a pound. Call 208-
926-7301.

BRAND NEW 1” horizontal mini 
blinds, off white color, inside 
mount, 91”W x 38” L. Cost $120, 
asking $80. Call 208-739-3416.

BUYING ANTLERS
DEER   ELK   MOOSE
    BEST PRICES
    208-983-4183

FIRE STARTERS:
Newspaper Bundles available 
at the Free Press Office. $2.00 
each. 900 West Main St., Gran-
geville.

DIRECTV - Every live football 
game, every Sunday - any-
where - on your favorite de-
vice. Restrictions apply. Call 
IVS: 1-855-780-9289.

IDAHO COUNTY SOLAR.
Bob Klecha 208-451-5252 Solar 
Wind Hydro Batteries.

Miscellaneous Wanted

WANTED TO BUY
used furniture, appliances, 
guns, tools, TVs & much more! 
We buy one piece to whole 
estates! B&B Bargain, 104 E 
South St., Grangeville. 208-
983-0381.

**BUYING ANTLERS**
Top $ paid on ELK & DEER 
antlers.
Call Josh for “fair & honest” 
grading and pricing! 208-
680-9259.

Hope Chests/Cedar Chests
Great for graduation, weddings, 
etc. Handmade—100% solid 
wood, 3 or 4 ft. long. Call Valor 
208-983-8272.

Tools
The Generac PWRcell, a solar 
plus battery storage system. 
SAVE money, Reduce your 
reliance on the grid, prepare 
for power outages & power 
your home. Full installation 
services available. $0 Down 
Financing Option. Request a 
FREE, no-obligation, quote to-
day. Call 1-844-651-0562.

Sporting Goods
GOLF CART for sale. Call for 
details 208-983-3630.

Dogs
Marie Cox Dog Grooming & 
Dog Boarding, Grangeville. 
(Boarding 7 days a/week) 
Grooming open 6 days a week. 
Monday-Friday 9 a.m. – 5 p.m. 
Saturdays 9-1. Call 208-661-
4788.

PAPER ROLL ENDS
available at The Shopper/Free 
Press Office  for $1.00 each. 
Multiple uses: Packing, School 
Projects, Bird Cages, etc. 900 
W. Main, Grangeville.

Farm Equipment 
& Supplies

SPILIT CEDAR POSTS. 
Call for pricing
208-451-0331.

Horses & Tack
FARRIER SERVICES.
Call or text 208-315-3844.

162



April 7, 2021 www.IdahoCountyFreePress.Com 3

Comment on proposed changes to commercial trucking limits 
on ID-13, ID-162 and US-12

MARCH 29 - APRIL 12
itd.idaho.gov/freight

YOUR  Safety YOUR  Mobility YOUR  Economic Opportunity

Missing your favorite 
local channels? 

Compare your bill and get a free gift!
Offer code: CHANGETOCOMPARE

Save on TV 
with DISH

CUSTOM 
SATELLITE
208-743-5105
customsat.com

Kindergarten 
Registration

Grangeville Elementary Middle School
April 21, 2021 by appointment

Registration paperwork must be completed prior to
receiving a scheduled appointment time!

Stop by GEMS to pick up
your registration packet today.

208-983-0400
400 S. Idaho Ave.
Grangeville, ID

Transportation Board Member 
representing North Central 
Idaho. “Staff are approaching this 
proposal with fresh eyes, and as 
before, comments received will 
influence the decision regarding 
reclassification of the routes.” 

The department is required to 
conduct an analysis and public 
hearing on all requests to operate 
129,000-pound loads on the state 
highway system before the Idaho 
Transportation Board makes a 
final decision. The board could 
make a decision as early as May.

How to comment
The application, analy-

sis by ITD and FAQs about 
129,000-pound loads are 
available at itd.idaho.gov/
freight. Comments are being 
sought until April 12 and can be 
submitted in the following ways: 

• via itd.idaho.gov/freight
• officeofthechief 

engineer@itd.idaho.gov
• PO Box 7129, Boise ID 

83707 to the attention of 
Scott Luekenga

• call 855-785-2499
Commenters can also call 

ITD Freight Program Manager 
Scott Luekenga at 208-334-
8057 with questions.

required by state law to report 
each case to CDRI.

Chief financial officer Betty 
Watson reported charges written 
off as bad debt and sent to collec-
tion were $45,873, or 2.3 percent 
of gross charges. Kootenai Health 
management services agreement 
fees were $20,070.

February’s statements includ-
ed $12,452 of expenses related to 
COVID-19.  As of Feb. 28, Syringa 
has utilized a total of $715,194 
of Provider Relief Funds with 
$538,653 spent on COVID-19 
related salaries and supplies. 
In addition, $421,138 has been 
spent on COVID-19 related cap-
ital items.

CEO Abner King reported that 

as of March 12, 87 of Syringa’s 
employees had received the 
COVID-19 vaccine. In all of 
Idaho County, 2,489 people 
have been vaccinated.

“Nationally, and statewide, 
and regionally, COVID-19 cases 
and hospitalizations have de-
clined within the last six weeks,” 
he added.

He also reported the hospi-
tal received a $105,641 dona-
tion from the estate of a former 
patient.

In additional news on re-
cruitment updates, King stat-
ed, “We will not be proceeding 
with our contractual negotia-
tions and employment with Dr. 
Lewis, general surgeon. We will 
continue with recruitment ef-
forts to get a full-time surgeon 
here as quickly as possible.”

Continued from 1

Continued from 1

HIGHWAYS: 

SYRINGA:87get vaccine
By Lorie Palmer

Idaho County Free Press

In an effort to answer pa-
trons’ concerns on the upcom-
ing levy, Mountain View School 
District 244 Superintendent 
Todd Fiske will hit the road with 
a variety of community meet-
ings starting this month.

“I plan to have less than an 
hour presentation and discuss 
topics such as why the dis-
trict needs a levy and what it 

supports, as 
well as answer 
q u e s t i o n s ,” 
Fiske said. He 
will also be 
presenting in-
formation to 
school staff in 
three to four 
meetings prior 
to the commu-

nity meetings.
MVSD will ask patrons to vote 

on a $3.1 million supplemental 
levy on May 18. This comes on 
the heels of a failed $3.9 million 
levy in 2020.

Upcoming meetings (sub-
ject to change if needed) are as 
follows:

∙April 15, Elk City, 5 p.m.
∙April 20, Kooskia, Clearwater 

Valley High School Library, 6 p.m.
∙April 21, Grangeville Senior 

Citizens Center, noon
∙April 22, Grangeville 

Elementary Middle School 
Community Room, 6 p.m.

∙April 27, Kooskia, Clearwater 
Valley Elementary School 
Library, 6 p.m.

∙April 29, Grangeville, Idaho 
County Community Outreach 
and Veterans Center, 6 p.m.

∙May 4, Grangeville High 
School Library, 6 p.m.

∙May 6, Grangeville, Mountain 
View School District Office, 6 
p.m.

MVSD community levy meetings on tap

Todd Fiske
MVSD 

Superintendent

bluefoxtheater.com
Blue Fox Theatre 208-983-1370

FRI-SAT-SUN 6:30PM APRIL 9-11
NO MATINEE

PG-13

HELD OVER!

By Gary Altman
Idaho County Free Press

GRANGEVILLE — Fifty 
petitioners packed in shoul-
der-to-shoulder last Tuesday, 
March 30, armed with 2,000 sig-
natures, demanding the Idaho 
County Commissioners imme-
diately declare Idaho County a 
“Second Amendment sanctuary.” 

Five scheduled speakers read 
statements aimed at commission 
reluctance to officially endorse 
the proclamation. Some speakers 
targeted Commission Chair Skip 
Brandt’s Feb. 24 opinion piece 
in the Idaho County Free Press, 
criticizing the proclamation as 
possibly useless, redundant, or 
legally dangerous.

Brandt, self-quarantined, 
joined the meeting by confer-
ence phone. Speakers praised 
cooperating counties, blast-
ed Biden anti-gun ploys and 
Governor Brad Little’s state shut-
down, then lobbed rhetorical fire 
at skeptics of sanctuary status. 
Commissioner Denis Duman 
opened proceedings with the 
Pledge of Allegiance and a prayer 
for wisdom, then welcomed the 
first of five speakers.

Retired veterinarian Phil 
Volkman, read the petition: “‘We 
the people of Idaho County here-
by petition the … Commissioners 
to declare Idaho County a 
Second Amendment sanctuary, 

with protections from outside 
governments that would infringe 
on these rights as described in 
the Constitution’ … We currently 
have over 2,000 signatures [and] 
15 cities and counties in Idaho 
who have passed sanctuary reso-
lutions. Idaho County is on a list 
of three that have rejected this 
status … Governor Little showed 
us last year he can shut down 
our freedoms with an emergen-
cy declaration on a question-
able pandemic to qualify for 
federal funds … Would he cave 
on gun rights for federal money 
threats?…”  

Speaker Jo Hardy read a let-
ter from military veteran John 
Whyte: “… I served my country 
for 30 years, supporting and de-
fending the Constitution and the 
Bill of Rights …  currently under 
attack … challenged at every lev-
el of government, especially with 
the current 9th Circuit Court … I 
believe our forefathers were men 
of vision who knew we needed a 
second amendment to preserve 
and protect our Constitution and 
the Bill of Rights …”

Speaker Mary Mangold reject-
ed Brandt’s published opinion, 
saying: “A …  member of our 
group … discovered a law, en-
acted in 2003 [by commission-
ers]: Ordinance Number 45 … 
passed in defiance of The Patriot 
Act [that] threatened to infringe 

constitutional rights … [45] 
reads: ‘… The Bill of Rights and 
the Constitution for these United 
States of America, which is the 
supreme law of the land, shall be 
upheld and enforced within the 
boundaries of Idaho County; re-
pugnant acts, ordinances, or reg-
ulations of government in clear 
contravention notwithstanding’ 
… Using its contents might have 
been a great strategy to calm 
fears ….”

Speaker Craig Seegel read 
Jesie Schubert’s message: “… 
I came from a small town in 
Oregon, a conservative com-
munity … [It] was taken over by 
people who had moved into the 
area and had more liberal ideas 
… Now you can’t recognize our 
little town. It’s been transformed 
into a politically correct version 
of the cancel culture….”

Speaker Jon Aronson said, 
“One night my 17-year-old 
[daughter] asked me why we 
need such an effort here in Idaho 
County if the Bill of Rights is sup-
posed to protect Constitutional 
rights … I reverted the question 
back to her: ‘Why do you think 
it’s important?’ After a pause, 

[she said], ‘Because I’m losing 
the fight and our rights’ …”

Sheriff Ulmer distributed cop-
ies of Ordinance 45, which he 
described as “a hidden gem …
reaffirming … we will support the 
whole Constitution ….”

Duman promised: “We will 
take what has been said un-
der consideration … we have a 
[pending] resolution …. affirm-
ing our support for Ordinance 
Number 45 .…”

“How does that answer 2,000 
signatures?” someone asked.

Volkman retorted that if 2,000 

signatures isn’t enough, “We can 
get more.”

One challenger quoted 
Second Amendment language “… 
‘a well-regulated militia’: “… Are 
we ‘well-regulated’?”

Volkman was again recog-
nized: “… 2,000 people — so far — 
want this …. What they’ve signed 
is the sanctuary status. It’s not a 
new law; it’s not a new ordinance; 
it’s a declaration .…”

Final remarks left promised 
voter reprisal at the polls for 
commission inaction. Duman 
announced: “Alright, folks, I 
know there’s a lot of comments, 
but we have to move on with the 
rest of our agenda ….” That in-
cluded a  support letter for Hells 
Canyon Recreation and a post-
poned executive session with 
State Insurance  Representative 
Alicia Ray.

Final remarks promise voter reprisal at polls

Fifty confront commission for immediate 2A sanctuary proclamation

Bees ‘buzzy’ at work

CONTRIBUTED PHOTO / Denton L. Thaves
Spring has sprung on the Camas Prairie, as shown with 
this single flower with a bumble bee gathering nectar, 
pictured on Wednesday, March 31, in Grangeville.

FREE PRESS / Lorie Palmer
These ladies were enjoying a walk in the sunshine on 
Kooskia’s Main Street recently.

Walkin’ In Sunshine

163



6 | Thursday, April 1, 2021 The Clearwater Progress ClearwaterProgress.com

Organizations
Kamiah Senior 
Mealsite Menu

Menu for April 2nd
Citrus Salmon, Brown Rice, Cole-
slaw, Fruit Cocktail

Menu for April 5th
Chicken Pot Pie, Vegetable Sal-
ad, Mandarin Oranges

Menu for April 7th
German Sausage, Sauerkraut, 
Peas, Peaches, Whole Wheat Roll

Card Parties
PINOCHLE
3/23/2021

1. MaryAnn Rawson
2. Irene Agee
3. Bob Lauer
4. Joe Kolar
300 Pinochle
Ladies: MaryAnn Rawson
Men: Bob Lauer
9’s: Irene Agee

3/25/2021
1. MaryAnn Rawson
2. Ken Mifflin

3. Irene Agee
4. Joe Kolar
300 Pinochle
Ladies: MaryAnn Rawson

Men: Ken Mifflin
9’s: Irene Agee

3/27/2021
1. Bob Lauer
2. Shirley Yates
3. Joe Kolar

4. MaryAnn Rawson
300 Pinochle
Ladies: MaryAnn Rawson
Men: Joe Kolar
Next Party Dates: 4/1 and 4/3 @ 
6:30 p.m. 4/6 @ 1 p.m.

Comment on proposed changes to commercial trucking limits 
on ID-13, ID-162 and US-12

MARCH 29 - APRIL 12
itd.idaho.gov/freight

YOUR  Safety YOUR  Mobility YOUR  Economic Opportunity

The GreaT OuTdOOrs

Contributed Photo/Pamela Yost
 

“Looking out my back door.”
Sponsored by 

Cottonwood Livestock Auction

For Marketing Information, Call:
Dennis Rowland, (208) 962-3284 or (208) 983-7400 cell

Brent Rowland, (208) 451-4415
For more info, visit www.cottonwoodlivestock.com

Sales the 2nd and 4th Friday of the month

Back to Grass Feeder Sale- 
April 9th

Annual Farm & Livestock Equipment 
Consignment Auction- 
Saturday, June 5th

valley. 

March 2, 1961 
Clearwater Progress

City Basketball 
Tournament 
Termed Suc-

cess
The residents of Kamiah 

are very proud of their new 
gymnasium and the fact 
that a tournament can be 
held here. The crowds were 
well-behaved and good 
sports cheering on both 
teams of any given match 
and agreeing with the 

referees in almost all cases. 
The unity of the Kooskia 
and Stites students with the 
building of the new school 
in that area really shows 
in their cheer section this 
year.  

Now — The original 
1961 gym at the high school 
is still in use. A second 
gym was added when the 
Kamiah Middle School was 
built.  Kooskia and Stites 
students still attend the 
same Clearwater Valley 
School that was new in 
1961.

March 18, 1981 
Clearwater Progress

Progress Gives 
Survey Results 

for Kooskia
The Clearwater progress 

“Sound off ” survey asked 
Kooskia city and rural res-
idents 25 questions about 
life in Kooskia. The answer 
to a few of those questions:

What do you like best 
about living here? A tie be-
tween good friendly people 
and outdoor recreation 
climate. Other responses 
were- small towns, less 
crime, fewer restrictions. 

What is your biggest 
gripe? 30 percent had no 
gripe, others were roads, 
lack of community and area 
pride, hippies moving in, 
out-of-staters moving in 
and trying to change the 

lifestyle “and the way we 
are used to doing things.”

Now — Although we ha-
ven’t done a recent survey, 
still hearing a lot of com-
plaints about people moving 
in trying to change things. 
Also hearing from some 
people moving here due to 
fewer restrictions. 

March 7, 2001 
Clearwater Progress

Fire Consumes 
historic Lochsa 

Lodge
The main building of 

the historic Lochsa Lodge, 
located at Powell near the 
Idaho-Montana border 
was destroyed by fire on 
Thursday morning, Feb. 
28. The facility is located 
on national forest land 
and is operated under 
a special use permit by 
owners Donald and Gerry 
Denton. Firefighters 
were able to prevent the 
blaze from spreading 
to cabins and the store. 
Investigators believe 
the fire started in the 
chimney. 

Now — The original 
lodge was built in 1929 by 
Andrew Erickson. After 
the 2001 fire the lodge was 
rebuilt and opened in May 
2002. The lodge, cabins and 
gas station continue to oper-
ate and sold to new owners 
in January 2021.

Things 
Change
continued from page 2

Kamiah Museum News
Home Store booklets available; 

winner of history question
On Monday, March 29, 

members gathered in the 
museum to make decisions 
about the inventory of our 
storage shed and to sign up 
for times to work on the 
task.

We will be a part of the 
citywide yard sale day this 
year. We will be available to 
sell our books, some baked 
goods, take orders for the 
2022 Historical Community 
Calendar and, possibly, a 
yard sale for the museum. 
More on this next week.

Last week our question 
was: “During the Civil 

War, Abraham Lincoln 
offered something to Union 
recruits which was referred 
to as Greenback Patriotism 
which was what?” It was 
$100 bonuses for each 
man who volunteered to 
fight for the Union. A man 
received nothing if called 
by the government to fight.   
Congratulations to Elizabeth 
Bogel, who answered the 
question, received a copy 
of the Home Store booklet, 
which has recipes and ads in 
it, plus a jar of huckleberry 
jam.

The Home Store sold 

groceries, clothing and dry 
goods; it was operated by 
Sassaman and Ellenson. The 
booklet was loaned to us by 
Shelley Kuther, of the Ilo-
Volmer Historical Society, to 
copy and sell for the benefit 
of the Kamiah Museum.    

Shelley’s grandparents 
lived in Kamiah and owned a 
Shell gas station for sev-
eral years before moving 
to Craigmont. She shares 
pictures and other items with 
us from time to time that 
her grandparents kept and 
passed on to her. We appreci-
ate those who care to share!

Tahoe Hillbillies 
Swap Tack

Progress / Lorie Palmer
Members and leaders of the Tahoe Hillbillies 4-H Club 
take part in the Prairie Posse 4-H Cub tack swap and sale 
March 13 at the Cottonwood Community Hall.

Playing with Problems

KMS teacher Taylie Hopkins dons a wig in the spring play.

“Complaint Depart-
ment and Lemonade,” 
the Kamiah Characters 
drama club spring 
play, was performed 
March 23 and 25. 
Three students  (Ken-
nedy Farris, Bethany 
Matteson and Hayden 
Bremer) and two 
teachers/directors 
(Jody Dow and Taylie 
Hopkins) play differ-
ent roles behind the 
desk at the Complaint 
Department. Through 
a series of scenarios 
they learn that other 
peoples’ problems can 
be easier to solve than 
our own.

Progress / Norma Staaf
Bethany Matteson behind the desk at the complaint department.

Kennedy Farris is puzzled by 
the response to her complaint.

Hayden Bremer suggests a solution to Bethany Matteson’s complaint.

164



ClearwaterProgress.com The Clearwater Progress Thursday, April 8, 2021 | 3

requested the use of 
Old Highway 7 from its 
intersections with ID 162 
and U.S. Highway 95. 
This route is not being 
evaluated by ITD as it 
is under the jurisdic-
tion of the Greencreek, 
Union Independent  and 
Grangeville highway 
districts. 

These highways are 
currently rated for com-
mercial loads weighing 
up to 105,500 pounds. 
Analysis of the state routes 
by ITD subject matter 
experts found that allow-
ing heavier loads on the 
specified highways could 
be accommodated without 
affecting safety or pave-
ment conditions.

A similar application 
was filed by Arlo Lott of 
Montana in 2015, but 
included all of ID 13 from 
Kooskia to Grangeville, 

according to ITD. After 
engineering analysis 
deemed the proposal 
would not negatively 
affect safety or pavement 
conditions, a public hear-
ing was held and received 
significant public com-
ment. The applicant later 
withdrew his request.

“While similar to an 
earlier application, the 
latest request excludes 
much of ID 13, which was 
the most controversial 
segment,” said Jan Vassar, 
the Idaho Transportation 
Board Member represent-
ing North Central Idaho. 
“Staff are approaching this 
proposal with fresh eyes, 
and as before, comments 
received will influence the 
decision regarding reclas-
sification of the routes.” 

The department is 
required to conduct 
an analysis and public 
hearing on all requests to 
operate 129,000-pound 
loads on the state highway 
system before the Idaho 
Transportation Board 
makes a final decision. 
The board could make a 
decision as early as May.

Lynn Wentz, DDS

Gentle Family Dentistry

Open Monday - Friday 8am-5pm

Friendly,  
Reliable, Experienced 

& Affordable

(208) 476-4315
Call for an Appointment

1265 Riverside Avenue • Orofino ID

Financing Available

Most Dental 
Insurance Accepted

Comment on proposed changes to commercial trucking limits 
on ID-13, ID-162 and US-12

MARCH 29 - APRIL 12
itd.idaho.gov/freight

YOUR  Safety YOUR  Mobility YOUR  Economic Opportunity

�������������������������������������������������������������
�������������
����
����������������	������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������	��������������������
��������������������

How to comment
The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 

129,000-pound loads are available at itd.idaho.gov/
freight. Comments are being sought until April 12 and 
can be submitted in the following ways: 

• via itd.idaho.gov/freight
• officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov
• PO Box 7129, Boise, Idaho 83707 to the attention 

of Scott Luekenga
• call 855-785-2499
Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program 

Manager Scott Luekenga at 208-334-8057 with 
questions.

Proposal: 
Comment 
sought
continued from page 1

Correction: Quilt of Valor
In last week’s Progress, a few mistakes were 

made in the front page story on a Quilt of Valor 
recipient.

The quilt recipient should have been named as 
Robert Lee Burdock, who served as 2nd Class in the 
U.S. Navy. In one of the photos, the person hugging 
Robert should have been listed as Julia Bates.

The Progress apologizes for the errors.

Progress 
moving to paid 
subscriptions 

starting April 15

Final remarks promise voter reprisal at polls

Fifty confront commission 
for immediate 2A 

sanctuary proclamation
By Gary Altman

The Clearwater Progress

GRANGEVILLE — 
Fifty petitioners packed 
in shoulder-to-shoulder 
last Tuesday, March 
30, armed with 2,000 
signatures, demand-
ing the Idaho County 
Commissioners imme-
diately declare Idaho 
County a “Second 
Amendment sanctuary.” 

Five scheduled speak-
ers read statements aimed 
at commission reluc-
tance to officially en-
dorse the proclamation. 
Some speakers targeted 
Commission Chair Skip 
Brandt’s Feb. 24 opinion 
piece in the Idaho County 
Free Press, criticizing the 
proclamation as possibly 
useless, redundant, or 
legally dangerous.

Brandt, self-quaran-
tined, joined the meeting 
by conference phone. 
Speakers praised coop-
erating counties, blasted 
Biden anti-gun ploys and 
Governor Brad Little’s 
state shutdown, then 
lobbed rhetorical fire 
at skeptics of sanctuary 
status. Commissioner 
Denis Duman opened 
proceedings with the 
Pledge of Allegiance and 
a prayer for wisdom, then 
welcomed the first of five 
speakers.

Retired veterinari-
an Phil Volkman, read 
the petition: “‘We the 
people of Idaho County 

hereby petition the … 
Commissioners to declare 
Idaho County a Second 
Amendment sanctuary, 
with protections from 
outside governments that 
would infringe on these 
rights as described in 
the Constitution’ … We 
currently have over 2,000 
signatures [and] 15 cities 
and counties in Idaho who 
have passed sanctuary 
resolutions. Idaho County 
is on a list of three that 
have rejected this status … 
Governor Little showed us 
last year he can shut down 
our freedoms with an 
emergency declaration on 
a questionable pandemic 
to qualify for federal funds 
… Would he cave on gun 
rights for federal money 
threats?…”  

Speaker Jo Hardy read 
a letter from military 
veteran John Whyte: “… 
I served my country for 
30 years, supporting and 
defending the Constitution 
and the Bill of Rights …  
currently under attack … 
challenged at every level 
of government, especial-
ly with the current 9th 
Circuit Court … I believe 
our forefathers were men 
of vision who knew we 
needed a second amend-
ment to preserve and 
protect our Constitution 
and the Bill of Rights …”

Speaker Mary Mangold 
rejected Brandt’s published 
opinion, saying: “A …  
member of our group … 
discovered a law, enacted 

in 2003 [by commission-
ers]: Ordinance Number 
45 … passed in defiance 
of The Patriot Act [that] 
threatened to infringe con-
stitutional rights … [45] 
reads: ‘… The Bill of Rights 
and the Constitution for 
these United States of 
America, which is the 
supreme law of the land, 
shall be upheld and en-
forced within the bound-
aries of Idaho County; re-
pugnant acts, ordinances, 
or regulations of govern-
ment in clear contraven-
tion notwithstanding’ … 
Using its contents might 
have been a great strategy 
to calm fears ….”

Speaker Craig Seegel 
read Jesie Schubert’s 
message: “… I came from 
a small town in Oregon, 
a conservative commu-
nity … [It] was taken 
over by people who had 
moved into the area and 
had more liberal ideas … 
Now you can’t recognize 
our little town. It’s been 
transformed into a politi-
cally correct version of the 
cancel culture….”

Speaker Jon Aronson 
said, “One night my 
17-year-old [daughter] 
asked me why we need 
such an effort here in 
Idaho County if the Bill of 
Rights is supposed to pro-
tect Constitutional rights 
… I reverted the question 
back to her: ‘Why do you 
think it’s important?’ 
After a pause, [she said], 
‘Because I’m losing the 

fight and our rights’ …”
Sheriff Ulmer distribut-

ed copies of Ordinance 45, 
which he described as “a 
hidden gem …reaffirming 
… we will support the 
whole Constitution ….”

Duman promised: “We 
will take what has been 
said under consideration 
… we have a [pending] 
resolution …. affirming 
our support for Ordinance 
Number 45 .…”

“How does that answer 
2,000 signatures?” some-
one asked.

Volkman retorted that 
if 2,000 signatures isn’t 
enough, “We can get 
more.”

One challenger quot-
ed Second Amendment 
language “… ‘a well-regu-
lated militia’: “… Are we 
‘well-regulated’?”

Volkman was again rec-
ognized: “… 2,000 people 
— so far — want this …. 
What they’ve signed is the 
sanctuary status. It’s not 
a new law; it’s not a new 
ordinance; it’s a declara-
tion .…”

Final remarks left prom-
ised voter reprisal at the 
polls for commission inac-
tion. Duman announced: 
“Alright, folks, I know 
there’s a lot of comments, 
but we have to move 
on with the rest of our 
agenda ….” That included 
a  support letter for Hells 
Canyon Recreation and a 
postponed executive ses-
sion with State Insurance  
Representative Alicia Ray.

The Clearwater Progress 
is moving to a paid sub-
scription model starting 
with next Thursday’s April 
15th edition.

For readers in Kamiah, 
Kooskia and Stites who 
receive the weekly newspa-
per in their mailboxes free 
each week, to continue re-
ceiving the Progress, they 
will need to subscribe, 
either by calling the office, 
208-935-0838, or go online 
at www.clearwaterprog-
ress.com.

Driving this, Progress 
publisher, Sarah Klement, 
explained it partly due to 
ever-rising postal rates, as 
well as from economic im-
pacts that many businesses 
have been hit with as a 
result of the COVID-19 

pandemic. Another part 
of the change is to pro-
vide pricing consistency 
for its readers.

“It’s kind of an odd 
model right now,” 
Klement said. “We have 
people getting it for free 
and people buying it for 
75 cents at the stands. 
With this move, we’re 
just looking to, one, make 
sure we can sustain the 
local community news-
paper, and, two, provide a 
model that’s consistent.”

“We would love to 
have you as a subscriber,” 
Klement continued. “It’s 
only $33 a year to keep 
your local paper support-
ed and bringing you the 
news of your communi-
ties each week.”

Stay up to date on the go at: progress@clearwaterprogress.com
165



 

Comment period open for proposed changes to commercial trucking limits on
some Idaho County highways
Posted on March 29, 2021 by Megan Jahns

The Idaho Transportation Department is hosting a virtual public hearing to collect comments on a proposal to

reclassify several highways in Idaho County as legal for carrying heavier loads. If approved, these highways could

support commercial loads weighing up to 129,000 pounds.

KBC Trucking of Kooskia submitted an application to ITD earlier this month requesting the reclassification of the

following routes to allow for more efficient transport of logs and lumber to Boise Valley:

Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia

US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah

Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162 and US-95. This route is

not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway District, Union Independent

Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.

These highways are currently rated for commercial loads weighing up to 105,500 pounds. Analysis of the state routes

by ITD subject matter experts found that allowing heavier loads on the specified highways could be accommodated

without affecting safety or pavement conditions.
166

https://itd.idaho.gov/news/comment-period-open-for-proposed-changes-to-commercial-trucking-limits-on-some-idaho-county-highways/
https://itd.idaho.gov/author/msausser/


Edit

A similar application was filed by Arlo Lott of Montana in 2015 but included all of ID-13 from Kooskia to Grangeville.

After engineering analysis deemed the proposal would not negatively affect safety or pavement conditions, a public

hearing was held and received significant public comment. The applicant later withdrew his request.

“While similar to an earlier application, the latest request excludes much of ID-13, which was the most controversial

segment,” said Jan Vassar, the Idaho Transportation Board Member representing North Central Idaho. “Staff are

approaching this proposal with fresh eyes, and as before, comments received will influence the decision regarding

reclassification of the routes.”

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at itd.idaho.gov/freight.

Comments are being sought until April 12 and can be submitted in the following ways:

via idaho.gov/freight

by emailing officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov

mailed to PO Box 7129, Boise, Idaho 83707 to the attention of Scott Luekenga

recorded by calling (855) 785-2499

Commenters can also call ITD Freight Program Manager Scott Luekenga at (208) 334-8057 with questions.

The department is required to conduct an analysis and public hearing on all requests to operate 129,000-pound loads

on the state highway system before the Idaho Transportation Board makes a final decision. The board could make a

decision as early as May.

 

RELATED POSTS

CONNECT TO DISCONNECT DURING DISTRACTED DRIVING AWARENESS MONTH

BRIDGE INSPECTION TO TAKE PLACE NEXT WEEK ON INTERSTATE 84 NEAR JEROME

ROCK CREEK BRIDGE WORK BENEFITING WILDLIFE AND ECONOMY WINS ACEC ENGINEERING
AWARD

ROCKSLIDE ON ID-55 NEAR SMITHS FERRY

COMMENT PERIOD OPEN FOR PROPOSED CHANGES TO COMMERCIAL TRUCKING LIMITS ON
SOME IDAHO COUNTY HIGHWAYS

FEATURED  SAFETY

FEATURED  SOUTH-CENTRAL

FEATURED  INSIDE ITD  SOUTH-CENTRAL

ADVISORY  FEATURED  SOUTHWEST

FEATURED  NORTH-CENTRAL

167

https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-admin/post.php?post=33340&action=edit
https://itd.idaho.gov/freight/
https://itd.idaho.gov/freight/
mailto:officeofthechiefengineer@itd.idaho.gov
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/connect-to-disconnect-during-distracted-driving-awareness-month/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/bridge-inspection-to-take-place-next-week-on-interstate-84-near-jerome/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/rock-creek-bridge-work-benefiting-wildlife-and-economy-wins-acec-engineering-award/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/rockslide-on-id-55-near-smiths-ferry/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/comment-period-open-for-proposed-changes-to-commercial-trucking-limits-on-some-idaho-county-highways/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/safety/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-4/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/inside-itd/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-4/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/advisory/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-3/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-2/


168



169



170



129,000 Pound Route 
Public Comments 
Case# 202006ID6 

 
 

E-MAILS 
 
Name:   Jerry Litchfield 
Phone Number:  208-451-0987 
E-mail:  Jerpeg@startmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/27/2021 
 
Please do not raise the load limits on highway 13. If you were to drive 13 you would see that this is 
already one of the worst maintained highways in the state and with no help coming from the fed raising 
the load limits would make this highway a four wheel drive route for sure. Also the section along the 
Southfork is too narrow for more big truck traffic. 
 
Jerry Litchfield 
591 Pleasant Valley Rd 
Clearwater, ID 83552 
 
(208) 451-0987 
jerpeg@startmail.com 
 
Name:   Glen Scott Swearingen & Pamela S. Swearingen 
Phone Number:    Provided 
E-mail:  gscott.swearingen@hughes.net 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/29/2021 
 
Mr. Luekenga, 
 
We are in favor of the proposals to reclassify sections of ID 13, ID 162, and US 12 for loads up to 129,000 
lbs.  As long as companies pay the tax and the road is maintained to current standards with those 
revenues we believe it will be a win for everybody.  Economically, the Clearwater Valley depends heavily 
on KBC trucking.  We do want to be clear that we are not and never have been associated with KBC.  We 
have never been commercial owners or operators, however, we are educated about safely sharing the 
roads with large truck-tractors and trailers. 
 
The roads primary purpose is commerce.  Let’s use them. 
 
Name:   Daryl Kinzer 
Phone Number:    Provided 
E-mail:  dardonkinzer@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/29/2021 
 
If the weight of loads increase, the breaking power & distance decreases if the speed is the same.   
Hwy 162 already has issues from Red Rock rd. to Winona that have been there since 162 was rebuilt.  
 
Plus if the state allows that route, the loads would then continue on Hwy Districts roads that have less 
money for repairs.  
 
I drive that route a lot and I'm not in favor of the 129,000 # loads 
Daryl Kinzer 

171



Name:   Tim E. Christopherson 
Phone Number:    Provided 
E-mail:  dabco@connectwireless.us 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/30/2021 
 
Kooskia down Highway 12 to Kamiah, through Kamiah, then up Highway 162? Not sure if the county road 
districts will let this happen. My concern is the grade, 80,000 lbs log trucks beat 162 up a few years back. 
The ITD fixed the shoulder damage. But my fear is that it will happen again. Also with the increased truck 
traffic with very limited passing around a longer truck. Then there is winter, log trucks will choose 162 
when its snow covered.  
 
In my opinion these items need to be addressed ...before 129000 trucks run on this route. 
 
Thank you for your time, 
Tim E. Christopherson 
 
Name:   Teresa Seloske 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  tseloske@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/29/2021 
 
I just read an article about a company seeking to have large loads on our local roads.  I do NOT support 
large loaded vehicles anywhere on Highway 7.  Our highway dept. doesn't have the money to properly 
maintain this small highway as it is, and putting large loaded vehicles on it would destroy the highway.    
 
Teresa Seloske 
 
Name:   Mrs. Abigail Haight 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  haight@johnbosco.org 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/30/2021 
 
To whom it may concern,   
 
Given the recent mill closures in the city of Kamiah (Blue North) the log industry as well as the town's 
economy was dealt a large blow. As a citizen of Kamiah, and the great state of Idaho, I am entirely in 
favor of reclassifying the highways to allow log trucks to travel them, and continue commerce, logging and 
other industries in our area. I am all in favor of supporting our hard-working log truck drivers, loggers, and 
all invested in renewable agriculture in this great state. Please note that my husband is a large diesel 
mechanic, who works on logging equipment, log trucks, farming and agriculture equipment, etc. and the 
trickledown effect applies largely to us, as it does other people invested in the Kamiah/Kooskia area who 
are largely affected by the logging industry. Please know that an investment in the roads, and log truck 
industry is also an investment in the Clearwater Region.  
 
Thank you for reaching out and asking for input on this proposal. It is my great hope that many people will 
reach back to you with positive influences and acceptance.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Mrs. Abigail Haight,  
Teacher, Ranch wife, Kamiah resident, and devoted Idahoan. 
 

172



Name:   Jim McIver 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  jdmcive@gmail.com 
Date:   3/30/2021 
 
I'm opposed to heavier loads on any Idaho highway because, they tear up the roads faster, are not as 
safe, and put truck drivers out of work.  
 
-Jim McIver 
Lewiston Id 
 
Name:   Edward Clark 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  eaclark2@outlook.com 
Date:   3/31/2021 
 
I am opposed to the KBC weight increase request for Highway 162.  The longer trucks going up Seven-
mile canyon will cause a hardship on local traffic. The trucks are too long to pass safely and with the 
slower speed going up the grade is a serious hazard. 
 
Name:   Lucky Brandt 
Phone Number: None Provided 
E-mail:  luckybrandt@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/4/2021 
 
Please approve the request of KBC Trucking to increase the weight limits in the Kooskia and Kamiah 
area. They are an important employer in this area. They have first class equipment and first class drivers. 
I believe the increase will have minimal additional wear on the highway and will allow them to be more 
efficient in hauling. Thanks 
 
Lucky Brandt 
4613 Highway 13 
Kooskia, ID 83539 
 
Name:   LaVerne Willey 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  idwilley1@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/5/2021 
 
Your proposal to increase trucking load limits on US 12, Idaho Highway 162 and Idaho Highway 13 is a 
VERY BAD idea! It will destroy the roads mentioned by excessive load weights.  Those roads aren’t 
designed to support heavy truck loads and increased numbers of heavy loads.   Those are narrow roads 
and it would make it more dangerous for other users to meet or pass these large truck loads.  It’s not a 
solid plan.  The only ones who would benefit are the truckers themselves by increasing their volume to 
the mills. 
 
Don’t do this.  Are you prepared to widen and repair those roads on a regular basis??  Those roads are 
already in poor condition due to additional traffic. 
 
Please pay attention to the local residents who will be the ones who travel on torn up roads and all those 
overweight loads. 
 
Thank you for allowing me to comment. 
 

173



LaVerne Willey 
4168 Highway 12 
Kamiah, Idaho 
 
Name:   Craig Roach 
Phone Number: None Provided 
E-mail:  craig_03@hotmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/5/2021 
 
I would like to give a comment about KBC trucking's proposal to haul 129,000 pound loads on the local 
highways near me. I do not believe this is a good idea and that it should not be approved by the Idaho 
Transportation Department.  
 
Yes, the trucks hauling these heavier loads have more axles and are better distributed but, they still only 
have one driver axle and when going up the grades and hills along this route will cause additional 
damage. Also, in several places this rout is proposed it goes along Highway District roads and those 
roads are not built to the capacity as the State Highways. These small Highway Districts do not have the 
funds or ability to maintain their roads nor should have to fix the damage caused by these trucks. Along 
with that, the State Highways in Idaho have been suffering enough already and I do not feel the taxpayers 
of Idaho and of these small Highway Districts should have to take on the burden of additional road costs 
just so the bottom line of KBC trucking (aka the owners of 3 mills) can be more profitable.  
 
Craig Roach 
 
Name:   Phillip Kelley 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  phillipakelley@icloud.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/5/2021 
 
Greetings, 
 
I am writing to comment on the Highway 12, 162 & 7 reclassification for heavier loads, as has been 
applied for by KBC trucking, to 129,000 lbs. 
 
I am IN FAVOR of such a reclassification. 
 
KBC is an outgrowth of local investments (CFI Lumbers) that have benefited this valley for 30+ years.  In 
these difficult times it is very important that business can maximize their ability to stay solvent and viable; 
carrying heavier loads in one of these ways to offset rising fuel and labor costs. 
 
Thank you for taking our comments on the subject. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Phillip Kelley 
 
  

174



Name:   Mayor Betty Heater / Mike Tornatore (Depty Clerk) 
Phone Number:  208-926-1486 
E-mail:  mtornatore@cityofkamiah.org 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/6/2021 
 
From Mayor Betty Heater, 
 
After spending time researching the details for KBC Trucking’s request for reclassification to increase 
weight loads for several highways there are several concerns. 
 

1. Incident safety reports related to existing 105,000lbs loads. 
2. Some Special Permits have already been issued and by granting permission for this request it will 

open the door for all other trucking companies to increase load weight to 129,000lbs. 
3. Drivers of vehicles that pull out in front of loaded trucks creating very dangerous situations. 
4. Trucks already have slow pulls up steep grades on highways will be negatively impacted by 

additional weight loads. 
5. Stopping distances for trucks with increased weight loads will be impacted causing a more 

dangerous driving condition. 
6. Braking due to increased weight loads will increase noise decibel levels substantially. 
7. Wear and tear on already deteriorating road conditions will have a huge impact for the highways. 
8. Hwy 162 and Old Hwy 7 are already receiving a great deal of wear and tear that will only be 

compounded by the increased weight loads. Many people also pull in and out of driveways and 
the increased weight loads will significantly impact the potential for dangerous safety conditions. 

9. The City of Kamiah will directly be impacted at the intersection of Hill and 4th Street. The current 
weight loads of 80,000lbs-105,000lbs already has deteriorated the road conditions and by 
allowing the weight to increase to 129,000lbs will certainly have a huge negative impact further 
deteriorating already poor road conditions. 

 
As Mayor for The City of Kamiah my first concern for everyone is safety, and it is also my position to 
protect quality of life and property values for those who might be impacted by this request by KBC 
Trucking to reclassify several highways. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mayor Betty Heater. 
 
Mike Tornatore, Deputy Clerk 
Phone 208-926-1486 
E-Mail: mtornatore@cityofkamiah.org 
 
Name:   Joshua Palken 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  vom357@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/6/2021 
 
I live in Elki City and travel to and from this area all the time - Kamiah to Kooskia to Grangeville etc.  
 
The big trucks here (especially logging trucks) are already out of control and no further expansion of use 
is reasonable. Sorry to say that some rude and aggressive truck drivers make them all look bad and there 
is little or no enforcement of safety rules anyway. Some drivers are ROAD BULLIES who laugh at the 
stuff they pull off - everyone sees it. 
 
Roads are narrow and many dangerous spots - plenty of bad weather too 

175

mailto:mtornatore@cityofkamiah.org


Roads are on constant need of repair which backs up traffic terribly - MORE weight and more repair is not 
good - add to safety issue and this request is easy - REJECTED. 
 
Thanks for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely 
Joshua Palken 
Elk City ID 
 
Name:   Frances Conklin 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  frances@dogbarkparkinn.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/6/2021 
 
I do not support raising the weight limit on the 3 roads in Idaho County to accommodate heavier log loads 
on ID-13, US–12 & ID-162.  These roads have narrow shoulders, many curves, frequent short sight 
distances & are often subject to hazards of erosion, icing, and drifting snow with little room for driver 
mishaps or errors all while traffic volume has increased in recent years without significant improvements 
to these roads. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Frances Conklin 
2421 Business Loop 95 
Cottonwood IDAHO 83522 
 
Name:   Hazel Eggers 
Phone Number:  None Provided 
E-mail:  loseth73@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/7/2021 
 
I strongly oppose the reclassification of Highway 13 to the ID-13/US-12 intersection outside of Kooskia, 
US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah and Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 
7. These roads were not built to handle the heavy loads. We have to protect the roads we have as there 
is not money for major repairs that will come up with heavy loads.  Thank you for the opportunity to 
comment. Hazel Eggers 
 
Name:   Craig Jones 
Phone Number:   None Provided 
E-mail:  carnes3121955@icloud.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/8/2021 
 
Definitely no!!! Road r already pot holed and messed up enough, if the trucking companies have 2 pay 2 
repave and fix roads than fine. Otherwise he’ll no!! 
 
  

176



Name:   Patricia Goetz 
Phone Number:   208-816-0045 
E-mail:  nipntuckstede@hotmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/9/2021 
 
To: Office of the Chief Engineer 
 
As an individual who drives Highway 162, I do not believe it is feasible or safe to have such heavy, long 
loads on Highway 162. Several miles of the highway is confined in the bottom of a narrow canyon and 
has a steep, winding road grade. There are no passing lanes for lighter traffic which is already 
dangerously held up by heavy loads unable to maintain reasonable speeds up or down the grade. 
 
I realize KBC’s alternative is utilizing US Highway 12 to Arrow Bridge, but I hope you take into 
consideration Highway 162’s inherent geographical inadequacies, physical limitations, and already heavy 
traffic patterns and don't issue this special permit. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Patricia Goetz 
PO Box 1025 
Kamiah ID 83536 
208-816-0045  
 
Name:   Dr. John Conca 
Phone Number:   
E-mail:  drjbc7@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/10/2021 
 
I am submitting my comment on the Proposal of 129,000 pound loads on Hwys 13 & 12 ID162, Old Hwy 7 
and US95.  
 
After reading the detailed article in our local paper "The Clearwater Progress" of April 8, 2021, I discussed 
this with my household and we do not want this proposal to go through, as is, for the following reasons.  
It seems that some of these roads are rated only for 105,500 pound loads. The additional 10-11 tons 
would have a significant impact on the road wear. A 20% increase in load also calls into question the 
safety of motion dynamics of a 20% heavier load around some of the corners, especially on ID 162, even 
in dry conditions.  
 
I am very concerned with the Proposal's impact on the infrastructure of the local roads. What is the wear 
impact on a lower rated road when adding 10-12 tons per truck? The ITD's road rating, as described, is 
suspect also; how can a road be rated for 105,500 pounds and expect to hold up to punishment of 20% 
heavier loads? You can bet, if this proposal is passed, these increased loads will become routine. 
Theoretically, at least, the 20% higher loads will wear out the road surface and road bed at a rate at least 
20% faster. Drivers of regular cars and pick-up trucks will suffer the financial strain of worn shocks, flats 
and probably higher taxes at the gas pump for road repairs and infrastructure upgrades.  
 
One possible alternative to this proposal is for the Timber and Lumber companies to hire more truckers, 
thus keeping the individual loads within the 105,500 pound rating and moving more materials safely. 
Please include our comments as a "No thanks!" on this increased payload proposal.  
 
Regards, 
John Conca 
Kamiah 
 

177



Name:  Jon Haupt    
Phone Number:  Not Provided 
E-mail:  hauptam@hotmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/10/2021 
 
Hi, my name is Jon Haupt.   I live east of Kamiah about 0.5 mile from Highway 12.  I am against 
truckloads of up to 129,000 lbs being allowed on Highway 12.  I have observed overloaded log trucks 
swaying from side to side while driving Highway 12, fortunately the trucks did not overturn and cause an 
accident.  Overloaded trucks driving around sharp corners on Highway 12 are a hazard to all vehicles, 
especially vehicles driving in the opposite direction.   
 
Sincerely. 
 
Jon Haupt 
P.O. Box 1383  
Kamiah, ID 83536 
 
Name:  Paul Hespen  
Phone Number:   
E-mail:  pwhespen@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/11/2021 
 
DEAR SIRS:  
 I would like to see this request denied to allow for this company to carry the commercial loads of 129K on 
our local highways. I have had encounters with their trucks traveling on other local roads that are posted 
with length limits, such as Lukes gulch road between Stites and Grangeville at 4am. Signs are posted 
with load length of 40' and was almost ran off the road by one of their lumber trucks. I understand they 
want to be safe but the over length trucks definitely cause hazards on our local roads. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Paul Hespen 
 
Name:  Don Gilbert  
Phone Number:  206-713-4064 
E-mail:  789gibby@gmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/11/2021 
 
In the past I have seen projects that seemed like a good idea and turned into a mess over time because 
there was no provision for funding future maintenance. 
 
Although US-12 between Kamiah and Orofino is not under consideration, it is an example of poor 
maintenance.  I spend too much time trying to look for and avoid potholes and it is a driving distraction. 
 
I am concerned that increasing the load limits to reduce KBC's costs on the subject highways will result in 
road damage. 
 
I am not in favor of the increase. 
 
Don Gilbert 
789Gibby@Gmail.com 
206.713.4064 
 

178



Name:  Bonnie Schonefeld Alan Schonefeld 
Phone Number:  208-926-0921 
E-mail:  lochsa2@gmal.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/13/2021 
 
This email is in response to your request for comments on proposed 129k truck routes in N. Central 
Idaho.  
 
None of these roads should be approved for 129k loads. A similar truck route was proposed in 2015 and 
was denied, in part due to public comment against approval. Nothing much has changed in the last six 
years. The roads are narrow and pullouts, passing lanes, and turn lanes are almost nonexistent. U.S 
Highway 12, while the largest road in the proposal is still only 2 lanes wide with no passing lanes.  
According to IDT’s inspections, sections of all the routes being requested are in fair to poor condition.  
 
As residents of Idaho County we encounter commercial vehicles on a daily basis. We also encounter a lot 
of rough pavement, potholes, no shoulders, rolling rocks, down trees and animals in the road. The longer 
and heavier the truck the harder it is for passenger vehicles to navigate our inherent road and weather 
conditions. 
 
Please keep the current road restrictions in place and do not increase them to 129K. 
 
Sincerely, 
Bonnie Schonefeld  
Alan Schonefeld  
889 Big Cedar Rd 
Kooskia, ID 83539 
208-926-0921 
lochsa2@gmal.com 
 
Name:  Falisa Wolfe 
Phone Number: Not Provided 
E-mail:  wolfepac2@oakleyone.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/24/2021 
 
Please do not approve the 129,000-pound loads on our roads. 
 
It would be incredibly costly to individual drivers and the county/state 
It would worsen the already dangerous safety factor for big rigs and other drivers 
KBC Trucking is only looking out for their pocket book- not public safety 
 
Thanks 
Falisa 
 
 
Name:  Darlene Malone 
Phone Number:  Not Provided 
E-mail:  bible4love777@hotmail.com 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/24/2021 
 
I am emailing you to request that you vote no on allowing these trucks weighing 129,000 pounds to drive 
on our roads and highways that are designed to hold up to 105,000 pounds. The damage to our roads 
would be extremely damaging and the cost to repair them afterward would be horrendous and a big 
financial burden on the tax payers! 

179

mailto:lochsa2@gmal.com


 
I sincerely hope you will listen to the voice of the people and do the right thing for our roads by voting No 
in the board meeting scheduled on May 19th. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Darlene Malone  

180



Phone 
 
Name:  Jamie Burton Willy 
Phone Number (208) 935-5691 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/30/2021 
 
 
Yeah this is Jamie Burton Willy in Kamiah. 4168 Highway 12. And we live along Highway 12, and I’ve 
lived here all my life. And I think the load limit right now is at 79,000, and I’m not positive about that, but 
our roads are not built for 129,000 pounds. It’s not the price that they’re giving for the logs or whatever, or 
whatever they’re hauling, it’s just that the roads are not equipped. If you take a look at them right now, 
they’re coming apart, and I don’t think there’s any way that they could up it to 129,000. So anyway if 
there’s any comment call me area code (208) 935-5691. Thank you very much.  

Name:  Jamie Burton Willy 
Phone Number: Not given 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   3/31/2021 
 
Yes I would like to vote no on this because taxpayers don’t want to pay for KBC driving up and down the 
highway. Thank you. Bye. 

Name:  Elroy Moffett 
Phone Number: Not given 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/4/2021 
 
I’m representing a member of the Nez Perce Tribe of Idaho. I don’t want to have this reclassification. The 
truckers don’t seem to care about anybody else but themselves on the road. Thank you. 
 
Name:  Dave Subert 
Phone Number: 208-451-4340 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/12/2021 
 
Dave Subert, Cottonwood area, and ah, I just want to leave a call. The highways we have that your 
considering on putting more tonnage on, I think the bases are good, but the top asphalt on a lot of them 
won’t handle it and they will just ah, I think you know what I mean already. When it gets warm they’ll be 
just like a rubber band in places. Any way please give me a call if you want any more comment.  My 
name is Dave Subert, from the Cottonwood area.  
 
Dave Subert  
208-451-4340 
Cottenwood 
 
 
Name:  Orville Martin 
Phone Number: 208-926-4935 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/13/2021 
 
Hi Scott, this is Orville Martin 
I live at Clearwater Idaho, I’ve lived around here all my life. And as far as putting heavy loads on the road, 
have you guys looked at the road from Kamiah to Greer? How it’s pushing up, corners are pushing out 
because of the load on them. The base on those roads are not made for anything over 80,000 and you’re 

181



putting 102,000 on them now. And also the 95, this side of Criagmont between there and Ferdinand that’s 
gone to heck again, Their constantly repairing on I don’t know how they will possible put heavier loads on 
those because I drove truck a lot, I drove a lot of heavy lowboy and you start bouncing on the roads when 
you have a hole you’re going to have another hole. I’m against putting any more weight on those roads. I 
really think you need to take a trip and look those holes over good.  
 
 
Name:  Mrs. Dains 
Phone Number: 208-451-4650 
Specific Route: SH-13, US-12 & SH-162 
Date:   4/13/2021 
 
I’ve been in Kamiah for quite a while. We take highway 12 and highway 7. They re-did these highways 
and did a great job. I’m very concerned with the safety and impact of the heavy loads on the highway. My 
husband and I drive these roads all the time and have had issues with trucks, particularly on Highway 7 
and Highway 12. I am neither for nor against truckers, but I am very concerned with the safety and impact 
of these heavy trucks. 
 
 
 

182



1

Megan Jahns

From: ITDNews@itd.idaho.gov
Sent: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 7:24 AM
To: Megan Jahns
Subject: Subcommittee for the Idaho Transportation Board to review reclassification of Idaho 

County highways on Thursday 

 

 
 
4/20/2021 
 
Contact: 
Megan Jahns 
ITD Office of Communication 
208 772-1295 
megan.jahns@itd.idaho.gov 
 
Subcommittee for the Idaho Transportation Board to review reclassification of Idaho County highways 
on Thursday  

LEWISTON – The Idaho Transportation Board 129,000 Pound Route Subcommittee will meet Thursday, 
April 22 to review an application to reclassify the weight limits of several highways in Idaho County. After 
review, the subcommittee could provide a recommendation to the Idaho Transportation Board, which will make 
a final decision on the reclassification, or require further analysis by the department.  

The subcommittee will convene at 12:15 p.m. PT / 1:15 p.m. MT in Jerome to discuss engineering analysis 
completed by department staff and comments received during the public hearing process.  

The meeting will be held at the Idaho Department of Fish and Game office at 324 South 417 East, but members 
of the public may participate remotely via instructions located on the agenda. Since this meeting will be held 
after the Idaho Transportation Board meeting, participants should be prepared for any scheduling changes.  

Public comments were sought in March and April on the application submitted by KBC Trucking to increase 
the limits on the following highways from 105,500 pounds to 129,000 pounds:  

 Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of US-12 outside of 
Kooskia 

 US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah 
 Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7  

183



2

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162 and US-95. This 
route is not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway District, Union 
Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.  

No further public comment will be taken at the subcommittee meeting.  

Download a photo of Seven Mile Canyon on ID-162.  

 The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at itd.idaho.gov/freight. 

A final decision by the Idaho Transportation Board could be made as early as the next regular board meeting on 
May 19. 

                                                                  # # # 

184



185



186



https://www.bigcountrynewsconnection.com/idaho/transportation-board-to-review-reclassi�cation-of-idaho-

county-highways-on-thursday/article_3e1c5b72-a1e4-11eb-b6f1-87ebb20102c1.html

Transportation Board to Review Reclassi�cation of Idaho County
Highways on Thursday

Apr 20, 2021

Photo: Idaho Transportation Department

LEWISTON – The Idaho Transportation Board 129,000 Pound Route Subcommittee will meet

Thursday, April 22 to review an application to reclassify the weight limits of several highways in Idaho

County. After review, the subcommittee could provide a recommendation to the Idaho Transportation

Board, which will make a �nal decision on the reclassi�cation, or require further analysis by the

department.

The subcommittee will convene at 12:15 p.m. PT / 1:15 p.m. MT in Jerome to discuss engineering

analysis completed by department staff and comments received during the public hearing process.

The meeting will be held at the Idaho Department of Fish and Game of�ce at 324 South 417 East, but

members of the public may participate remotely via instructions located on the agenda. Since this

meeting will be held after the Idaho Transportation Board meeting, participants should be prepared
187



for any scheduling changes.

Public comments were sought in March and April on the application submitted by KBC Trucking to

increase the limits on the following highways from 105,500 pounds to 129,000 pounds:

Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia

US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah

Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162 and US-

95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway

District, Union Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.

No further public comment will be taken at the subcommittee meeting.

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at

itd.idaho.gov/freight.
188

https://bigcountrynewsconnection.com/tncms/tracking/bannerad/clicks/?rd=itdgov.sharepoint.com&i=ros/fixed-big-ad-top-asset1/1439005a-9c9c-11eb-b7c3-d35edabe6e3f&r=https://vistaoutdoor.com/careers/
https://bigcountrynewsconnection.com/tncms/tracking/bannerad/clicks/?rd=itdgov.sharepoint.com&i=ros/fixed-big-ad-middle-asset1/ce4af4a0-8e80-11eb-8ee8-d3f0afb489df&r=https://www.cityoflewiston.org/670/Home-Repair-Program
http://itd.idaho.gov/freight


A �nal decision by the Idaho Transportation Board could be made as early as the next regular board

meeting on May 19.

189

https://bigcountrynewsconnection.com/tncms/tracking/bannerad/clicks/?rd=itdgov.sharepoint.com&i=ros/fixed-big-ad-bottom-asset1/0ff5fe50-971d-11eb-b567-e3ce7376c48d&r=https://www.ahcfacilities.com/join-our-team/


https://www.idahocountyfreepress.com/news/subcommittee-of-idaho-transportation-board-to-review-
reclassi�cation-of-idaho-county-highways-april-22/article_c39caa08-a2ee-11eb-81ea-937bab6c8a63.html

Subcommittee of Idaho Transportation Board to review
reclassi�cation of Idaho County highways, April 22
Apr 21, 2021

190



LEWISTON – The Idaho Transportation Board 129,000 Pound Route Subcommittee will meet

Thursday, April 22 to review an application to reclassify the weight limits of several highways in

Idaho County. After review, the subcommittee could provide a recommendation to the Idaho

Transportation Board, which will make a �nal decision on the reclassi�cation, or require further

analysis by the department.

The subcommittee will convene at 12:15 p.m. PT / 1:15 p.m. MT in Jerome to discuss

engineering analysis completed by department sta� and comments received during the public

hearing process.

The meeting will be held at the Idaho Department of Fish and Game o�ce at 324 South 417

East, but members of the public may participate remotely via instructions located on the

agenda. Since this meeting will be held after the Idaho Transportation Board meeting,

participants should be prepared for any scheduling changes. No further public comment will be

taken at the meeting.

Public comments were sought in March and April on the application submitted by KBC Trucking

to increase the limits on the following highways from 105,500 pounds to 129,000 pounds:

• Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of US-12

outside of Kooskia

• US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah

• Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162

and US-95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the

Greencreek Highway District, Union Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway

District.

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at

itd.idaho.gov/freight.
191

http://itd.idaho.gov/freight


A �nal decision by the Idaho Transportation Board could be made as early as the next board

meeting on May 19.

192



https://lmtribune.com/northwest/board-to-review-proposed-weight-limit-changes-on-idaho-county-
highways/article_b36e9457-25fb-57c3-870f-ce14158781df.html

FEATURED

Board to review proposed weight limit changes on Idaho County
highways
Tribune
Apr 21, 2021

GRANGEVILLE — A subcommittee of the Idaho Transportation Board will meet Thursday to review
an application to reclassify the weight limits of several highways in Idaho County.

The subcommittee could provide a recommendation to the state board, which could make a decision
at its next regular meeting in May.

The highways under consideration for increasing trucking limits from 105,500 pounds to 129,000
pounds include:

State Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of U.S. Highway 12
near Kooskia.

U.S. Highway 12 from Kooskia to Kamiah.

State Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7.

The applicant, KBC Trucking of Kamiah, has also requested use of Old Highway 7 from its
intersection with State Highway 162 and U.S. Highway 95. This route is not being evaluated by the
Idaho Transportation Department because it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway
District, Union Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.

Public comments on the application were sought in March and April. No further comment will be
accepted at the subcommittee meeting, which will be held at the Idaho Department of Fish and
Game office at 324 S. 417 East St. in Jerome, beginning at 12:14 p.m. PST Thursday. Members of
the public may participate remotely by contacting the Idaho Transportation website at:
itd.idaho.gov.

193

http://itd.idaho.gov/


Since the meeting will be held following the board meeting, scheduling changes could occur.

194



� �

Subcommittee for the Idaho Transportation Board to review reclassification of
Idaho County highways on Thursday
Posted on April 19, 2021 by Megan Jahns

The Idaho Transportation Board 129,000 Pound Route Subcommittee will meet Thursday, April 22 to review an

application to reclassify the weight limits of several highways in Idaho County. After review, the subcommittee could

provide a recommendation to the Idaho Transportation Board, which will make a final decision on the

reclassification, or require further analysis by the department.

The subcommittee will convene at 12:15 p.m. PT / 1:15 p.m. MT in Jerome to discuss engineering analysis

completed by department staff and comments received during the public hearing process.

The meeting will be held at the Idaho Department of Fish and Game office at 324 South 417 East, but members of

the public may participate remotely via instructions located on the agenda. Since this meeting will be held after the

Idaho Transportation Board meeting, participants should be prepared for any scheduling changes.

Public comments were sought in March and April on the application submitted by KBC Trucking to increase the limits

on the following highways from 105,500 pounds to 129,000 pounds:

Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia

US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah

Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7
195

https://itd.idaho.gov/news/subcommittee-for-the-idaho-transportation-board-to-review-reclassification-of-idaho-county-highways-on-thursday/
https://itd.idaho.gov/author/msausser/
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/129KsubcomagendaApril2021.pdf
https://itd.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/April2021agenda.pdf


The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its intersections with ID-162 and US-95. This route is

not being evaluated by ITD as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway District, Union Independent

Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.

No further public comment will be taken at the subcommittee meeting.

The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are available at itd.idaho.gov/freight.

A final decision by the Idaho Transportation Board could be made as early as the next regular board meeting on May

19.

RELATED POSTS

IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT KICKS OFF WORK ZONE AWARENESS WEEK: APRIL
26-30

I-84 SAFETY SERVICE PATROL CONTINUES THROUGH THE I-84 WORK ZONE TO CALDWELL

EASTBOUND LANES TO CLOSE TONIGHT ON CHINDEN AT THE LINDER INTERSECTION

RECONSTRUCTION OF IDAHO HIGHWAY 13 EAST OF GRANGEVILLE BEGINS MAY 3

I-84 BRIDGE REPAIRS TO BEGIN NEXT WEEK IN GOODING, JEROME, MINIDOKA AND CASSIA
COUNTIES

FEATURED  SAFETY

FEATURED  SOUTHWEST

FEATURED  SOUTHWEST

FEATURED  NORTH-CENTRAL

FEATURED  SOUTH-CENTRAL

196

https://itd.idaho.gov/freight/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/idaho-transportation-department-kicks-off-work-zone-awareness-week-april-26-30/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/i-84-safety-service-patrol-continues-through-the-i-84-work-zone-to-caldwell/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/eastbound-lanes-to-close-tonight-on-chinden-at-the-linder-intersection/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/reconstruction-of-idaho-highway-13-east-of-grangeville-begins-may-3/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news/i-84-bridge-repairs-to-begin-next-week-in-gooding-jerome-minidoka-and-cassia-counties/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/safety/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-3/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-3/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-2/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/featured/
https://itd.idaho.gov/news-category/district-4/


197



198



1

Megan Jahns

From: Idaho Transportation Department <megan.sausser@itd.idaho.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 7:29 AM
To: Megan Jahns
Subject: Subcommittee review

 

 

 

Subcommittee to meet 
 

April 20, 2021 
 

 

Subcommittee to review  

199



2

reclassification on Thursday  
 

The Idaho Transportation Board 129,000 Pound Route Subcommittee will meet 
Thursday, April 22 to review an application to reclassify the weight limits of 
several highways in Idaho County. After review, the subcommittee could 
provide a recommendation to the Idaho Transportation Board, which will make 
a final decision on the reclassification, or require further analysis by the 
department.  
 

The subcommittee will convene at 12:15 p.m. PT / 1:15 p.m. MT in Jerome to 
discuss engineering analysis completed by department staff and comments 
received during the public hearing process.  
 

The meeting will be held at the Idaho Department of Fish and Game office at 
324 South 417 East, but members of the public may participate remotely via 
instructions located on the agenda. Since this meeting will be held after the 
Idaho Transportation Board meeting, participants should be prepared for any 
scheduling changes.  
 

Public comments were sought in March and April on the application submitted 
by KBC Trucking to increase the limits on the following highways from 105,500 
pounds to 129,000 pounds:  
 

 Idaho Highway 13 from the KBC Trucking yard at milepost 24.4 to its 
intersection of US-12 outside of Kooskia 

 US-12 from Kooskia to Kamiah 
 Idaho Highway 162 from Kamiah to its intersection with Old Highway 7 

The applicant has also requested the use of Old Highway 7 from its 
intersections with ID-162 and US-95. This route is not being evaluated by ITD 
as it is under the jurisdiction of the Greencreek Highway District, Union 
Independent Highway District and Grangeville Highway District.  
No further public comment will be taken at the subcommittee meeting.  
 

 The application, analysis by ITD and FAQs about 129,000-pound loads are 
available at itd.idaho.gov/freight.  
 

A final decision by the Idaho Transportation Board could be made as early as 
the next regular board meeting on May 19. 

 

 

  

     

 

You are receiving this email due to your anticipated interest  
in reclassification of these routes. 

 

200



3

 

  

 

 

 <--! ITD Anti-Spam GUID: 78abcc92-35e5-49bb-bf48-027590c762ac --> 
    

  

Idaho Transportation Department | 2600 Frontage Road, Lewiston, ID 83501  

Unsubscribe megan.jahns@itd.idaho.gov  

Update Profile | Customer Contact Data Notice  

Sent by megan.sausser@itd.idaho.gov powered by
 

 
Try email marketing for free today!  

 

 

 

201



 

Page 1 of 3 

Idaho Transportation Board 
 

Subcommittee on 129,000 Pound Routes 
 

April 22, 2021 
 
 

Idaho Transportation Board (ITB) Subcommittee on 129,000 Pound Routes Chairman 
Dwight Horsch called the meeting to order at 1:45 PM on Thursday, April 22, 2021 in Jerome, 
Idaho. ITB Members Jim Thompson and Janice B. Vassar were present.  
 

ITB Chairman Bill Moad and Member Julie DeLorenzo also attended as observers. Key 
principal Subcommittee staff members and advisors Acting Lead Deputy Attorney General Tim 
Thomas, Chief Engineer (CE) Blake Rindlisbacher, Freight Program Manager (FPM) Scott 
Luekenga, Planning Services Manager Ken Kanownik, Chief Operations Officer Dan 
McElhinney, Executive Assistant to the Board Sue S. Higgins, and Local Highway Technical 
Assistance Council (LHTAC) Deputy Administrator Laila Kral were present. District 2 Engineer 
Doral Hoff participated remotely.  
 
 
 Minutes: March 18, 2021. Member Thompson made a motion to approve the minutes of 
the March 18, 2021 meeting as submitted. Member Vassar seconded the motion and it passed 
unopposed. 

 
 

Case #202101: SH-13 – Milepost 24.400 to 26.390; US-12 – Milepost 74.480 to 66.220; 
and SH-162 – Milepost 23.065 to 8.00 and 38.819 to 31.077, District 2. FPM Luekenga 
presented the Chief Engineer’s evaluation of the above referenced routes. The Division of Motor 
Vehicles reported that the highways are classified as blue routes, allowing 95-foot overall vehicle 
length and a 5.5-foot off-track. The bridge analysis determined that the nine bridges on the routes 
will safely support vehicle combinations up to 129,000 pounds, assuming the axle configuration 
conforms to the legal requirements. The pavement conditions range from good to poor. There are 
no safety concerns, and staff recommends approving the application.  
 
 Public Information Officer Megan Jahns said 29 comments were received during the 
public comment period. Sixty-nine percent opposed the reclassification, 14% expressed support, 
and the remaining comments either asked for more information or did not express an opinion. 
The main concerns from those opposing the designation related to the poor condition of the 
highways and pavement damage. The narrow lanes and shoulders and steep grade were notable 
comments specifically on SH-162. 
 

Member Vassar said LHTAC asked her to delay a decision until the impacted local 
highway districts can complete their studies on Old Highway 7, which would connect SH-162 to 
US-95.  

 
CE Rindlisbacher concurred that his intent was to recommend no decision today to allow 

time for the local public agencies to complete their studies. 
 

202



 

Page 2 of 3 

Chairman Horsch acknowledged that some believe the state needs to act on requests on 
the state highway system independent of what local highway jurisdictions do. He believes the 
trucking industry will abide by the permits and will not travel on non-designated 129,000 pound 
routes with loads exceeding the permitted weight. He does not object to the Subcommittee 
making a recommendation to the full Board at this time. 

 
 In response to Member Thompson’s question on the timeframe for the locals’ studies, CE 
Rindlisbacher does not know. The engineering firm has been hired to conduct the analysis, and 
he believes that will take one or two months. 
 
 Member Vassar moved to hold case #202101: SH-13 – Milepost 24.400 to 26.390; US-12 
– Milepost 74.480 to 66.220; and SH-162 – Milepost 23.065 to 8.00 and 38.819 to 31.077, in 
abeyance until staff determines an appropriate time to move forward. 
 
 Member Thompson expressed a desire to proceed on the request; however, he does not 
want to approve a route that dead ends. He seconded the motion. 
 
 The motion passed 2-0 with Members Vassar and Thompson voting in the affirmative. 
Chairman Horsch said case #202101 will be held until a future date. 
 
 Member Vassar clarified her motion that the request will be revisited when staff 
determines it is appropriate to do so. She does not believe the locals need to complete their 
studies first if that process is too time consuming. 
 
 CE Rindlisbacher recommends taking no action until the local highway jurisdictions 
complete their process. Both the applicant and District 2 are in communication with the locals. 
 

LHTAC Deputy Administrator Kral estimates the locals will be finished with their study 
in four to six weeks. 

 
In response to ITB Chairman Moad’s question on whether other routes have been 

approved before the affected local highway jurisdiction(s) acted, FPM Luekenga replied in the 
affirmative. ITB Chairman Moad questioned the difference with this application and expressed 
concern with delaying action on this request. 
 

Chairman Horsch asked about the timeline for the current application. CE Rindlisbacher 
said the application was received on March 8. He concurred that the timeframe is a concern; 
however, he believes there is sufficient time to allow the local highway jurisdictions to complete 
their process. He does not want to put pressure on the locals by approving the route at this time.  
 

Chairman Horsch suggested conducting a future meeting remotely to revisit this 
application. He asked what the process would be if the Subcommittee approved the route today 
and the highway districts deny their application. 

 
FPM Luekenga responded that the state highways would remain 129,000 pound routes, 

but commercial motor vehicles hauling weights up to that limit could not legally proceed further 
unless an alternate route is identified and approved. He added that the Board is responsible for 
the state highway system.  

203



 

Page 3 of 3 

Member Vassar confirmed that she is fine with the motion that passed. 
 

Member Thompson questioned meeting virtually in the near future and then taking the 
recommendation to the full Board at its May meeting. 

 
FPM Luekenga said if the local process takes four to six weeks, the Department’s 

timeframe will exceed 100 days. The Subcommittee would need to meet approximately ten days 
before the May 19 meeting to get this item on that agenda; however, he does not recommend 
meeting at that time if the local public agencies have not completed their process. He 
recommends the Subcommittee act today on the application and present its recommendation to 
the Board in May, reiterating that the Board is responsible for the state highway system. 
 

Based on that information, Member Thompson made a motion to rescind the previous 
motion and to move forward with a recommendation that the Board approve case #202101. 
Member Vassar seconded the motion and it passed 2-0 with Members Thompson and Vassar 
voting in the affirmative. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 2:20 PM. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Respectfully submitted by: 
SUE S. HIGGINS 
Executive Assistant & Secretary 
Idaho Transportation Board 

204



129,000 Pound Route Application 
Case #20201SH162 

Resolution 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1117 was enacted in 2013 allowing the Idaho Transportation Board to 
designate state highways for permitted vehicle combinations up to 129,000 pounds upon 
request; and 

WHEREAS, the Board established a Subcommittee on 129,000 Pound Truck Routes to 
implement provisions of the legislation; and 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department has received a request for 129,000 pound 
routes in District 2: State Highway 13, Milepost (M.P.) 24.400 to M.P. 26.390 and United States 
Highway 12, M.P. 74.480 to M.P. 66.220 and State Highway 162, M.P. 38.819 to M.P. 31.077 
and SH-162, MP M.P. 23.065 to M.P. 8.000; and  

WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer and ITD Staff received the application and reviewed the 
proposed routes by conducting an engineering and safety analyses of the routes; and 

WHEREAS, upon completion of the engineering and safety analyses, a 15-day public 
comment period was held, including an opportunity for verbal testimony with thirty-one (31) 
comments received, four (4) in support, twenty-two (22) adversarial and five (5) neither for or 
against the specific routes; and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer presented his analyses to the Board Subcommittee on 129,000 
Pound Routes at its meeting on April 22, 2021, with a recommendation to approve the routes; 
and 

WHEREAS, after the Board Subcommittee reviewed the Chief Engineer’s analyses and public 
comments, it passed a motion to approve the routes request; and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer and the Board Subcommittee presented their analyses and 
recommendations to the full Board at the regularly scheduled Board meeting of May 19, 2021. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board accepts the Chief Engineer’s analyses 
and recommendations on State Highway 13, Milepost (M.P.) 24.400 to M.P. 26.390 and United 
States Highway 12, M.P. 74.480 to M.P. 66.220 and State Highway 162, M.P. 38.819 to M.P. 
31.077 and SH-162, MP M.P. 23.065 to M.P. 8.000; and 

FURTHERMORE, that the Board directs the Chief Engineer to issue a Letter of Determination 
that approves the referenced routes request in District 2. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, following the fourteen day public appeals period, this resolution 
is effective June 1, 2021. 

205



 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021  

Consent Item  Information Item  Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 
 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials  

 

Reviewed By 
      
      
      

Ken Kanownik / Margaret Havey Planning Services Manager / Sr 
Transportation Planner 

MH  
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials  
Margaret Havey Sr Transportation Planner MH  

 
Subject 
2020 Census Results  
Key Number District Route Number 

N/A N/A N/A 

Background Information 
 

In late April 2021, the US Census Bureau announced the resident populations of each state and the 
corresponding preliminary apportionment figures. Idaho has been the fastest growing state since 2017 
and the second fastest between the 2010 to 2020 censuses.  Each state’s population affects not only the 
apportionment of representatives to the US Congress and subsequent redistricting, but also the allotment 
of federal formula funding for the next ten years. 

 
Population totals and demographics for smaller geographical areas such as counties and metropolitan 
areas will be released in early May. Staff will present demographic trends and population shifts within the 
state. 
 
 

 

Recommendations 
For information only. 

 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

206



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 2 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  15 mins. 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 
LSS Robert Beachler & Ramón Hobdey-Sánchez Planning PM & GAPM RB/RHS  

Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Robert Beachler & Ramón Hobdey-Sánchez Planning PM & GAPM RB/RHS 

Subject 
Initiation of Utility Accommodation Rulemaking 
Key Number District Route Number 

Background Information 

Negotiated Rulemaking and Stakeholder Outreach 

As the Department continues its efforts to address utility accommodation of broadband facilities seeking access to 
the state’s ROW, there is an opportunity to engage in negotiated rulemaking to further analyze and update the 
necessary policies and procedures, while also meeting federal requirements and supporting Governor Little’s 
initiative to improve broadband access in Idaho. 

The Idaho Transportation Department incorporates by reference the July 2003 Edition of “Utility Accommodation 
Policy” in IDAPA Title 39: 39.03.43 – Rules Governing Utilities on State Highway Right-of-Way.   

Over the next several months, ITD staff will work with the general public, stakeholders, customers, legislators, 
vendors and the Governor’s Office via the negotiated rulemaking process.  Through this process, the Department 
will meet and collaborate with interested parties in an effort to make necessary policy updates to accommodate 
utility facilities within the State Highway System Right-of-Way, for the issuance of permits for broadband and 
small wireless facilities. 

During stakeholder outreach this summer, staff will work on integrating input and feedback regarding Department 
utility accommodation policies and updating ITD’s Guide for Utility Management. ITD staff will conduct meetings 
during May and June as well as provide an opportunity for those that would like to submit comments via phone, 
email or mail.  In-person/virtual meetings will be scheduled on Tuesday, June 15th 3pm-7pm (MT) & Thursday, 
June 24th 3pm-7pm (MT). 

Staff will return to the Board with information and updates from stakeholder engagement and proposed rulemaking. 

Recommendations 
Please see resolution on page 223. 

207

https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/39/390343.pdf


 Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13) 

Page 2 of 2 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred        

 Other        
 

 

208



1

Initiation of Utility 

Accommodation Rulemaking

May 19, 2021

209



Agenda

• Initiation of Utility Accommodation 
Rulemaking

• Summary of Efforts to Date

• Public vs. Non-Public Utilities

• Fair Market Value Discussion

• Conclusion

2

210



Initiation of Utility Accommodation    

Rulemaking

• IDAPA 39.03.43 – Rules Governing Utilities on 

State Highway Right-of-Way

– Regulate the location, design and methods for 

installing, relocating, adjusting and maintaining 
utilities in the State Highway Right-of-Way

– Incorporates by reference the 2003 Edition of the 

Utility Accommodation Policy (UAP)

– UAP is included in ITD’s Guide for Utility 
Management (GUM)

3

211



Scope of Utility Accommodation         

Rulemaking

• Rulemaking will be focused on alternative use of 

highway Right-of-Way by non-public utilities

• Technologies such as broadband and small cell 

wireless require updates to guidance, policy and 
rules

• Establish requirements for permitting 

broadband and small wireless facilities

• Ensure compliance with Federal requirements

4

212



Timelines & Milestones

• May

– Work with DFM to initiate rulemaking process

– Stakeholder meetings: ITD

– Board Item & Resolution Presentation: ITD

• June

– Notice of Negotiated Rulemaking published: DFM

– Open Public Meetings: June 15th & 24th 3-7pm (MT)

– Stakeholder meetings: ITD

5

213



Timelines & Milestones (cont.)

• July

– Present findings to ITB

• Identify stakeholder input/suggestions and challenges

• Late-Summer/Early-Fall 2021

– Final language of proposed administrative rules for 

the 2022 Legislative Session

6

214



Summary of Efforts

• Staff has been 
evaluating broadband 
issues in order to 

support Governor’s 
Broadband Initiatives

• Support expansion of 

broadband availability 
throughout Idaho

• Reviewing & evaluating 

new FHWA guidance 
and state regulations

•
7

215



Summary of Efforts (cont.)

• Updating UAP and GUM will provide a 
framework for managing broadband facilities 
within the Right-of-Way (ROW) or State 
owned property

• Develop policies and procedures for 
accommodating and managing access for 

broadband infrastructure

• Manage ROW, or require fair and reasonable 
compensation from providers on a 

competitively neutral and non-

discriminatory basis

8

216



Outreach & Coordination

• Annual outreach letter 
sent to providers showing 
the location of FY21-27 
state sponsored projects

• Expanded coordination 
with Dept. of Commerce 

• Coordinate statewide 
telecom & broadband 
plans to minimize 
repeated excavations 

(DIG ONCE)

9

217



Utility Definitions

10

• IDAPA 40-210.  

“Utility” means an 
entity comprised of 
any person, private 
company, public 
entity, or cooperative 
owning and/or 

operating utility 

facilities

218



Utility Definitions (cont.)

IDAPA 61-129. A Public 
Utility is subject to the 
jurisdiction, control and 
regulation by the Idaho 
Public Utilities 
Commission

Non-Public Utility 
includes all utilities that 
are not regulated by the 
Idaho Public Utilities 
Commission including 
broadband, small cell, etc. 

11

Source: wherestheline.ca

219



Federal Requirements

• 23 CFR section 710.403 
“Current fair market 
value must be charged for 
the use or disposal of all 
real property interests if 
those real property 

interests were obtained 

with Title 23, United 
States Code, funding…”

12

220



Stakeholder Engagement

• Stakeholder concerns regarding ITD receiving 
fair market value for access to state ROW and 
facilities were voiced to the House & Senate 
Transportation Chairs 

• Response to Transportation Chairs noted ITD’s 
efforts to address utility accommodation of 
broadband facilities seeking access to the ROW

• Resulting in the need for Administrative 
Rulemaking 

13

221



Conclusion

• There is a need to update guidance, policies 
and administrative rules to address the 
ever increasing demands for utility 

accommodation and access to the State 
Highway Right-of-Way 

• Request permission from the Board to 

engage in negotiated rulemaking in 

preparation for next legislative session

14

222



Res. No. WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board and Idaho Transportation 
Department recognize their role in broadband connectivity within Idaho; 
and 

________ 
WHEREAS, broadband connectivity is crucial to Governor Little’s Building 
Idaho’s Future Initiatives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department accommodates private and public utilities in 
highway rights-of-way in accordance with local, state and federal laws; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, policy is incorporated by reference in IDAPA 39.03.43 - Rules 
Governing Utilities on State Highway Right-of-Way; and  
 
WHEREAS, Department staff requests to collaborate with the general 
public, broadband vendors, elected officials and the Governor’s Office on 
broadband policy; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 67-5220, Idaho Code, the Department 
will initiate the negotiated rulemaking process; and 

 
WHEREAS, Department staff will use May and June 2021 to host and 
facilitate negotiated meetings; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Idaho Transportation 
Board authorizes and directs Department staff to begin consultations and 
collaboration through the negotiated rulemaking process in order to work 
on identifying potential improvements and changes to the Utility 
Accommodation Policy and updating ITD’s Guide for Utility Management. 

223



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  10 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

Amy Schroeder Transportation Program Manager 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Amy Schroeder Transportation Program Manager 

Subject 
I-84 Cost Savings
Key Number District Route Number 

various 3 I-84

Background Information 

The I-84 corridor between Nampa and Caldwell was divided into three packages for construction: 
- KN 23079, Shoulder Widening and Temporary Pavement. Bids opened January 26, 2021.
- KN 23080, I-84 Mainline West. Bids opened May 11, 2021.
- KN 23081, I-84 Mainline East. Bids opened April 20, 2021.

There were numerous bidders on each of these projects, resulting in very competitive bids. All three bids 
came in below the engineer’s estimates. The total bid savings in this corridor is $20.6 million; all of which 
are GARVEE bonds that were included in the 2021A Series that closed earlier this month. 

Reallocating these bonded funds is critical to meeting draw down requirements. Therefore, staff 
recommends re-allocating $15 million to the SH-16 corridor to fully fund the final design of the remaining 
elements of the corridor (the grade separated interchanges, referred to as Phase 3) and use the 
remainder to exchange with non-GARVEE funds on the US-95, Granite North construction project. 

Recommendations 
Consider Resolution on page 225. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

224



WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board is charged with determining the timeframe and 
scope of improvements for the State Transportation System; and 

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 40-310 directs the Idaho Transportation Board to plan, design and 
develop statewide transportation systems when determined to be in the public interest; and 

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 40-315 directs the Idaho Transportation Board to consider the cost of 
the projects and whether or not the project could be funded without GARVEE bonding, and to 
balance and coordinate the use of bonding with the use of highways construction funding; and 

WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 40-315 identifies the SH 16 and US 95 corridors as eligible corridors 
for the use of GARVEE bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the department has made a significant investment in the SH 16 corridor for the 
environmental evaluation; design, right-of-way acquisition and construction of the connection 
between US 20/26 and SH 44 in 2014 (Phase 1); and design and right-of-way acquisition of the 
connection between I-84 and US 20/26 (Phase 2); and 

WHEREAS, final design of the remaining elements of work between I-84 and US 20/26 is not 
funded; and 

WHEREAS, it is beneficial to begin the final design of the remaining elements of work between 
I-84 and US 20/26 (referred to as Phase 3) in order to prepare the project of future funding
opportunities; and

WHEREAS, the department has made a significant investment in the US 95 corridor with the 
GARVEE bonding program and the Granite North project is funded with GARVEE bonds from 
the 2017 authorization, as well as Freight and TECM funds; and 

WHEREAS, $20.6 million savings of GARVEE bonds from the 2017 authorization, included in 
the 2021A Series bond sale, have been identified on the I-84, Caldwell to Nampa corridor. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves reallocating GARVEE bond 
savings from the I-84, Caldwell to Nampa corridor to advance the final design of SH 16 Phase 3 
for $15 million, and exchange $5.6 million GARVEE funds on the US 95 Granite North project 
with Federal Aid in order to draw down the bonds faster. 

225



Board Agenda Item ITD 2210   (Rev. 10-13)

Page 1 of 1 

Meeting Date May 19, 2021 

Consent Item Information Item Amount of Presentation Time Needed  30 minutes 

Presenter's Name Presenter's Title Initials Reviewed By 

Amy Schroeder Transportation Program Manager 
Preparer's Name Preparer's Title Initials 

Amy Schroeder Transportation Program Manager 

Subject 
TECM Funded Projects 
Key Number District Route Number 

n/a statewide various 

Background Information 

During the February Board Workshop, each District Engineer presented their highest priority safety and 
capacity projects. Many of the projects on that list are not yet started and project readiness is critical for 
utilization of funds – whether the new TECM bonding program, one-time money like redistribution or 
grants, or perhaps a new federal highway bill. 

Staff will make a recommendation for funding environmental, design, right-of-way and construction of 
several corridors and projects as shown on the following sheet. 

Recommendations 
Consider Resolution on page 228. 

Board Action 

 Approved  Deferred 

 Other 

226



D
is

tr
ic

t

ED

PEL

TECM

Envr

TECM

Design

TECM

ROW

TECM

Constr.

1 1 I-90, Washington State Line to Coeur d'Alene 2 5 5

2 Spokane St (Post Falls) to US-95 150 200

3 I-90/US-95 Interchange 75 100

4 Washington State Line to Spokane St (Post Falls) 125 150

5 US-95 to Sherman Ave 250 325

6 1 US-95, Sagle to Lakeshore Drive 1 2 110 225 3

7 1 US-95 Alt Route - Huetter Bypass 3 6 400 600 3

8 2 US-95, Spalding Bridge & Interchange, Nez Perce Co 1 2 130 165 1.5

9 2 US-12, Arrow Bridge Replacement, Nez Perce Co 1 2 100 135 1.5

10 2 US-95, Moscow North & Moscow Alt Route 3 5 600 800 4

11 2 SH-8, Moscow to Troy 2 4 145 190 2

12 3 SH-16, I-84 to US-20/26 & SH-44 IC, Ada & Canyon Cos *

13 Mainline + At-Grade Signalized Intersections (Phase 2) 160 180 170

14 Interchanges at at-grade intersections (Phase 3) 200 225

15 3 **US-20/26, I-84 to Middleton Rd * 35 40 37

16 3 US-20/26, Middleton Rd to Star Rd * 170 200 12 40

17 3 **I-84, Karcher IC (exit 33) * 15 20 2 1

18 3 I-84, Centennial IC to Franklin IC (exit 27 -29) * 90 110 8 2

19 3 I-84, Middleton IC to Centennial Way IC (exit 25 - 27) 1 3 100 125 2

20 3 SH-55, Sunnyslope to Nampa *

21 Indiana Ave to Middleton Rd, Nampa (currently STIP-funded ) 100 150

22 Pear Lane to Indiana Ave, Nampa 90 130 10 30

23 3 SH-44, I-84 to Star *

24 I-84 to Middleton 30 40

25 Middleton Bypass 200 250

26 Middleton to Star Rd 125 150

27 3 SH-55, Solution at Banks (PEL underway w FLAP funds ) 1 2 100 200

28 4 SH-75, Timmerman Jct to Timber Way 1 3 3

29 McKercher Blvd to Timber Way 100 135

30 Gannett Road to McKercher Blvd 40 60

31 US-20 to Gannett Rd 70 100

32 4 I-84, Interchanges, Minidoka Co 1 3 2

33 Burley IC (exit 208) 40 80 7

34 Heyburn IC (exit 211) 50 90 7

35 4 I-84, South Jerome IC to Twin Falls IC 1 2 100 140 2 8

36 4 Snake River Crossing 3 8 600 800 4

37 5 I-15, Pocatello to Idaho Falls 3 6 5

38 Pocatello to Fort Hall 225 250

39 Fort Hall to Blackfoot 350 450

40 Blackfoot to Idaho Falls 650 800

41 5 US-30, Lava Hot Springs Bypass 1 2 250 300

42 6 US-20/I-15 Connector, Idaho Falls * 300 400

43 6 US-20, Ashton to Targhee Pass * 500 700

TOTAL COST RANGE: 25 55 6,775 9,015 16 22 54 73 207

* Environmental study complete or underway

** New projects since February 2021 Board Workshop

Request at May Board MeetingSAFETY & CAPACITY UNFUNDED NEEDS - STATE SYSTEM (Feb 2021)

Location
Planning & Environmental

Cost Range ($Mil)

Design/ROW/Constr.

Cost Range ($Mil)

This draft has not been reviewed by the Idaho Transportation Board. Corridor/Project priorities subject to Board approval.
Last Revised: 05 12 2021

227



 

 

WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Board is charged with determining the timeframe and 
scope of improvements for the State Transportation System; and 
 
WHEREAS, Idaho Code § 40-310 directs the Idaho Transportation Board to plan, design and 
develop statewide transportation systems when determined to be in the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, House Bill 362 increased the sales tax distribution from 1% to 4.5% (not less than 
$80 million annually), dedicated to ITD for large infrastructure projects on the state highway 
system; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are many unfunded safety and capacity needs throughout the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, a list of corridors and projects has been developed by staff and presented to the 
Board for inclusion into the Transportation Expansion Congestion Mitigation (TECM) program; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, adding these projects to the TECM program is part of the department’s strategy to 
develop projects in preparation of future funding opportunities. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves allocating TECM funds to the 
following list of corridors and projects in the amounts listed under TECM Environmental (Envr), 
TECM Design, TECM Right-of-way (ROW), and TECM Construction (Constr.). 
 

 

228


	C-Bonneville 97th S Br with Infra 2210
	C-Bonneville 97th S Br with Infra.1
	C-Institution Road Improvment 2210
	C-Institution Road Improvment.1
	C-Institution Road Improvment.2
	C-McMillen Jacobs Individual Task Agreement 2210
	C-Moscow Mtn View Road with COVID 2210
	C-Moscow Mtn View Road with COVID.1
	C-Request to Approve Consultant Agreement 2210
	C-Request to Approve Consultant Agreement.1
	C-Request to Approve Consultant Agreement.2
	C-Request to Approve Consultant Agreement.3
	I-Battle of the Belts 2210
	I-Battle of the Belts.1
	I-Board Item Financials 2210
	I-Board Item Financials.1
	Board Packet Cover Sheet YELLOW PAPER
	Board Packet March FY21
	AD-FN-GL-010 Summary of Receipts and Disbursements2021-04-06-04-33-43
	Receipts and Disbursements Board

	Board Graphs March FY21
	GRAPHS March FY21 (Complete)
	GRAPHS March FY21 (Complete)
	GRAPHS March FY21
	Bd Graph 1 (RTA)
	Bd Graph 2
	Bd Graph 3 (RTA)
	Bd Graph 4




	AD-FN-GL-002 Operating Fund Balance Sheet2021-04-06-04-20-49
	Balance Sheet 0221-0269
	Balance Sheet 0270-0345

	AD-FN-GL-003 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures2021-04-06-04-21-59.pdf
	0260 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	Contract Construction Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0269 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0270 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0345 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0374 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
	0375 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

	AD-FN-GL-003 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures2021-04-06-04-21-59
	0221 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures



	I-Contracts 2210
	I-Contracts.1
	I-Highway Safety Plan 2210
	I-Idaho Law Enforcement Phlebotomy Program 2210
	I-ITSC Annual Report 2210
	I-MonthlyFederalFormulaStatus 2210
	I-Professional Services Agreements and Term Agreement Work Task 2210
	P-129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 2210
	129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 Board Agenda Item
	129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 Application
	129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 ITD Evaluation
	State Highway 13
	Roadway Characteristics
	Pavement Condition
	Traffic Volumes
	Roadway Characteristics
	Roadway Characteristics
	Pavement Condition
	Truck Ramps
	Port of Entry (POE)
	Safety Review
	Accident Data

	129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 Public Comments
	Stakeholder list_KBC Trucking_after subcom mtg.pdf
	Local officials
	Elected officials
	Industry
	Email commenters
	Phone commenters


	129,000 Pound Route Case 202101SH162 Case Resolution

	P-2020 May Census 2210
	P-Initiation of Utility Accommodation Rulemaking 2210
	P-Initiation of Utility Accommodation Rulemaking.1
	P-Initiation of Utility Accommodation Rulemaking.2
	min2021^04.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING AND DISTRICT FOUR WORKSHOP
	OF THE IDAHO TRANSPORTATION BOARD
	April 21-22, 2021
	BILL MOAD, Chairman
	Read and Approved
	___________, 2021
	____________, Idaho

	5505 Final.pdf
	OPERATING AND USAGE PRACTICES OF STATE-OWNED VEHICLES
	Operating and Usage Practices for State-Owned Vehicles
	Parking State Vehicles at Employee Residences
	 Commute Assignment
	 Commute Assignment Approval
	Vehicle Telematics and Data Collection
	State-owned equipment and vehicles including sedans, pickups, vans, and SUV’s are equipped with telematics devices to record vehicle usage and on-board diagnostic information.  The data generated by the vehicle and recorded by the telematics device is...
	The telematics system is not intended as an employee monitoring system, however, it does provide incidental vehicle alerts for unsafe and unusual operation which must be addressed appropriately by Management.  Automated reporting from the system inclu...
	ITD reserves the right to review employee use of State owned equipment and vehicles at any time for any reason.  Therefore, employees should not have an expectation of privacy as to the use of State owned equipment and vehicles.  Tampering with the te...
	Immediate Corrective Actions for Abusing the Privilege of Using a State-Owned Vehicle

	5535 Vehicle Usage Practices_Strikethrough.pdf
	ITD Usage Practices for State-Owned Vehicles
	2.  Commute Assignment
	Commute Assignment Approval
	Immediate Corrective Actions for Abusing the Privilege of Using a State-Owned Vehicle

	5505 Legislative Format.pdf
	OPERATING AND USAGE PRACTICES OF STATE-OWNED VEHICLES
	Operating and Usage Practices for State-Owned Vehicles
	 Commute Assignment
	 Commute Assignment Approval
	Vehicle Telematics and Data Collection
	State-owned equipment and vehicles including sedans, pickups, vans, and SUV’s are equipped with telematics devices to record vehicle usage and on-board diagnostic information.  The data generated by the vehicle and recorded by the telematics device is...
	The telematics system is not intended as an employee monitoring system, however, it does provide incidental vehicle alerts for unsafe and unusual operation which must be addressed appropriately by Management.  Automated reporting from the system inclu...
	ITD reserves the right to review employee use of State owned equipment and vehicles at any time for any reason.  Therefore, employees should not have an expectation of privacy as to the use of State owned equipment and vehicles.  Tampering with the te...
	Immediate Corrective Actions for Abusing the Privilege of Using a State-Owned Vehicle


	5505 resolution.pdf
	RES. NO


	May2021agenda.pdf
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]

	May2021agenda w p #.pdf
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]

	May2021agenda w p #.pdf
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]

	May2021agenda w p #.pdf
	PERSONNEL ISSUES [SECTION 74-206(a), (b)]




